



Memorandum

To: ACL Board

Date: October 5, 2020

From: Megan Shamp

Memo #: 2020-70

Topic: October committee/commission changes

Recommendation: To accept the resignation of Rich Krasula from the Legal Commission.

***Plan on a Page: High Performing Operations and Management –
To operate at full efficiency and effectiveness for the benefit of the
Association***



Memorandum

To: ACL Board

Date: October 5, 2020

From: Megan Champ

Memo #: 2020-71

Topic: Appeals Board decisions

Issue & Analysis: In accordance with the NFP Act, only committees comprised of at least two Board members, with the majority of the committee members being Board members, have the authority to act on behalf of the Association. All other committees are referred to as advisory bodies or commissions. The Appeals Board guidelines state that no member of the Appeals Board can be currently serving on the ACL Board of Directors. As such, the Appeals Board serves in an advisory capacity to the Board of Directors.

Recommendation: To accept the recommendation of the Appeals Board to uphold citations #0003 and #0083 issued to Lueken.

*Plan on a Page: High Performing Operations and Management –
To operate at full efficiency and effectiveness for the benefit of the
Association*

**Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners Association
Appeals Board Meeting Minutes
September 12, 2020**

UNAPPROVED

1.0 Call to Order - Chairperson Edie Petelle opened the meeting at 8:50 am. Members present: Ron Beckel, Roger VanDerLeest, Janet Helgason, Edie Petelle. Security: Cindy Hoeksema (via Zoom). General Manager: Shaun Nordlie.

2.0 Approve Minutes – The minutes of the previous meeting were voted on by a motion to accept by Roger and seconded by Ron. Motion passed.

3.0 Unfinished Business – No discussion.

4.0 New Business – Discussion about Property Owners that receive citations will have a sixty-day window to choose their appeal date.

5.0 Hearings

5.1 Hearing for Lueken – Chairperson Petelle explained the procedure of the hearing. Security Cindy Hoeksema described both June 27, 2020 citations to property owner Mr. Chad Lueken. Property Owner Mr. Lueken spoke via Zoom and presented his appeals to the citations. Then the meeting was open to questions from the Appeals Board members and Safety & Security officer. The Appeals Board went into executive session. The Appeals Board's decision was to uphold both citations. It was explained that he had the right to appeal the upheld citations to the Board of Directors. Mr. Lueken decided to pay both citations.

6.0 Next Meeting Date – To be determined.

7.0 Adjournment – Motion to adjourn by Roger, seconded by Ron. Meeting ended at 9:24.

Respectfully submitted,
Janet Helgason, Secretary



Memorandum

To: Board of Directors

Date: October 5, 2020

From: Shaun Nordlie

Memo: 2020-75

Topic: Board Policy: Delinquent Dues Fee

Issue: As part of the 2021 Operating Budget and Operating Fee Schedule, the Board approved for publication a \$125 Delinquent Dues Fee assessed March 2, April 1, and May 1. The hope is that more owners will pay late dues in March instead of waiting until May 1 when the next real penalty occurs. The Board Policy needs to be updated to reflect this change.

[DUES] ASSESSMENTS: DELINQUENT [DUES] ASSESSMENTS FEE

The delinquency [Dues] Assessments fee amount is to be assessed on March 2, April 1, and May 1 annually and this fee is to be established by the Board of Directors.

- Adopted March 21, 1987
- Amended November 15, 2008
- Amended July 17, 2010
- Amended October 17, 2020**

The proposed policy was presented to the Board at the September 19 meeting. No changes were put forth at that meeting.

Recommendation: To approve the amended Board Policy [Dues] Assessments: Delinquent [Dues] Assessments Fee as included in the October Board Packet.

Plan on a Page: High Performing Operations and Management -To operate at full efficiency and effectiveness for the benefit of the Association.



Memorandum

To: ACL Board

Date: August 7, 2020

From: Shaun Nordlie

Memo #: 2020-56

Topic: Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions and Amended and Restated Bylaws– 1st Reading

Issue & Analysis: The Legal Commission has been reviewing the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions and the Amended and Restated Bylaws for almost six years. During this time, the Commission has worked closely with ACL legal counsel, the Architectural and Environmental Control Committee, other commissions, management and Members with these changes.

Some of the key changes being considered are:

- Add and clarify many of the definitions used in not only in the Declaration and Bylaws, but also in many of our other governing documents and rules.
- Add an Energy Policy Statement pertaining mostly to the use of solar energy systems.
- In case of conflicting statements, redefine and confirm which governing documents take precedence over others.
- Update the listing of Reserved Properties.
- Clarify acceptable home occupation, animal and nuisance policy.
- Clarify policies for leasing properties.
- Clarify the status of Owners, Members, Voting Members, Recreational Use Holder, and Spouses for both properties owned by individuals and legal entities.
- Clarify the proper procedures for non-payment of assessments and when liens can be filed against a lot.
- Clarify procedures to notify the Board and Members of Special Board Meetings, Board Meetings for discussing the budget and regular Board Meetings.
- Eliminate the granting of Restricted Lots while maintaining those that have been previously restricted.
- Added Preamble and Recitals sections to Bylaws.
- Clarify other legal issues considered necessary by our lawyers.

Both of these documents have been through a final review by Legal Counsel, Keay and Costello.

Recommendation: No motion required at this meeting. For presentation & discussion only

*Plan on a Page: High Performing Operations and Management
Long Range Goals and Measures – Assure the knowledge and understanding of roles,
responsibilities and governing documents by the Board of Directors*

October 7, 2020

AMENDED AND RESTATED DECLARATION TO CONFORM TO THE COMMON INTEREST COMMUNITY OF COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR APPLE CANYON LAKE PROPERTY OWNERS' ASSOCIATION ACT

Style Definition: Normal
Style Definition: Heading 1
Style Definition: Balloon Text: Font: (Default) Tahoma, 8 pt

2019 Version

PREAMBLE

~~This document (hereafter referred to as the "Amended Declaration") instrument is recorded for the purpose of amending and restating the Amended and Restated Covenants & Restrictions, recorded on November 6, 2008, with an effective date of November 6, 2011, (hereafter referred to as the "Restated Declaration")~~
replacing, in its entirety, the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended Declaration to Conform to as the "Restated Declaration".

Formatted: Font color: Black
Formatted: Font color: Black
Formatted: Font color: Black

~~This Amended Declaration is adopted pursuant to Section 1-60(a) of the Common Interest Community Association Act (CICAA) (765 ILCA 160/160) which states: "(a) If a provision hereinafter referred to as the "2017 Declaration"), recorded on September 21, 2017 as Document No. 395980 in the Office of the community instruments does not conform to this Act or to another applicable law because of an error, omission, or inconsistency in the community instruments of the association, the association may correct the error, omission, or inconsistency to conform the community instruments to this Act or to another applicable law by an amendment adopted by vote of two-thirds of the board of directors, without a membership vote."~~—Recorder of Deeds, Jo Daviess County, Illinois.

Formatted: FR1
Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold
Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold
Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

This Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association is adopted pursuant to the provisions of Article IX, Section 1 of the 2017 Declaration. This Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association, the text of which is set forth below, shall become effective following its approval by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Voting Members eligible to vote in person or by Written Ballot at a meeting of the Association duly

October 7, 2020

called for the purpose of changing the 2017 Declaration, provided that notice of such meeting shall be sent to all Voting Members at least thirty (30) days in advance, and upon its recording in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds, Jo Daviess County, Illinois.

This ~~Amended Declaration and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association~~, as adopted, shall be included among Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Governing Documents, as amended from time to time, sometimes described as "~~Community Instruments,~~" which shall be understood to mean all of the following. In the event of any inconsistency in the provisions of any of the Governing Documents, the lower numbered document shall control:

Formatted: Font color: Black

~~1. CICA~~

1. Illinois Common Interest Community Association Act ("CICAA") (765 ILCS 160/1-1 et. seq.)

2. Illinois General Not-For-Profit Corporation Act (805 ILCS 105/101.01 et. seq.)

2. ~~3.~~ Articles of Incorporation

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Hanging: 0.26", No bullets or numbering

3. ~~4.~~ Declaration Covenants & Restrictions

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Hanging: 0.26"

4. ~~5.~~ Bylaws

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Hanging: 0.26", No bullets or numbering

5. ~~Rules~~ 6. ACL Building and Regulations—Environmental Code

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Hanging: 0.26"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Hanging: 0.26", No bullets or numbering

6. ~~7.~~ Board Approved Policies

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Hanging: 0.26", No bullets or numbering

8. Rules and Regulations

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Hanging: 0.26"

7. ~~9.~~ Board Approved Committee/Commission Operations and Procedures

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Hanging: 0.26", No bullets or numbering

RECITALS

~~WHEREAS, the Amended Declaration truly and accurately reflects the intent of the Restated~~

October 7, 2020

~~Declaration, together with the changes contained in the Amended Declaration as revised by the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 160(a) of the Common Interest Community Association Act, and~~

~~WHEREAS, the Amended~~ WHEREAS, the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association (hereinafter referred to as the "Association"), through its Board of Directors, administers the property legally described in Exhibit "A", which is attached hereto and made a part hereof (hereinafter referred to as "The Properties", as further defined in Article I, Section 1(aa));

~~WHEREAS, the 2017 Declaration was recorded on September 21, 2017 as Document No. 395980 in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds, Jo Daviess County, Illinois;~~

~~Declaration supersedes all previous covenants and restrictions governing the Lots and Dwellings covered by this Amended Declaration; and~~

~~WHEREAS, the Board~~ **desires to record a certified copy** ~~and the Owners of a resolution adopted by the Board certifying that this amendment of the~~ the Association desire to amend and restate the 2017 Declaration, replacing it, in its entirety, with this Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association;

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

~~WHEREAS, this Amended and Restated Declaration~~ **has** ~~of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association is adopted pursuant to Article IX, Section 1 of the 2017 Declaration, having been approved by the Board of~~ affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Voting Members eligible to vote in person or by Written Ballot at a meeting of the Association duly called for the purpose of changing the 2017 Declaration, following notice of such meeting sent to all Voting Members at least thirty (30) days in advance thereof; and Directors in order to memorialize the Board's action.

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: FR1, Indent: First line: 0.5", Tab stops: 0", Left + 0.5", Left

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

~~WHEREAS, this Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association shall become effective upon recordation in the Offices of the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County, Illinois.~~

~~NOW, THEREFORE~~ **in furtherance of the foregoing recitals, the attached Amended 2017 Declaration is being recorded for the above stated purposes.** ~~—hereby amended and restated as follows:~~

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

October 7, 2020

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS

Section 1. The following words when used in this ~~Amended~~ Declaration or any Supplementary Declaration (unless the context shall prohibit) shall have the following meanings:

~~“Amended Declaration”~~

~~a. a. “ACL Building Code” shall mean the Amended Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for refer to the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners’ Association Building & Environmental Code, as set forth herein. —amended from time to time.~~

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

~~b. b. “Association” shall mean and refer to the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners’ Association, a non profit not-for-profit corporation organized and existing under the laws of Illinois, its successors and assigns.~~

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

~~c. c. “Board” or “Board of Directors” shall mean those persons elected to manage the affairs of the Association in accordance with CICAA, the Amended this Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Association.~~

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

~~d. d. “Building Height” shall mean the vertical distance measured from the top of the foundation to the highest point of the roof at the front elevation ridge roof line as viewed from the street.~~

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

~~e. e. “Building Line” shall mean a line on a lot that is delineated in the recorded plat of subdivision which denotes the required depth of a front, side, or rear yard.~~

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

~~f. f. “Bylaws” shall mean the bylaws duly adopted by the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners’ Association Amended and Restated Bylaws recorded on November 21, 2017 as document number 396754 in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds, Jo Daviess County, Illinois, and as amended from time to time, and in effect at the time when any action or conduct of a Member an Owner or the Board is taken.~~

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

~~g. g. “CICAA” shall mean the Common Interest Community Association Act (765 ILCS 160)/1 et. seq.) as hereafter amended or supplemented under applicable Illinois law.~~

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

~~h. h. “Common Properties” shall mean and refer to: those areas of land shown on any recorded subdivision plat of the The Properties as “Tract” followed by an alphabetical designation (By way of Example, “Tract A, Tract B, Tract C, Tract D and Tract E in Winchester Unit of Branigar’s Apple Canyon Lake Subdivision according to the plat thereof recorded June 10, 1969, as Document Number 117932 in the Office of the County Recorder.), or by the~~

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

October 7, 2020

designation "Open Space" or "Greenway" or other similar term intended to designate a parcel of real estate as devoted to the common use and enjoyment of the owners of the Lots and Dwellings within The Properties; the lands within and beneath Apple Canyon Lake to the lot lines abutting thereon; and the lake dam conveyed to the Association.

i. "Declaration" shall mean and refer to this Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association, as amended from time to time.

† j. "Driveway" shall mean the surface area by which vehicles regularly enter and exit any Lot, whether paved or not. (See Article III, Section 6.)

‡ k. "Dwelling" shall mean any building located on any Lot or an individual living unit in a Multifamily Structure intended for the shelter and housing of a single family.

§ l. "Dwelling Accessory Building" shall mean a subordinate building or a portion of a Dwelling, the use of which is incidental to the Dwelling and customary in connection with that use.

¶ m. "Emergency" shall mean a danger to or a compromise of the structural integrity of the ~~common areas~~ Common Properties or any of the common facilities of the Association. "Emergency" also includes a danger to life, health or safety.

‡ n. "Garage" shall mean a Structure, either attached to a Dwelling or constructed as a separate Structure, designed and constructed for the primary purpose of storing motor vehicles, boats, or other items of personal property under the provisions belonging to the Owner or Occupant of the Dwelling. ~~No Living Area shall be constructed or maintained in any Garage unless the prior written approval of the Architectural and Environmental Control Committee (AECC) has been obtained. (See Article III, Section 1.)~~

§ o. "Ground Floor Area" shall mean the living area Living Space in that story of the Dwelling which is the first story entirely above the established building grade at the building front.

¶ p. "Legal Entity" shall mean any being that has a legally recognized individual identity, other than a Natural Person, including, without limitation, a partnership, corporation, trust, limited liability company, or any other such being recognized at law.

‡ q. "Living Area Space" shall mean ~~that portion of heated enclosed space within a Dwelling which is enclosed and customarily used~~ utilized for dwelling living, sleeping, eating, cooking, bathing, washing and sanitation purposes but shall. Living Space does not include open porches, open terraces, breezeways, garages, three-season rooms, attics, decks, patios, crawl

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Highlight

October 7, 2020

spaces, ~~attached garages (unless approved in writing by the AECC), carports or Dwelling Accessory Buildings—breezeways, etc.~~

q. ~~r.~~ "Lot," also known as Unit, shall mean any numbered parcel of land, ~~including or any separately identified~~ condominium ~~units~~unit, in any subdivision as shown on any ~~Declaration~~plat of The Properties recorded under the provisions of Article II hereof, but not including any of the Common Properties or the Reserved Properties.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

r. ~~s.~~ "Lot Area" shall mean the area of a horizontal plane bounded by the vertical planes through front, side, and rear ~~lot lines~~Lot Lines.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

s. ~~t.~~ "Lot Line" shall mean any legal boundary of a ~~lot~~Lot as shown on a plat of survey prepared by a licensed surveyor.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

t. ~~u.~~ "Member" shall mean and refer to all those Natural Persons who are defined as ~~Members~~Owners of Lots in the Association or, if the Lots are owned by Legal Entities, the Natural Persons designated by the Legal Entities to function as the Members for the purpose of these Governing Documents as provided in Article IV, Section 1.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering
Formatted: Highlight

u. ~~v.~~ "Multifamily Structure" shall mean and refer to any building containing two (2) or more Dwellings under one roof.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

v. ~~w.~~ "Natural Person" shall mean any human being ~~over the~~who is age of ~~eighteen (18) or older~~ who has the legal capacity to ~~be the grantee of a deed conveying legal or equitable~~hold title to a Lot ~~or Dwelling in the Association.~~

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

w. ~~x.~~ "Occupant" shall mean any person authorized by the Owner to occupy a Dwelling for any period of time, whether with the Owner or alone, or whether as a guest of the Owner or as a tenant. Occupants shall be bound by all of the obligations of ~~the Amended~~this Declaration, the Bylaws, and all Rules and Regulations adopted by the Association. ~~Upon reasonable request, Occupants shall be required to identify themselves to employees or agents of the Association, and to identify the Dwelling they are occupying and the identity of the Owner.~~

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

x. ~~y.~~ "Owner" shall mean the ~~person~~Natural Persons or ~~persons~~Legal Entities whose estates or interests, individually or collectively, aggregate fee simple absolute ownership of ~~any Lot or Dwelling situated in The Properties who has all of the power, control and incidents of ownership as would an owner of fee simple title; provided, however, that no Lot or Dwelling shall be owned by more than three Natural Persons, except that a married couple shall be deemed to be one Natural Person; and no Lot or Dwelling may be owned by more than one Legal Entity.~~a Lot. Notwithstanding any applicable theory of mortgage, Owner shall not mean or refer to the mortgagee unless and until such mortgagee has acquired title pursuant to foreclosure or any proceeding in lieu of foreclosure. ~~(See Article IV.)~~ An Owner may also

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Highlight

October 7, 2020

be referred to as a Member, except in situations in which a matter of legal title to the Lot are involved or at issue. (See Article IV, Section 1)

~~z.~~ z. "Parkway" shall mean the unimproved strip of land between a ~~lot line~~ Lot Line and the improved portion of the street right-of-way.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

~~aa.~~ aa. "The Properties" shall mean and refer to such existing properties which were subject to the

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

Original Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions dated April 22, 1969, and recorded as Document No. 117532, Miscellaneous Book 4, Pages 427 – 442 in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County, Illinois and the additional property described in the Supplementary Declarations listed on Exhibit A attached hereto; and any additions thereto as are added under the provisions of Article II hereof.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

~~bb.~~ bb. "Recreational Vehicle" shall mean and refer to a motor vehicle or Trailer equipped with living space and amenities typically found in a residential living unit including, but not limited to, a motor home.

Formatted: Highlight

~~cc.~~ cc. "Reserved Properties" shall mean any real property owned or acquired by the Association which is used in furtherance of the Association's purposes and objectives, but which is not subject to the restrictions imposed by ~~the Amended~~ this Declaration, and which shall be put to those uses deemed to be in the Association's best interests. (See Article II, Section 3.)

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

~~dd.~~ dd. "Single Family" shall mean one or more persons each related to the other by blood, marriage or adoption, or a group of not more than three persons not all so related, together with their domestic servants, maintaining a common household in a Dwelling.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

~~ee.~~ ee. ~~dd.~~ "Structure" shall mean anything erected or constructed, the use of which requires more or less permanent location on or in the ground, or attached to something having a permanent location on or in the ground.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

~~ee.~~ ee. "Supplementary Declaration" shall mean any change, revision or amendment to ~~the Amended~~ this Declaration approved by a vote of the Voting Members as provided in Article II.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

~~ff.~~ ff. "Trailer" shall mean and refer to a transport vehicle designed to be towed by a motorized vehicle.

Formatted: Highlight

~~gg.~~ gg. "Voting Member" shall mean the Natural Person designated ~~by from among the Owner or Owners of any Lot or Dwelling, including Lots owned by a Legal Entities, by the Owners of that Lot~~ as the one person to whom the Association shall send its notices and invoices, and the one person who has the power to vote on all matters requiring a vote under ~~the Amended~~

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

October 7, 2020

~~Declaration or any Supplementary~~ this Declaration, unless ~~the context shall prohibit otherwise provided herein.~~ (See Article IV, Section 2.)

~~ff.~~ hh. "Water Facility" shall mean any pier, dock, boat ramp, or related facility. A boat house shall not be a "Water Facility" and shall be deemed to be a Dwelling Accessory Building.

~~gg.~~ ii. "Written Ballot" shall mean a written document which clearly indicates the vote of a Voting Member being cast on any issue on which a vote of the Voting Members of the Association is taken. ~~As further provided in the Bylaws, a~~ Written Ballot may be cast by a Voting Member either in person at the meeting called for such vote or by mail or by any other means of delivery, provided that such Written Ballot must be delivered to the offices of the Association prior to the commencement of the meeting called for such vote.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

ARTICLE II PROPERTY SUBJECT TO THIS DECLARATION, ADDITIONS THERETO, AND MERGERS

Section 1. Existing Properties. The real property which is and shall be held, transferred, sold, conveyed and occupied subject to this ~~Amended~~ Declaration is located in Jo Daviess County, Illinois, and is more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto.

Section 2. Other Additions. Upon approval in writing of the Association pursuant to a vote of its Voting Members, the ~~Owner~~ owner of any property who desires to add it to the scheme of this ~~Amended~~ Declaration and to subject it to the jurisdiction of the Association, may file of record a Supplementary Declaration ~~of Covenants and Restrictions~~; provided that any such addition shall have the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes of the Voting Members voting in person or by Written Ballot at a meeting duly called for this purpose, written notice of which shall be sent to all Voting Members not less than ten (10) days and not more than thirty (30) days in advance and shall set forth the purpose of the meeting.

Section 3. Reserved Properties. The Association owns various parcels of land which were conveyed to it by the Developer or which were subsequently acquired by the Association, a complete description of which is set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto, which are not subject to the Amended Declaration, and which are defined as Reserved Properties. The Association may, ~~by a vote of at least two thirds (2/3) of the directors on the Board,~~ acquire additional Reserved Properties when deemed to be in the best interests of the Association, ~~and upon any such acquisition Exhibit B attached hereto will be amended to include such additional Reserved Properties.~~ Any or all of the Reserved Properties may be added to the scheme of ~~the Amended~~ this Declaration upon approval in writing of the Association pursuant to a vote of the Voting Members and by the recording of a Supplementary Declaration ~~of Covenants and Restrictions~~;

October 7, 2020

provided that any such addition shall have the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes of the Voting Members voting ~~in person or~~ by Written Ballot at a meeting duly called for this purpose, written notice of which shall be sent to all Voting Members not less than ten (10) days and not more than thirty (30) days in advance and shall set forth the purpose of the meeting.

~~The five-acre parcel of land on which the marine service center is located and the eighty-acre parcel of land south of the dam, the legal descriptions of which are identified in Items 1 and 2 on Exhibit B attached hereto, were purportedly made subject to the original Declaration by virtue of the recording of Supplementary Declarations covering those parcels. The attempt to add those parcels to the Properties was likely ineffective because the vote of the members of the Association required to add additional property was neither sought nor obtained. Those aforementioned parcels are owned by the Association as Reserved Properties, and they are not subject to the Declaration or to this Amended Declaration.~~

Section 4. Mergers. In the event of a merger or consolidation of the Association with another association as provided in its Articles of Incorporation, its properties, rights and obligations may, by operation of law, be transferred to another surviving or consolidated association or, alternatively, the properties, rights and obligations of the Association as a surviving corporation pursuant to a merger. The surviving or consolidated association may administer the covenants and restrictions established by this ~~Amended~~ Declaration within ~~the~~The Properties together with the covenants and restrictions established upon any other properties as one scheme. No such merger or consolidation, however, shall ~~effect~~affect any revocation, change or addition to the covenants established by this ~~Amended~~ Declaration within ~~the~~The Properties except as hereinafter provided.

ARTICLE III GENERAL RESTRICTIONS

Section 1. Land Use and Building Type. ~~Any Lot which is designated on the Declaration or any Supplementary Declaration listed on Exhibit A with a numeral (without prefix) is intended as a Lot and shall be used for single family residence purposes only. No Structure, except as specifically authorized elsewhere in this Amended Declaration, shall be erected, re-erected or maintained on any Lot, except one Dwelling designed for occupancy by a Single Family, a private Garage containing no more than nine hundred (900) square feet for the sole use of the Owners or Occupants of the Dwelling, Dwelling Accessory Buildings as permitted and Water Facilities for the sole use of the Owners or Occupants of the Dwelling. If approved in writing by the Architectural and Environmental Control Committee (AECC), a Garage may have a Living Area in connection therewith for the sole use of the Owner or Occupant, but any such Living Area~~

Formatted: Highlight

(a) Any Lot which is designated in any of the documents identified on Exhibit A attached hereto shall be governed by this Article III.

October 7, 2020

- (b) All additions, alterations and improvements to Lots are subject to the ACL Building Code and prior approval in writing by the Architectural and Environmental Control Committee (AECC).
- (c) No Structure, except as specifically authorized elsewhere in this Declaration, shall be erected, re-erected or maintained on any Lot, except one (1) Dwelling designed for occupancy by a single family, which may include an attached Garage as well as one (1) detached Garage, Dwelling Accessory Buildings (as permitted), and Water Facilities, all for the sole use of the Owners and Occupants of the Dwelling.
- (d) Not more than thirty percent (30%) of the area of a Lot may be occupied by buildings and Structures, including but not limited to Dwellings, Dwelling Accessory Buildings, Garages and impervious surfaces.
- (e) No Living Space shall be constructed or maintained in any Garage unless the prior written approval of the AECC has been obtained. If approved in writing by the AECC, a Garage may have a Living Space in connection therewith for the sole use of the Owner or Occupant, but any such Living Space shall not be rented separately from the rental of the Dwelling.
- (f) No Structure, Garage, Water Facility or other Dwelling Accessory Building shall be erected prior to construction of a Dwelling, except for shoreline stabilization or watershed projects as prior approved by the AECC.
- (g) No Dwelling, Dwelling Accessory Building or Structure may be erected except in such manner and location as hereinafter provided or as approved in writing by the Association. AECC.
- ~~(h) No items, including but not limited to, equipment, boats, Trailers, campers, Recreational Vehicles, building materials, firewood or any other similar items may be temporarily or permanently stored on a vacant Lot.~~

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.5"

Formatted: Font: Bold

Section 2. Quality of All Structures. It is the intention and purpose of this ~~Amended~~ Declaration to insure that all Dwellings, Dwelling Accessory Buildings and Garages shall be of a quality of design, workmanship and materials which are compatible and harmonious with the natural setting of the area and the other structures within the immediate area and throughout ~~the~~ Properties. ~~Therefore, prior written approval shall be obtained from the AECC with respect to all matters stated in this Amended Declaration as requiring such approval. All Dwellings and Dwelling Accessory Buildings and Garages shall be constructed in accordance with applicable governmental building codes and with such more restrictive standards or building codes as may be required by the AECC or the Board.~~ The Properties.

Formatted: Highlight

Section 3. Building Height. No Dwelling shall be erected, altered or placed upon any Lot which has a Building Height of more than thirty (30) feet. ~~No detached Dwelling Accessory Building, Garage or other Structure shall exceed seventeen (17) feet in height, unless a greater height is approved in writing by the AECC. five (35) feet.~~

October 7, 2020

Section 4. Materials to Be Used and Size of Dwellings. The ground floor area of any Dwelling shall be not less than one thousand (1,000) square feet, ~~and all Dwellings shall contain a minimum of fourteen hundred (1,400) square feet in total Living Area, unless otherwise approved by the AECC.~~ Building exteriors must be made of concrete, masonry, vinyl, brick, frame, log construction, or such other building materials as may be approved by the AECC. All exteriors must be painted, stained or finished. All exteriors must be in colors that are compatible and harmonious with the natural setting and other buildings within the immediate area, as determined by the AECC. The exterior portion of any Structure must be completed within one year from date of commencement of said construction.

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Section 5. Location on the Lot. ~~On and after the effective date of the Restated Declaration, effective November 6, 2011, every~~ Every Dwelling, Dwelling Accessory Building or, Garage, or other Structure, ~~including any constructed or re-constructed after November 6, 2011 shall be set back, measuring from the roof overhang, shall be a minimum of ten (10) feet from the rear and side property lines and twenty-seven (27) feet from the front Lot Line. For corner lots this twenty-seven (27) foot set back shall be applicable to all sides of the Lot which property line. If there is no roof overhang, measuring is from the exterior face of the street right of way. Roof overhangs of Dwellings, Dwelling Accessory Buildings or Garages and decks attached thereto must be at least ten (10) feet inside any side or rear Lot Line.~~ foundation to the lot lines. All Dwellings, Dwelling Accessory Buildings, Garages, attached decks and sanitary systems constructed on any Lot must be not less than one hundred (100) feet from ~~the~~ any existing lake edge as established at pool level of eight hundred (800) feet: above mean sea level, regardless of the survey pin locations of the Lot or greenway space.

Section 6. Driveways. Plans and specifications for ~~driveways~~ Driveways and culverts shall be as approved in writing by the AECC. Before any Driveway is constructed or reconstructed, a plan describing such work shall be submitted to the AECC for its prior written approval.

Section 7. Water Facilities. No Water Facility may be built or maintained on any Lot without the prior written approval of the AECC. In its discretion the ~~Board~~ AECC may approve, prohibit or limit the construction or maintenance or location of any Water Facility and the use thereof. Each Owner shall be responsible for keeping any Water Facility located on his or her Lot in good condition and repair. Any Water Facility that is not maintained in good condition and repair shall be removed from The Properties by the Owner, at the Owner's sole expense, following written notice from the Association.

Formatted: Highlight

Section 8. Home Occupations, Nuisances and Animals. The Board shall have the power to adopt reasonable rules and regulations governing home based occupations, nuisances and the possession of animals. ~~No home, that the Board deems necessary to preserve and promote the health, safety, welfare, and natural setting of the area for the Association and its members.~~ No home-based occupation or profession shall be conducted in any Dwelling, Dwelling Accessory

Formatted: Highlight

October 7, 2020

Building or Garage except those expressly permitted by the Board. No noxious or offensive activity shall be carried on, in or upon any Lot or Dwelling, nor shall anything be done thereon which may be or may become an annoyance or nuisance to the neighborhood. ~~No animals, other than inoffensive common domestic household pets, shall be domiciled on any Lot or in any Dwelling~~ No animals, livestock, fowl or poultry of any kind shall be raised, bred, or kept in any Dwelling or elsewhere on the Property; provided, however, that dogs, cats or other common domestic household pets may be kept in Dwellings subject to rules and regulations adopted by the Board. Any pet causing or creating a nuisance or unreasonable disturbance shall be permanently removed from The Properties upon seven (7) days' written notice from the Board to the Owner of the Dwelling containing such pet and the decision of the Board shall be final.

Formatted: Font color: Black

Section 9. Temporary Structures. No ~~vehicle~~, trailer, basement of an incomplete building, tent, shack, ~~garage~~ accessory building, Garage, except as permitted in Section 1 of this Article, ~~and~~ ~~nor~~ temporary building or structure of any kind shall be used at any time for a ~~residence~~ dwelling, either temporary or permanent on an otherwise vacant lot. Temporary buildings or structures used during any construction, including repair, remodeling or renovation on any Lot, shall be on the same Lot where the construction is being performed, unless the prior written approval of another location is granted by the AECC. All temporary structures shall be removed upon completion of construction.

Section 10. Easements. The recorded plats of subdivision of The Properties have:

- a. Reserved an easement to the Association, as the Developer's successor and assignee, within the area as shown on the plats and marked "Utility Easement," to install, lay, construct, renew, operate and maintain utility pipes and conduits and underground equipment for the purpose of serving ~~the~~The Properties with telephone, electric, water and other utility services; and also reserved the right to cut down and remove any trees or bushes that interfere or threaten to interfere with any such use or right. No Structure or trees shall be placed upon- said easement except that said easement may be used for gardens, shrubs, landscaping or other purposes which do not at any time interfere with the uses and rights of the easement;
- b. Created an easement for surface drainage in and along the streets and such other locations as are shown on the plats marked "Drainage Easement."

Section 11. Wells and Plumbing. All plumbing fixtures, dishwashers, toilets or sewage disposal systems shall be connected to a septic tank system constructed by the Owner and approved by the AECC and by any state, county or municipal authority having jurisdiction. Septic tank systems and locations must be of registered professional engineer design. Said engineer's design plans must be submitted to the AECC for approval and issuance of permit prior to commencing construction. All systems are to be of the closed type; no domestic wastewater is to be discharged into the lake or any adjacent property. Any such sewage disposal system as installed

October 7, 2020

shall be subject to inspection while being constructed and to final approval by the approving authority before backfilling. All wells, plumbing fixtures, and sewage disposal systems shall be subject to inspection from time to time, by ~~the Association~~ a company licensed to conduct such inspections, for the purpose of determining whether ~~they~~ such items are in compliance with applicable statutes, ordinances, codes, or rules and regulations. ~~A fee to cover the reasonable costs of such inspections shall be established from time to time by the Board.~~

Section 12. Nonconforming Uses. All existing structures built ~~before the adoption of the Restated Declaration, effective November 6, 2011, prior to January 1, 2000~~ are exempt from the requirements stated in this Article III; all existing structures built according to a written permit issued by the AECC on or after January 1, 2000 are exempt from the requirements stated in this Article III; provided, however, that if any exempt Dwelling, Dwelling Accessory Building, Garage or other Structure is seventy-five percent (75%) or more destroyed and is being reconstructed, restored or replaced it shall, when completed, be in conformance with the requirements of this Article and the then current applicable building codes. Any new Structure built upon a Lot after the effective date of this ~~Amended~~ Declaration is subject to the restrictions contained in this Article and the then current applicable building codes.

Section 13. Deviations by Agreement with the Association; Other Permitted Uses.

- a. The Association, its successors or assigns, shall have the right to enter into agreements with the grantee Owner of any ~~lot~~ Lot or ~~lots~~ Lots without the consent of grantees Owners of other ~~lots~~ Lots or adjoining or adjacent property to deviate from any of the covenants set forth in this Article III for reasons of practical difficulties or particular hardships evidenced by any such grantee Owner. Any such deviation, which shall be manifested by agreement in writing, shall not establish a precedent and shall not constitute a waiver of any such covenant as to other ~~lots~~ Lots in ~~the~~ The Properties.
- b. Notwithstanding anything herein which is to the contrary, the Association reserves to itself the right to construct and maintain on ~~lots~~ Lots selected by it in ~~the~~ The Properties a Structure or Structures for use by it, and its successors and assigns, as an office or offices or other facilities to be used in connection with the operations and programs conducted by the Association for the benefit of the Owners, or as a location for a water well or wells, water storage facility or sewage treatment facility or facilities, provided no such facility shall be maintained in such manner as to interfere unreasonably with the enjoyment of any ~~lot~~ Lot by the Owners thereof.

Section 14. Leasing Property, CICAA Section 1-35 (a). ~~The~~ All Owners leasing their Lots or Dwellings shall deliver a copy of the signed lease-lease to the Association no later than the date of occupancy or ten (10) days after the lease is signed, whichever comes first. All leases shall be in writing. In the event that an Owner fails to comply with any leasing provisions of set forth in

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Font color: Black

October 7, 2020

the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Governing Documents (also referred to as the Community Instruments) that relate to the use of an individual Lot or otherwise is in violation of this Section, the Association may seek to evict a tenant from the Dwelling or the Common Properties Lot under Article IX of the Code of Civil Procedure, as well as pursue any and all other legal and/or equitable remedies available to the Association as to the Owner. Furthermore, all provisions of the Association's Community Instruments shall be applicable to any person leasing a Lot or Dwelling or Lot and shall be deemed to be incorporated in any lease executed or renewed. Unless The Board may proceed directly against a tenant, at law or in equity under the provisions of Article IX of the Code of Civil Procedure, for any other breach by tenant of any of the provisions of the Association's Community Instruments. The Owner leasing his or her Dwelling or Lot shall not be relieved thereby from any of the Owner's obligations under the Association's Community Instruments or otherwise provided in by law. The Board may also from time to time adopt rules and regulations pertaining to the Community Instruments, the Owner leasing the Lot or Dwelling of Dwellings and Lots, including policies and procedures to further the goals and objectives of this Section.

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Font color: Black, Condensed by 0.15 pt

Formatted: Font color: Black, Condensed by 0.15 pt

Formatted: Font color: Black, Condensed by 0.15 pt

Formatted: Font color: Black, Condensed by 0.15 pt

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Font color: Black

Section 15. Use of The Properties by Non-Owners. Upon reasonable request, Occupants shall deliver a copy of the signed lease to be required to identify themselves to employees or agents of the Association, and to identify the Dwelling they are occupying and the identity of the Owner of such Dwelling.

Formatted: Highlight

Section 16. Combination of Lots. Two (2) or more numbered Lots may be combined by the Owner(s) of the Lots, provided that any Lot combination must be done by written agreement, which written agreement must be prior approved by the AECC and Board and then recorded with the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County. Provided further that any numbered Lots that are combined shall still be treated as separate Lots for purposes of assessments charged by the Association with each combined Lot continuing to be assessed a separate assessment as if the lease is oral, a memorandum of the lease, not later than the date of occupancy or ten (10) days after the lease is signed, whichever occurs first, no combination had taken place.

Formatted: Heading 1

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font color: Black

ARTICLE IV MEMBERSHIP AND VOTING RIGHTS IN THE ASSOCIATION

Section 1. Membership. Membership in the Association shall be the privilege of each Natural Person, and his or her spouse, who is the legal or equitable Owner of any Lot or Dwelling; except that no Lot or Dwelling shall have as Owners more than three (3) For Lots owned by Natural Persons, including their spouses. Any all Owners of the Lot are considered Members of the Association. For a Lot owned by Legal Entity which owns any Lot or Dwelling Entities, such Legal Entities may designate in writing one (1) Natural Person, including his or her spouse, as a who has an ownership interest in the Legal Entity and who shall function

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

October 7, 2020

~~as the Member for such Lot for the purpose of the Association. Each such designation by a Legal Entity shall be in writing these Governing Documents. Every Owner and Member shall provide the name, Association with his or her current mailing address, email address and telephone number of the Member, including any spouse, which person shall be the Voting Member as defined in Section 2.~~

After the initial designation of who the Member(s) for a particular Lot will be, changes in the identity of the ~~Voting Member(s) for such Lots~~ can be made only ~~with the approval(1) upon a bona fide change in the ownership of the Board, or Lot documented by a recorded legal document identifying such ownership change, or (2) upon a showing that the change in the identity of the Voting Member(s) has resulted from a bona fide change in the ownership interest of the Legal Entity making the request, or (3) with the approval of the Board.~~ The Board's decision in all such matters shall be binding and final. Any Natural Person or Legal Entity that holds a legal or equitable interest in any Lot ~~or Dwelling~~ as security for the performance of an obligation shall not be a Member. ~~Every Member, including any spouse of a Member, shall provide the Association with his or her current mailing address and telephone number.~~

Section 2. Voting Rights – One Voting Member. The Owners of each Lot ~~or Dwelling~~ shall designate one Natural Person ~~from among themselves~~ as the Voting Member for said Lot ~~or Dwelling~~. Only the Voting Member, as defined in Article I, Section 1 ~~(ee), (gg) of this Declaration,~~ shall be entitled to vote at any regular or special meeting of the Association, ~~and only the Voting Member shall be sent notice of any regular or special meeting of the Association.~~ In the event there are multiple Owners of a Lot ~~or Dwelling~~ who are Natural Persons, ~~including their spouses,~~ and they fail to designate one Natural Person as the Voting Member, the first person named in the deed conveying title to the Lot ~~or Dwelling~~ shall be deemed to be the Voting Member. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this ~~Amended~~ Declaration, where there is more than one ~~owner~~ Owner of a Lot and the designated Voting Member is not present at a meeting of the membership and has not otherwise voted, the ~~owner~~ Owner in attendance shall be entitled to cast the member vote associated with that ~~unit~~ Lot even if that ~~owner~~ Owner is not the designated Voting Member. The vote must be cast on the day of the meeting prior to the closing of the polls. In the event a Lot ~~or Dwelling~~ is owned by a Legal Entity, ~~it shall designate one the~~ Natural Person ~~that the Legal Entity designates~~ to be the ~~Member for the purposes of these Governing Documents shall also be the~~ Voting Member. The failure of a Legal Entity to designate a Voting Member ~~for its Lot~~ shall be a bar to ~~the~~ such Lot's right to vote on any matter, ~~and the vote of such Lot or Dwelling shall not be counted for the determination of until a quorum.~~ Voting Member is designated for such Lot. Owners, ~~other than a Legal Entity,~~ may change the designation of the Voting Member ~~for their Lots~~ at any time by delivering to the

October 7, 2020

Association a written designation, signed by all ~~of~~ the Owners of the Lot ~~or Dwelling~~, which contains the Voting Member's name, address and telephone number. Any such change in the designation of the Voting Member shall be effective when received by the Association.

Every Lot ~~or Dwelling~~ shall be entitled to one (1) vote, provided that all assessments, charges, fees and fines which are due to the Association are paid in full at the time of the vote. If the Association owns any Lot ~~or Dwelling~~, it shall not have the right to cast any vote, ~~and the vote of any for such Lot or Dwelling shall not be counted for the purpose of determining a quorum.~~ The total number of votes shall not exceed the total number of Lots ~~or Dwellings~~ in The Properties. The vote of a Lot ~~or Dwelling~~ shall not be divisible. If there is a dispute between or among the multiple Owners of a Lot ~~or Dwelling~~ as to who shall be the Voting Member, the vote for any such Lot ~~or Dwelling~~ shall not be counted for any purpose, ~~including determining a quorum. For purposes of determining the votes allowed under this section, when Dwellings in Multifamily Structures are counted, the Lot or Lots upon which such Dwellings are situated shall not be counted.~~

ARTICLE V PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THE COMMON PROPERTIES

Section 1. Members' Easements of Enjoyment. Subject to the provisions of Section 3, every Member shall have a right and easement of enjoyment in and to the Common Properties which are accessible by public way or from Apple Canyon Lake, and such easement shall be appurtenant to and shall pass with the title to every Lot ~~or Dwelling~~.

Section 2. Title to Common Properties and Reserved Properties. The Association has acquired legal title to all of the Common Properties and all of the Reserved Properties, and is the owner of all of the Common Properties and Reserved Properties, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances as of the date of the recording of this ~~Amended~~ Declaration.

Section 3. Extent of Members' Easements. The rights and easements of enjoyment created hereby shall be subject to the following:

a. The right of the Association to prescribe rules and regulations for the use of Common Properties, including but not limited to the number, size, type and speed of boats operated on any waters on ~~the~~The Properties; the taking of fish from waters on ~~the~~The Properties; and such other regulations as the Association deems necessary to the health, safety and welfare of the Association and its Members.

~~a.b.~~ The Association may assign specific piers, docks, or other water facilities situated on or adjacent to the Common Properties for the use of specific Lot Owners.

October 7, 2020

~~b.~~ The right of the Association in accordance with ~~the Amended~~this Declaration, the Articles of

~~c.~~ _____ Incorporation and Bylaws to borrow money for the purpose of improving the Common _____ Properties or the Reserved Properties and in aid thereof to mortgage any or all of the _____ property owned by the Association. In the event of a default upon any such mortgage the ~~lender's~~ rights hereunder shall be limited to a right, after taking possession of such _____ property, to charge admission and other fees as a condition to continued enjoyment by the _____ Members and, if necessary, to open the enjoyment of such properties to a wider public ~~until the mortgage debt is satisfied whereupon the possession of such properties shall be _____ returned to the Association and all rights of the Members hereunder shall be fully _____ restored.~~

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.26" + Indent at: 0.51"

~~e.d.~~ The right of the Association to take such steps as are reasonably necessary to protect the above described properties against foreclosures.

~~d.e.~~ The right of the Association to suspend the enjoyment rights of any Owner or Member for any period during which any assessment, charge or fine remains unpaid; or to suspend the enjoyment rights of any Owner or Member for any period not to exceed ninety (90) days, or to levy and assess such fines and penalties for any violation of ~~the Amended~~this Declaration, the Bylaws, The ACL Building and Environmental Code or the Rules and Regulations, all as determined by the Board.

~~e.f.~~ The right of the Association to charge reasonable admission and other charges or fees for the use, maintenance or preservation of the Common Properties or the Reserved Properties.

~~f.g.~~ The right of the Association to dedicate or transfer all or any part of the Common Properties or the Reserved Properties to any public agency, authority, or utility for the preservation of the public health, welfare and safety and subject to such conditions as may be agreed to by the Association in accordance with its Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws.

~~g.h.~~ _____ The right of the Association, its successors and assigns, to construct on, over and under the Common Properties or the Reserved Properties and to maintain water, electric, gas, telephone, sanitary disposal system and other utility facilities to serve ~~the~~The Properties, the Common Properties or the Reserved Properties- or any portions thereof and to grant easements to others in such regard.

Section 4. Rights of Owners' Spouses. An individual who is married to an Owner (i.e. the Owner's spouse) shall have the same right and easement of enjoyment in and to the Common Properties, subject to the same restrictions as stated herein, as the Owner he or she is married to

Formatted: Highlight

October 7, 2020

has; provided, however, that such spouse shall be required to provide the Association with his or her current name, address and telephone number prior to exercising such rights.

ARTICLE VI COVENANT TO PAY ASSESSMENTS

Section 1. Creation of the Lien and Personal Obligation of Assessments. Each Owner of any Lot ~~or Dwelling~~ by acceptance of a deed therefore, whether or not it shall be so expressed in any such deed or other conveyance, shall be deemed to covenant and agree to pay to the Association: (1) annual assessments or charges; (2) special assessments for capital improvements; such assessments to be fixed, established and collected from time to time as hereinafter provided. The annual and special assessments, together with such interest thereon and costs of collection thereof as hereinafter provided, shall be a charge on the land and shall be a continuing lien upon the Lot ~~or Dwelling~~ against which each such assessment is made. Each such assessment, together with such interest thereon and cost of collection thereof as hereinafter provided, shall also be the personal obligation of each ~~person~~ Natural Person or Legal Entity who was an Owner of such Lot ~~or Dwelling~~ at the time when the assessment fell due.

Section 2. Purpose of Assessments. The assessments levied by the Association shall be used exclusively for the purpose of promoting the recreation, health, safety and welfare of the residents in ~~the~~ The Properties and, in particular, for the improvement and maintenance of all properties, services, and facilities devoted to this purpose and related to the use and enjoyment of the Common Properties, the Reserved Properties or the Dwellings situated upon ~~the~~ The Properties, including, but not limited to, the payment of taxes and insurance thereon and repair, replacement, and additions thereto, and for the cost of labor, equipment, materials, management and supervision thereof.

Section 3. Basis and Amount of Annual Assessments. The Association shall have the power to levy an annual assessment against all of the Lots and Dwellings within ~~the~~ The Properties, except for ~~only~~ those Lots and properties owned by the Association. The annual assessment shall be fixed in accordance with CICAA as amended from time to time.

Section 4. Change in Basis and Maximum of Annual Assessments and Special Assessments. Each year the Board shall prepare an annual budget which shall identify the Association's projected income and expenses for the next year, which shall include an appropriate amount for the reserves, capital expenditures, payment of real estate taxes, and for the repair and replacement of the Association's facilities and equipment. A copy of the proposed annual budget shall be communicated to each ~~Lot or Dwelling owner~~ Owner at least thirty (30) days, but not more than sixty (60) days, prior to the adoption by the Board. The annual budget, approved by the Board, shall be acted upon at the November Board Meeting, or at such other meeting as the Board may determine. If an adopted budget or any separate assessment adopted by the Board would result in the sum of all regular and separate assessments payable in the

October 7, 2020

current fiscal year exceeding one hundred fifteen percent (115%) of the sum of all regular and separate assessments payable during the preceding fiscal year, the ~~common interest community association~~ Association, upon written petition by ~~members~~Voting Members with twenty (20) percent (20%) of the votes of the ~~association~~Association delivered to the Board within fourteen (14) days of the Board action, shall call a meeting of the ~~members~~Voting Members within thirty (30) days of the date of delivery of the petition to consider the budget or separate assessment; unless a majority of the total votes of the ~~members~~Voting Members are cast at the meeting to reject the budget or separate assessment, it shall be deemed ratified.

Section 5. Special Assessments not Included in the Annual Budget. Assessments for additions and alterations to the common areas or to ~~association~~Association-owned property not included in the adopted annual budget, shall be separately assessed and are subject to approval of a majority of the total Voting Members voting in person or by Written Ballot at a meeting duly called for this purpose, written notice of which shall be sent to all Voting Members ~~at least~~not less than ten (10) and not more than thirty (30) days in advance and shall set forth the purpose of the meeting.

Section 6. Special Assessments for Emergencies or Mandated by Law. In accordance with the provisions of CICA Section 1-45 (e), special assessments for expenditures relating to emergencies or mandated by law may be adopted by the Board without being subject to member approval or the provisions of CICA Section 1-45(c) or (f). As used herein, "emergency" means a danger to or a compromise of the structural integrity of the common areas or any of the common facilities of the ~~common interest community~~Association. "Emergency" also includes a danger to the life, health or safety of the membership.

~~Section 7. Quorum for Any Action Authorized Under Sections 4 and 5, CICA Section 1-40 (b) (1). The quorum required for any action requiring a vote under Section 4 and 5 hereof shall be twenty percent (20%) of the Voting Members eligible to vote at such meeting.~~

Formatted: Highlight

Section 78. Due Date of Assessments. The annual assessments provided for herein shall become due and payable on the first day of March of said year, or on such other date or dates as may be established by the Board. The due date of any special assessment under Section 5 or 6 hereof shall be fixed in the resolution authorizing such assessment. Written notice of the assessment shall be sent to the Voting Member designated for each Lot ~~or Dwelling~~subject thereto. ~~If the assessment is not paid within ninety (90) days of the date on which it is due, written notice shall be sent to every Owner of that Lot or Dwelling at the last address on file at the Association office. subject thereto.~~

Section 89. Proof of Payment. The Association, upon demand and payment of a reasonable service fee ~~of not more than \$25.00~~as determined by the Board, shall at any time furnish to any Owner liable for said assessment a certificate in writing signed by an authorized agent of the

October 7, 2020

Association, setting forth whether said assessment has been paid. Such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of payment of any assessment therein stated to have been paid.

Section 910. Effect of Non-Payment of Assessment: The Personal Obligation of the Owner; the Lien; Remedies of Association. ~~If the assessments are not paid on the date when due (being the dates specified in Section 8 hereof), then such assessment shall become delinquent and shall, together with such interest thereon and cost of collection thereof as hereinafter provided, thereupon become a continuing lien on the property which shall bind such property in the hands of the then Owner, his heirs, devisees, personal representatives and assigns. The personal obligation of the then Owner to pay such assessment, however, shall remain his personal obligation for the statutory period. If the assessment is not paid within thirty (30) days after the delinquency date, the assessment shall bear interest from the date of delinquency at a rate as determined by the Board from time to time. The Association may bring an action at law against the Owner personally obligated to pay the same or foreclose the lien against the property. There shall be added to the amount of such assessment the costs of preparing and filing the complaint in such action, and in the event a judgment is obtained, such judgment shall include interest on the assessment as above provided and a reasonable attorney's fee to be fixed by the court together with the costs of the action. Any assessments (or installments thereof), other charges or expenses, including, but not limited to, annual assessments, special assessments and duly imposed fines, which an Owner is required to make or is liable for hereunder which are not paid when due shall be deemed delinquent and the Board shall have the right to assess a late fee for the delinquent payment. Additionally, if an assessment, charge or expense is not paid within thirty (30) days after the due date, the Board shall have those rights and remedies to enforce such collection as shall be provided or permitted by law and equity including, but not limited to, bringing suit for and on behalf of the Association to enforce collection of the amount due, the costs of said suit, and other fees and expenses together with interest, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees and managing agent fees associated with collection of unpaid assessments, along with any and all interest, costs and other sums set forth above which the Association is entitled to receive. Without limiting the forgoing, if any Owners shall fail to pay any assessments, charges or expenses required to be paid, the Board shall have such rights and remedies;~~

Formatted: Highlight

- (a) ~~The right to enforce the collection of such defaulting Owner's assessments, charges or payments, together with interest thereon, and all fees, expenses and costs including attorneys' fees, managing agent fees, and court costs, incurred in the collection thereof;~~
- (b) ~~The right to foreclose the lien created in favor of the Association for unpaid assessments and other charges, together with interest, costs, attorneys' fees, managing agent fees and other expenses associated with the cost of collecting same provided for in Section 1 of this Article. The Board, acting on behalf of the other Owners, shall have the power to bid in the interest so foreclosed at foreclosure sale, and to acquire and hold, lease, mortgage and convey any interest so acquired. To the fullest extent permitted by law, any court shall be authorized to restrain the defaulting Owner from reacquiring his or her interest at such foreclosure sale; and~~

Formatted: Font color: Black

October 7, 2020

- (c) The right to take possession of such defaulting Owner's interest in their Dwelling and Lot, to maintain for the benefit of all the Owners an action for possession in the matter prescribed in the Illinois Eviction Act (735 ILCS 5/9-101 et. seq.), as amended, and to execute leases of such defaulting Owner's interest in their Dwelling and Lot and apply rents derived therefrom against such unpaid assessments, charges or expenses.

Section 104. Subordination of the Lien to Mortgages. The lien for the assessments provided for herein shall be subordinated to the lien of any mortgage or mortgages now or hereafter placed upon ~~the~~The Properties subject to assessment; provided, however, that such subordination shall apply only to the assessments which have become due and payable prior to a sale or transfer of such property pursuant to a decree of foreclosure, or any other proceeding in lieu of foreclosure. Such sale or transfer shall not relieve such property from liability for any assessments thereafter becoming due, nor from the lien of any such subsequent assessment.

Section 112. Exempt Property. The following property subject to this Declaration shall be exempted from the assessments, charge and lien created herein: (a) all properties to the extent of any easement or other interest therein dedicated and accepted by local public authority and devoted to the public use; (b) all Common Properties; and (c) Reserved Properties; ~~(d) all properties exempted from taxation by the laws of the State of Illinois, upon the terms and to the extent of such legal exemption.~~ Notwithstanding any provisions herein, no land or improvements devoted to dwelling use shall be exempt from said assessments, charges or liens.

Section 123. Restricted Lots. The Owner of Restricted Lots are those Lots without any Lot upon which no Structure has been erected may enter into on the Lot and for which an agreement with has been entered between the Owner of the Lot and the Association wherein the Owner agrees agreed that said Lot shall remain forever vacant open space upon which no Structure of any kind shall be erected, except one requested by the Association and agreed upon by the Owner and the Board. All agreements creating a such Restricted Lot shall be in substance and form acceptable to the Board and suitable for recording, and when agreed to by the Association shall agreements were required to be recorded with the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County, Illinois. Restricted Lots subject to such an agreement shall, beginning in the year following the recording of such agreement, be liable for only sixty (60) percent (60%) of any future annual assessments. Restricted Lots shall continue to remain liable for any Special Assessments approved pursuant to Section 5 or 6 hereof of this Article. The Owner of a Restricted Lot shall have all of the rights and privileges of any other Owner, except as modified by such agreement, and shall continue to remain responsible for the maintenance of such Restricted Lot as is the Owner of any other vacant Lot. The list of approved Restricted Lots is attached hereto on Exhibit "C". Lots which have previously been approved by the Board as Restricted Lots may remain as Restricted Lots unless the Owner of the Lot and the Board agree to rescind the Restricted Lot agreement, in which case the Lot shall be treated in the same manner as all other

Formatted: Highlight

October 7, 2020

non-Restricted Lots for assessment purposes. No additional Lots may be granted Restricted Lot status following the recording of this Declaration.

Section 134. Senior Exemption. If a DwellingLot qualifies for the Senior Citizen Assessment Freeze (“Senior Exemption”) as provided in the Jo Daviess County, Illinois Ordinances in effect from time to time, such DwellingLot shall be exempt from any increase in future annual assessments which become effective the year after the granting of such Senior Citizen Assessment Freeze Exemption. The Owner of a DwellingLot which qualifies for this Senior Exemption shall, on an annual basis before January 1st each year, provide the Association with satisfactory evidence that the DwellingLot has qualified for the Senior Assessment Freeze Exemption program for the following year. Such DwellingLot shall continue to remain liable for any Special Assessments approved pursuant to Section 5 or 6 hereof. All such Senior Exemptions shall end on the year immediately following the first to occur of the conveyance or transfer of the DwellingLot to a third party or the death of the last surviving Owner entitled to such Senior Citizen Assessment Freeze Exemption.

Formatted: Heading 1

ARTICLE VII ARCHITECTURAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL COMMITTEE

Section 1. Powers of the Committee.

- a. **Generally.** No Dwelling, Multifamily Structure, Dwelling Accessory Building, Structure, Driveway, Water Facility, fence, wall or other structure of any type or kind may be commenced, erected nor shall any exterior addition to or change or alteration be commenced or made on any Lot or on any of the Common Properties or Reserved Properties subject to this Amended Declaration without the prior written approval of the Architectural and Environmental Control Committee (AECC); provided, that, additions, alterations or changes to the Common Properties and Reserved Properties may be made by the Board. Such approval shall be obtained only after written application has been made to the AECC by the Owner of the Lot requesting authorization from the AECC. Such written application shall be in the manner and form prescribed from time to time by the AECC and shall be accompanied by two (2) complete sets of plans and specifications for any such proposed construction or improvement. Such plans shall include plot plans showing the location of all improvements existing upon said Lot and the location of the improvement proposed to be constructed or placed upon said Lot, each properly and clearly designated; said plans shall also show the building lines shown on the recorded plat of subdivision. Such plans shall set forth the color and composition of all exterior

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.26", Hanging: 0.25"

October 7, 2020

materials proposed to be used, together with any other material or information which the AECC may require from time to time. —All plans, drawings and other documentation required to be submitted to the AECC shall be as the AECC may require. There shall also be submitted, where applicable, the permits or reportsapprovals required under Article III of the Amended-Declaration. (See, Art. III, Sec. 11, —Wells and Plumbing.) All such plot plans shall be prepared by either a registered land surveyor or engineer or architect; except that plans for Driveways, Water Facilities, walls or fences need not be prepared by such professionals. No grading of the lot shall be permitted without the prior written approval of the AECC. The AECC shall have the power, subject to the Board's approval, to adopt building codes, guidelines and standards governing the quality, design, workmanship and materials and colors to be used for all proposed construction or improvements.

b. **Power of Disapproval.** The AECC may refuse to grant permission to construct, place or make the requested improvements when:

- i. The plans, specifications, drawings or other material submitted are themselves inadequate or incomplete, or show the proposed improvement to be in violation of any of the restrictions contained in the Amendedthis Declaration, or the provisions of any applicable governmental building code, or the codes, guidelines or standards approved by the AECC or the Board.
- ii. The design or the siting of a proposed improvement is not in harmony with the general surroundings of the subject lotLot or with adjacent buildings or structures.
- iii. The proposed improvement, or any part thereof, would in the opinion of the AECC be contrary to the interests, welfare or rights of all or part of the Owners.

c. **Power to Grant Variances, Adopt Rules.**

- i. The AECC may allow reasonable variances or adjustments of this Amended Declaration where the literal application thereof would result in unnecessary hardship, provided however, that any such variance or adjustment that is granted is in conformity with the general intent and purposes of this Amended-Declaration; and that the granting of the variance or adjustment will not be materially detrimental or injurious to other lots in the development. The granting of a variance in any specific case shall not be construed as a precedent or authorization to compel the granting of a variance in any other case, however similar the circumstances may be.

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Right + Aligned at: 0.76" + Indent at: 1.01"

October 7, 2020

- ii. The AECC may adopt rules, including rules to be applied in requests for variances, building requirement forms, general building procedure requirements including, but not limited to, adoption or acceptance of national or local building codes, either in whole or in part, for use during the construction of improvements upon the Lots, the Common Properties or the Reserved Properties, provided that all such rules and general requirements be approved by the majority of the Board of Directors prior to implementation and use.

- d. **Power to Charge Fees.** The AECC shall recommend to the Board of Directors a schedule of fees to be charged to consider the application of any Owner, and a schedule of fees for the inspection services necessary for all improvements, whether performed by the Association or by any outside source. Such fee schedules shall be approved by the Board from time to time, and shall be uniformly charged to all Owners. All funds collected shall be paid to the Association.

- e. **Review of AECC Action by Board.** The Owner of any Lot or Dwelling whose application to the AECC has been denied may, within sixty (60) days of such denial, appeal such denial to the Board. Such appeal shall be in writing and shall state all reasons why the AECC's decision was either erroneous as a matter of fact or arbitrary and capricious. At the next regular meeting of the Board, the Board shall consider the Owner's appeal and review the AECC's action. The Board shall either affirm the action of the AECC; refer the matter back to the AECC for further consideration; or determine that the action of the AECC was erroneous as a matter of fact or arbitrary and capricious, in which case the Board may direct that the application be granted. The action of the Board shall be final and binding.

Commented [RK1]: Note to KJ: Is this still a reasonable appeal since 2/3 of the board comprise 2/3 of the AECC?

Section 2. Duties of the AECC. The AECC shall approve or disapprove proposed improvements within sixty (60) days after all required information has been submitted to it. If the AECC fails to approve or disapprove the proposed improvements within sixty (60) days, it shall provide the Owner with a written explanation of the reasons it has failed to act. In acting upon such applications, the AECC members may discuss and act on any such applications either at a regularly scheduled meeting or at a special meeting. Members of the AECC may attend such meetings in person or by telephone. One copy of the submitted material shall be retained by the AECC for its permanent file. All notifications to applicants shall be in writing and, in the event that such notification is one of disapproval, it shall specify the reason or reasons for such disapproval.

Section 3. Composition of the AECC. The AECC shall be comprised of not less than three (3) representatives who shall be appointed by the Board, and who shall be subject to removal by the Board at any time. The Board shall appoint at least one (1) architect, licensed engineer or building contractor to the AECC, if one is available. In the event the Board is unable to appoint an architect, licensed engineer or building contractor to the AECC, the Association may retain

October 7, 2020

one or more of the same from time to time to consult and advise the AECC in the performance of its duties. The majority of the members of the AECC shall also be Members of the Association Board. Any vacancies existing from time to time shall be filled by appointments made by the Board. The AECC, subject to the Board's approval, may engage such inspectors or agents to assist it in the performance of its duties and responsibilities. No member of the AECC shall participate in the review of any application in which the member has any interest either as an owner or as the provider of any services for which the member is compensated.

Section 4. Liability of the AECC and the Association. ~~Neither the AECC nor any agent thereof, nor the Association, shall be responsible in any way for the defects in any plans, specifications or other materials submitted to it, nor for any of the work done according thereto. No approval of plans and specifications submitted by an Owner pursuant to this Article by the AECC or Board shall be construed as representing or implying that such plans and specifications shall, if followed, result in properly designed improvements. Such approvals shall in no event be construed as representing or guaranteeing that any Dwelling, Multifamily Structure, Dwelling Accessory Building, Structure, Driveway, Water Facility, fence, wall or other structure of any type or other improvement built in accordance therewith shall be built in a good and workmanlike manner. Neither the Association, the Board nor the AECC shall be responsible or liable for any defects in any plans or specifications submitted, revised or approved pursuant to the terms of this Article, any loss or damages to any Natural Person or Legal Entity arising out of the approval or disapproval of any plans or specifications, any loss or damage arising from the non-compliance of such plans or specifications with any governmental ordinances and regulations, nor any defects in construction undertaken pursuant to such plans and specifications.~~

Formatted: Highlight

Section 5. Duty of Inspection. The AECC shall have the power and the right to inspect the work being performed to assure compliance with the applicable provisions of ~~the Amended~~ this Declaration and all applicable codes and regulations, and the approved drawings. Approval of plans or work by the AECC shall not be deemed to be a determination that the applicable codes and regulations have been satisfied.

Section 6. Satellite Dishes and Antennas. ~~No radio or television antennas or satellite dishes shall be affixed or placed upon or on any portion of the Common Properties or Reserved Properties without the prior written approval of the AECC or Board. The placement, installation and use of antennas and satellite dishes on or upon the Dwellings and Lots by Owners shall be subject to all applicable provisions of the rules and regulations adopted by the Board. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the installation of any satellite dish or antenna shall be at the Owner's sole risk and sole cost and expense. This provision, however, is not intended to interfere with the Owners' rights to adequate reception under the 1996 Telecommunications Act or other present, or future, federal or Illinois statutes.~~

Formatted: Highlight

Section 7. Remedies for Un-Approved Additions and Alterations. ~~If an addition, alteration or improvement that requires AECC approval hereunder is made to a Dwelling or Lot by an Owner~~

Formatted: Highlight

October 7, 2020

without the prior written approval of the AECC or Board, then the Association may, at the discretion of the Board and in addition to all other rights of enforcement provided to the Association as set forth in this Declaration, the Bylaws, Rules and Regulations or as provided at law or in equity, take any of the following actions:

- (a) Require the Owner to remove the addition, alteration or improvement and restore the Dwelling and Lot to the condition that existed prior to the making of the addition, alteration or improvement, all at the Owner's expense; or
- (b) If the Owner refuses or fails to properly perform the work required under subsection (a) hereof, the Board may cause such work to be done and may charge the Owner for the cost thereof as determined by the Board; or
- (c) Ratify the action taken by the Owner, and the Board may, but shall not be required to, condition such ratification upon the same conditions that it may impose upon the giving of its prior approval under this Article.

Commented [RK2]: This section is being deleted and will be replaced as an attachment by the "First Amendment to the Amended Declaration to Conform to the Common Interest Community Association Act."

ARTICLE VIII WATER SERVICE

Section 1. Every Owner of a Lot in ~~the~~The Properties which is subject to this Article shall be presumed conclusively to have covenanted by accepting a deed of conveyance to a Lot, regardless of the means of acquisition of title, to pay charges for water service available to the Lot by a common water system at a monthly rate as fixed by the utility furnishing water service, and approved by the Illinois Commerce Commission from and after the availability of water service for connection to the Lot. At such time as the Owner shall elect to have water service connected, he ~~or she~~ shall pay a connection charge to the utility in an amount approved by the Illinois Commerce Commission. Thereafter, he ~~or she~~ shall pay for consumption of water at reasonable rates subject to a minimum monthly charge established by the servicing utility and authorized by the Illinois Commerce Commission. Said availability, consumption and usage rates may be billed quarterly, semiannually, or annually at the option of the serving public utility. Unpaid charges shall become a lien upon the ~~lot~~Lot or ~~lots~~Lots served as of the date the same become due. Owner shall not drill or permit the drilling of a water well upon his ~~or her~~ property, unless the utility furnishing water service is unable to provide adequate water service to that Lot. All water wells must be first approved by the AECC.

ARTICLE IX GENERAL PROVISIONS

October 7, 2020

Section 1. Term and Amendment. The covenants and restrictions of this ~~Amended~~ Declaration shall run with and bind the land, and shall inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the Association, or the Owner of any land subject to this ~~Amended~~ Declaration, their respective legal representatives, heirs, successors and assigns. Said covenants shall be automatically extended for successive periods of one (1) year, unless this ~~Amended~~ Declaration is amended by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Voting Members eligible to vote in person or by Written Ballot at a meeting of the Association duly called for the purpose of changing ~~the Amended~~ Declaration, written notice of which shall be sent to all Voting ~~members at least~~ Members not less than ten (10) and not more than thirty (30) days ~~in advance.~~ ~~At any prior to~~ such meeting a quorum shall consist of twenty percent (20%) of all eligible Voting Members. All such amendments shall be effective upon filing with the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County, Illinois, a certified copy of a resolution adopted by the Board certifying that the amendment of this ~~Amended~~ Declaration has been approved by the required vote.

Section 2. Notices. Any notice required to be sent to any Voting Member or Owner under the provisions of this ~~Amended~~ Declaration shall be deemed to have been properly delivered when sent by a Prescribed Delivery Method to the last known address (or electronic address) of such Voting Member or Owner on the records of the Association at the time of delivery.

"Prescribed Delivery Method" means (i) mailing or delivering; (ii) posting in The Apple Core or another Association publication that is routinely mailed to all Members; or (iii) any other delivery method (including Acceptable Technological Means) that has been approved in writing by the Owner or Voting Member and is authorized by the Community Instruments.

"Acceptable Technological Means" include without limitation, electronic transmission over the Internet or other network, whether by direct connection, intranet, telecopier, electronic mail, and any generally available technology that, by rule of the Association, is deemed to provide reasonable security, reliability, identification, and verifiability.

~~**Section 3. Enforcement.** Enforcement of this Amended Declaration shall be by any proceeding at law or in equity against any person or persons violating or attempting to violate any covenant or restriction, either to restrain violation or to recover damages, and against the land to enforce any lien created by these covenants; and failure by the Association or any Owner to enforce any covenant or restriction herein contained shall in no event be deemed a waiver of the right to do so thereafter.~~

- Formatted: Highlight
- Formatted: Font color: Black, Highlight
- Formatted: Font: Bold, Font color: Black

~~**Section 4. Severability.** Invalidation of any one of these covenants or restrictions by judgment, court order, or law shall not affect any other provisions which shall remain in full force and effect.~~

- Formatted: Font color: Black
- Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Font color: Black

October 7, 2020

Section 4. No Waiver. No covenants, restrictions, conditions, obligations, or provisions contained in this Declaration shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason or any failure to enforce the same, irrespective of the number of violations or breaches which may occur.

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Font color: Black

Section 5. Gender Neutrality. Unless the provisions of this Declaration require otherwise, words imparting the masculine gender shall include the feminine, words imparting the feminine gender shall include the masculine, words imparting the singular number shall include the plural, and words imparting the plural shall include the singular.

Section 6. Rule Against Perpetuities. The covenants, restrictions, conditions, reservations, easements, charges, liens and other provisions as delineated in this Declaration shall run with and bind the land so as to insure the Owners full enjoyment and benefit of their Dwellings and Lots. If, and to the extent that, any of the covenants, restrictions, conditions, reservations, easements, charges, liens or other provisions contained in this Declaration would otherwise be unlawful or void for violation of:

Formatted: Highlight

- (a) The rule against perpetuities;
- (b) The rule restricting restraints on alienation; or
- (c) Any other applicable statute or common law rule analogous thereto or otherwise imposing limitations upon the time for which such covenants may be valid, then the provision concerned shall continue and endure only after the expiration of a period of twenty-one (21) years after the death of the last to survive of the class of persons consisting of all of the lawful descendants of Tom Hanks, professional actor and star of such films as Sleepless in Seattle, Apollo 13 and Saving Private Ryan, living at the date this Declaration is recorded.

Section 7. Liberal Construction. The provisions of this Declaration shall be liberally construed to effectuate its purpose of creating a uniform plan for the operation of a first-class development.

Section 8. Headings/Captions. The Article and Section headings are intended for convenience only and shall not be construed with any substantive effect in this Declaration. In the event of any conflict between statements made in recitals to this Declaration and the provisions contained in the body of this Declaration, the provisions in the body of this Declaration shall govern.

Section 9. Waiver and Release of Claims. To the extent allowed by any policy of insurance owned by him or her, each Owner hereby waives and releases any and all claims which he or she may have against any other Owner, the Association, its officers, members of the Board, the managing agent of the Association, if any, and their respective employees and agents for damage to the Common Properties, the Dwellings and Lots, or to any personal property located therein caused by fire or other casualty, to the extent that such damage is covered by fire or other form of casualty insurance.

Section 10. Security. The Association may, but is not obligated to, provide measures of security on The Properties from time to time; however, the Association is not a provider of security and shall have no duty or obligation to provide any security on The Properties. The

October 7, 2020

obligation to provide security lies solely with each Owner individually. The Association shall not be held liable for any loss or damage by reason of failure to provide adequate security or ineffectiveness of security measures undertaken.

ARTICLE X REMEDIES

Section 1. Enforcement.

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Bold, Font color: Black

02/18/16

Revised 05/01/16

Board Approved 05/21/16

Revised 05/21/17In addition to or in conjunction with all other rights herein granted to the Association, the Association or any Owner, their successors or assigns, shall have the right to enforce the provisions of this Declaration, Bylaws and Rrules and Rregulations of the Association by any proceeding at law or in equity against any Natural Person(s) or Legal Entity or Entities violating or attempting to violate any such provisions, and further the Association shall have the right to levy a fine, following notice and an opportunity to be heard, against such Natural Person(s) or Legal Entity or Entities. All rights and remedies may be exercised at any time and from time to time, cumulatively, or otherwise, and failure of the Association or any Owner to enforce any such provisions shall in no way be deemed a waiver of the right to do so thereafter. All costs and expenses incurred by the Association in connection with any such proceedings or with exercising the Board's self-help rights as set forth in Section 2 of this Article, including, but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs and managing agent fees, shall be assessed against any Owner violating any such provisions and shall be a charge and constitute a lien on his or her Lot and be enforceable in the same manner as unpaid assessments as provided in this Declaration and recoverable by the Association as part of any such proceedings.

Section 2. Board Self Help. In the event of a violation or breach by an Owner of the provisions, covenants or restrictions of this Declaration, the By-Laws, or rules or regulations of the Board, where such violation or breach may be cured or abated by affirmative action, then the Board, upon not less than ten (10) days' prior written notice to the Owner, shall have the right to enter upon that part of the Property, including, but not limited to, any Dwelling exterior and Lot, where the violation or breach exists to remove or rectify the violation or breach at the expense of the Owner in violation or breach, and the Board, or its agents, shall not thereby be deemed guilty in any manner of trespass; provided, that, if the violation or breach exists within a Dwelling, judicial proceedings must be instituted before any items of construction can be altered or demolished.

Section 3. Managing Agent Fees. Any and all managing agent fees and costs associated with the collection of delinquent assessments and/or curing an Owner's or Occupant's breach or violation of the Declaration, Bylaws and/or Rrules and Rregulations shall be assessed back to the defaulting Owner's account and become an additional obligation and charge of such delinquent

October 7, 2020

Owner. To assist the Association in collecting delinquent assessments and/or curing violations of the Declaration, By-Laws and/or Rrules and Rregulations from the Owners, the managing agent, if any, may perform the following duties: prepare and issue delinquency notices, prepare and issue statutory and other demand letters, order an ownership (tract) search to verify current ownership of the delinquent Lot, prepare and record a lien against the delinquent Lot for unpaid assessments or other charges and any such other services performed in an effort to assist the Association in the collection of delinquent assessments or other charges or curing breaches or violations of the Declaration, Bylaws and Rrules and Rregulations. The managing agent is entitled to receive a reasonable fee for such services performed, as more fully outlined in the management agreement entered into between the managing agent and the Association.

Section 4. Fees Associated with Mortgage Foreclosure. All expenses and fees, including, but not limited to, managing agent fees, attorneys' fees and court costs, incurred by the Association as a result of the Association being included as a defendant in a mortgage foreclosure action shall be assessed back to the Owner sued in such foreclosure action and become an additional obligation and charge of such delinquent Owner.

ARTICLE XI

MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS

Section 1. Maintenance by Owners. Each Owner shall be responsible for the maintenance, repair, and replacement of his or her Dwelling and Lot at such Owner's sole cost and shall keep his or her Dwelling and Lot in good condition and repair.

Section 2. Owner Failure to Maintain. If, in the judgment of the AECC, an Owner fails to maintain his or her Dwelling and Lot in good condition and repair or the appearance of such Owner's Dwelling and Lot is not of the quality of that of other Dwellings and Lots in The Properties or in compliance with rules and regulations adopted by the Board from time to time, then the Association may, in its discretion, take the following action:

- (i) The AECC may advise the Owner of the work that must be done and allow the Owner at least twenty (20) days (or less in the case of an emergency) to cause the work to be done; and
- (ii) If the work is not done to the satisfaction of the AECC, in its sole judgment, then the AECC may levy a fine and, in addition, the Board may seek injunctive relief, and/or enter upon such Owner's Dwelling and Lot to cause such work to be done and the cost thereof shall be a charge payable by the Owner to the Association upon demand in the same manner as unpaid assessments.

Section 3. Willful and Negligent Damage. If, due to the act or omission of an Owner, his or her family, tenants, servants, pets, guests or invitees or other authorized Occupant of the Owner's Dwelling or Lot, damage is caused to the Common Properties or Reserved Properties and

October 7, 2020

maintenance, repairs, or replacements shall be required thereby, which would otherwise be an Association expense, then such Owner shall pay for such damage and such maintenance, repairs, and replacements, as determined by the Board, and the cost of such maintenance, repairs, or replacements, and any damage, shall be added to and become a part of the assessment to which such Owner's Lot is subject and the Association shall have a lien upon said Lot enforceable in the manner and to the extent herein set forth in this Declaration and the failure of such Owner to pay such costs shall carry with it the same consequences as the failure to pay any assessments levied hereunder when due, as herein provided.

END OF TEXT OF DECLARATION

This instrument was prepared by, and upon recording return to:

KEAY & COSTELLO, P.C.
128 South County Farm Road
Wheaton, Illinois 60187
630-690-6446

October 7, 2020

STATE OF ILLINOIS _____)
)SS
COUNTY OF _____)

The undersigned is Secretary of the Board of Directors of Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association and by my signature below do hereby certify that the attached is a true, correct, and accurate copy of the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association and the following is a true, correct and accurate copy of a resolution of the Board of Directors of Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association regarding the approval of such document by the Voting Members of the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association.

EXECUTED this _____ day of _____, 20__.

Being the Secretary of Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association

I, _____, a Notary Public, hereby certify that on the above date, the above member of the Board of Directors of Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association, which Board member is personally known to me, appeared before me and acknowledged that, as such Board member, he/she signed this instrument as his/her free and voluntary act of said Board for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

BY: _____

October 7, 2020

Resolution of the Board of Directors of Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association

WHEREAS, a meeting of the Board of Directors ("Board") of Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association (the "Association") was duly called and held pursuant to the Illinois General Not-For-Profit Corporation Act of 1986, the Illinois Common Interest Community Association Act ("Act"), and the Association's Declaration and Bylaws, and proper notice having been provided to the members as required by the Act, a quorum of the Board being present at the meeting as identified below, and the meeting being properly convened and proceeding with Association business including resolutions and amendments and specifically the resolution set forth herein;

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association ("Amended Declaration") was proposed to the Voting Members of the Association at a meeting of the Voting Members;

WHEREAS, notice of such meeting of the Voting Members was provided to Voting Members at least thirty (30) days in advance thereof; and

WHEREAS, at least two-thirds (2/3) of the Voting Members eligible to vote approved the proposed Amended Declaration.

NOW THEREFORE, in furtherance of the above stated determinations, objectives and goals, the Board, by resolution and on behalf of the Association, does hereby adopt the following Resolution as follows:

1. The Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association, having been approved by at least two-thirds (2/3) of the Voting Members in the Association eligible to vote and upon recordation in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County, Illinois, shall replace, in its entirety, the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended Declaration to Conform to the Common Interest Community Association Act which was recorded on September 21, 2017 as Document No. 395980 in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds, Jo Daviess County, Illinois.

End of Text of Resolution

| October 7, 2020

| _____
| _____
| _____

ACLPOA COVENANTS MADE SIMPLE

An easy to understand guide for why the covenants need to change

10/07/20

	Existing Covenants	Proposed Covenants	Reason for Change
<p>Preamble</p>	<p>AMENDED DECLARATION TO CONFORM TO THE COMMON INTEREST COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION ACT This document (hereafter referred to as the "Amended Declaration") is recorded for the purpose of amending and restating the Amended and Restated Covenants & Restrictions, recorded on November 6, 2008, with an effective date of November 6, 2011, (hereafter referred as the "Restated Declaration").</p> <p>This Amended Declaration is adopted pursuant to Section 1-15 (b) of the Common Interest Community Association Act (CICCA) (765 ILCA 160/160) which states: "(a) If a provision of the community instruments does not conform to this Act or to another applicable law because of an error, omission, or inconsistency in the community instruments of the association may correct the error, omission, or inconsistency to conform the community instruments to this Act or to another applicable law by an amendment adopted by vote of two-</p>	<p>AMENDED AND RESTATED DECLARATION OF COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE APPLE CANYON LAKE PROPERTY OWNERS' ASSOCIATION This instrument is recorded for the purpose of replacing, in its entirety, the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended Declaration to Conform to the Common Interest Community Association Act (hereinafter referred to as the "2017 Declaration"), recorded on September 21, 2017 as Document No. 395980 in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds, Jo Daviess County, Illinois.</p> <p>This Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association is adopted pursuant to the Provisions of Article IX, Section 1 of the 2017 Declaration. This Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association, the text of which is set forth below, shall</p>	<p>"Amended Declaration" was deleted and renamed "Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association.</p>

	<p>thirds of the board of directors, without a membership vote."</p> <p>This Amended Declaration as adopted, shall be included among Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Governing Documents, as amended from time to time, sometimes described as Community Instruments, which shall be understood to mean all of the following. In the event of any inconsistency in the provisions of any of the Governing Documents, the lower numbered document shall control:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> 1. CICAA 2. Articles of Incorporation 3. Covenants and Restrictions 4. Bylaws 5. Rules and Regulations 6. Board Approved Policies 7. Board Approved Committee Operations and Procedures 	<p>become effective following its approval by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Voting Members eligible to vote in person or by Written Ballot at a meeting of the Association duly called for the purpose of changing the 2017 Declaration, provided that notice of such meeting shall be sent to all Voting Members at least thirty (30) days in advance, and upon its recording in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds, Jo Daviess County, Illinois.</p> <p>This Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association, as adopted, shall be included among Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Governing Documents, as amended from time to time, sometimes described as "Community Instruments", which shall be understood to mean all of the following. In the event of any inconsistency in the provisions of any of the Governing Documents, the lower numbered document shall control:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> 1. Illinois Common Interest Community Association Act ("CICAA") (765 ILCS 160/1-1 et. seq.) 2. Illinois General Not-For Profit Corporation Act (805 ILCS 105/101.01 	<p>The order of the Community Instruments were changed.</p> <p>The Illinois General Not-</p>
--	--	---	--

		<p>et. seq)</p> <p>3. Articles of Incorporation</p> <p>4. Declaration</p> <p>5. Bylaws</p> <p>6. ACL Building and Environmental Code</p> <p>7. Board Approved Policies</p> <p>8. Rules and Regulations</p> <p>9. Board Approved Committee/Commission Operations and Procedures</p>	<p>For Profit Corporation Act was added.</p> <p>Declaration was changed to 4.</p> <p>The ACL Building Code was changed to 6.</p> <p>Board Approved Policies was moved to be 7.</p>
<p>Recitals</p>	<p>WHEREAS, the Amended Declaration truly and accurately reflects the intent of the Restated Declaration, together with the changes contained in the Amended Declaration as revised by the Board of</p>	<p>WHEREAS, the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association (hereinafter referred to as the "Association"), through its Board of Directors, administers the property</p>	<p>The Recitals were written by the Association Attorney.</p> <p>The Board of Directors,</p>

	<p>Directors pursuant to Section 60(a) of the Common Interest Community Association Act, and</p> <p>WHEREAS, the Amended Declaration supersedes all previous covenants and restrictions governing the Lots and Dwellings covered by this Amended Declaration; and</p> <p>WHEREAS, the Board desires to record a certified copy of a resolution adopted by the Board certifying that this amendment of the Restate Declaration has been approved by the Board of Directors, in order to memorialize the Board's action.</p> <p>NOW, THEREFORE in furtherance of the foregoing recitals, the attached Amended Declaration is being recorded for the above state purposes.</p>	<p>legally described in Exhibit "A", which is attached hereto and made a part hereof (hereinafter referred to as "The Properties",) as further defined in Article I, Section 1(aa);</p> <p>WHEREAS, the 2017 Declaration was recorded on September 21, 2017 as Document No. 395980 in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds, Jo Daviess County, Illinois;</p> <p>WHEREAS, the Board and the Owners of the Association desire to amend and restate the 2017 Declaration, replacing it, in its entirety, with this Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association;</p> <p>WHEREAS, this Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association is adopted pursuant to Article IX, Section 1 of the 2017 Declaration, having been approved by the affirmative vote of two-thirds ($\frac{2}{3}$) of the Voting Members eligible to vote in person or by Written Ballot at a meeting of the Association duly called for the purpose of Changing the 2017 Declaration, following note of such meeting sent to all Voting</p>	<p>administers the property legally described in Exhibit A.</p> <p>The 2017 Declaration was recorded on September 21, 2017 in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds, Jo Daviess, Illinois;</p> <p>The Board and Owners desire to amend and restate the 2017 Declaration by replacing it with the proposed Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for ACLPOA;</p> <p>The voting procedures for adopting the proposed Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions;</p>
--	--	--	---

		<p>Members at least thirty (30) days in advance thereof; and</p> <p>WHEREAS, this Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association shall become effective upon recordation in the Offices of the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County, Illinois.</p> <p>NOW THEREFORE, the 2017 Declaration is hereby amended and restated as follows:</p>	<p>Once approved by the affirmative vote of $\frac{2}{3}$ of the voting members present in person or by written ballot, the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for ACLPOA will be recorded with the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County, Illinois and become effective on such date.</p>
<p>Definitions</p>	<p>a. "Amended Declaration" shall mean the Amended Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association as set forth herein.</p> <p>b. "Association" shall mean and refer to the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association, a nonprofit corporation organized and existing under the laws of</p>	<p>Amended Declaration definition removed. Added:</p> <p>a. "ACL Building Code" shall mean and refer to the Apple Canyon Lake Building & Environmental Code, as amended from time to time.</p> <p>b. "Association" shall mean and refer to the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association, a not-for-profit corporation organized and existing under</p>	<p>Definitions were added for clarification and when modifications or changes were made in the language.</p> <p>The word nonprofit was</p>

	<p>Illinois, its successors and assigns.</p> <p>c. "Board" or "Board of Directors" shall mean those persons elected to manage the affairs of the Association in accordance with C/CAA, the Amended Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Association.</p> <p>d. "Building Height" shall mean the vertical distance measured from the top of the foundation to the highest point of the roof at the front elevation.</p> <p>f. "Bylaws" shall mean the bylaws duly adopted by the Association, and as duly adopted by the Association, and as amended from time to time, and in effect at the time when any action or conduct of a Member or the Board is taken.</p> <p>g. "C/CAA" shall mean the Common Interest Community Association Act (765 ILCS 160) as hereafter amended or supplemented under</p>	<p>the laws of Illinois, its successors and assigns.</p> <p>c. "Board" or "Board of Directors" shall mean those persons elected to manage the affairs of the Association in accordance with C/CAA, this Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Association.</p> <p>d. "Building Height" shall mean the vertical distance measured from the top of the foundation to the highest ridge roof line as viewed from the street.</p> <p>f. "Bylaws" shall mean the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended and Restated Bylaws recorded on November 21, 2019 as document Number 396754 in the Office of The Recorder of Deeds, Jo Daviess County, Illinois, and as amended from time to time, and in effect at the time when any action or conduct of an Owner or the Board is taken.</p> <p>g. "C/CAA" shall mean the Common Interest Community Association Act (765 ILCS 160 et.seq.) as hereafter amended or</p>	<p>changed to not-for-profit</p> <p>Added "its successors and assigns" to the language.</p> <p>Added the renamed Declaration.</p> <p>AECC changed providing more clarification.</p> <p>Proposed Bylaws renamed to Amended and Restated Bylaws and process for amended the Bylaws when action or conduct of an Owner or the Board is taken. (et.seq.) was added.</p>
--	---	--	---

	<p>applicable Illinois law.</p> <p>H. “Common Properties” shall mean and refer to those areas of land shown on any recorded subdivision plat of the Properties as “Tract” followed by an alphabetical designation (By way of Example, “Tract A, Tract B, Tract C, Tract D and Trace E in Winchester Unit of Branigar’s Apple Canyon Lake Subdivision according to the plat thereof recorded June 10, 1969, as Document Number 117932 in the Office of the County Recorder.), or by the designation “Open Space” or other similar term intended to designate a parcel of real estate as devoted to the common use and enjoyment of the Properties, the lands within and beneath Apple Canyon Lake to the lot lines abutting thereon; and the lake dam conveyed to the Association.</p> <p>“Declaration” definition is not in this document.</p>	<p>supplemented under applicable law.</p> <p>h. “Common Properties” shall mean and refer to those areas of land shown on any recorded subdivision plat of The Properties as “Tract” followed by an alphabetical designation (By way of Example, “Tract A, Tract B, Tract C, Tract D and Trace E in Winchester Unit of Branigar’s Apple Canyon Lake Subdivision according to the plat thereof recorded June 10, 1969, as Document Number 117932 in the Office of the County Recorder.), or by the designation “Open Space” or “Greenway” or other similar term intended to designate a parcel of real estate as devoted to the common use and enjoyment of the owners of Lots and Dwellings within The Properties; the lands within and beneath Apple Canyon Lake to the lot lines abutting thereon; and the lake dam conveyed to the Association.</p> <p>i. “Declaration” shall mean and refer to this Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners’ Association , as amended from</p>	<p>The Properties rather than the Properties.</p> <p>Added Lots and Dwellings within The Properties.</p> <p>This definition was added to Definitions in the proposed Declaration.</p>
--	--	--	---

	<p>m. "Emergency" shall mean a danger to or a compromise of the structural integrity of the common areas or any of the common facilities of the Association. "Emergency" also includes a danger to life, health or safety.</p> <p>n. "Garage" shall mean a Structure, either attached to a Dwelling or constructed as a separate Structure, designed and constructed for the primary purpose of storing motor vehicles, boats, or other items of personal property under the provisions belonging to the Owner or Occupant of the Dwelling. No Living Area shall be constructed or maintained in any Garage unless prior written approval of the Architectural and Environmental Control Committee (AECC) has been obtained. (See Article III. Section I.)</p> <p>o. "Ground Floor Area" shall mean the living area in that story of the Dwelling which is the first story entirely above the established building grade at the building front.</p>	<p>time to time.</p> <p>m. "Emergency" shall mean a danger to or a compromise of the structural integrity of the Common Properties or any of the common facilities of the Association. "Emergency" also includes a danger to life, health or safety.</p> <p>n. "Garage" shall mean a Structure, either attached to a Dwelling or constructed as a separate structure, designed and constructed for the primary purpose of storing motor vehicles, boats, or other items of personal property under the provisions belonging to the Owner or Occupant of the Dwelling.</p> <p>o. "Ground Floor Area" shall mean the Living Space in that story of the Dwelling which is the first story entirely above the established building grade at the building front.</p>	<p>Common Properties are capitalized and replaced "common areas" language.</p> <p>Deleted No Living Area shall be constructed or maintained in any Garage unless prior written approval of the Architectural and Environmental Control Committee (AECC) has been obtained. (See Article III. Section1)</p> <p>Definition in prior Covenants used the words living area. The proposed Declaration changed the language to Living Space to mirror the Jo Daviess County Building Code.</p>
--	---	---	--

	<p>p. "Living Area" shall mean that portion of a Dwelling which is enclosed and customarily used for dwelling purposes but shall not include open porches, open terraces, breezeways, crawl spaces, attached garages (unless approved in writing by the AECC), carports or Dwelling Accessory Buildings.</p> <p>q. "Lot," also known as Unit, shall mean any numbered parcel of land, including condominium units, in any subdivision as shown on any declaration recorded under the provisions of Article II hereof, but not including any of the Common Properties or the Reserved Properties.</p> <p>r. "Lot Area" shall mean the area of a horizontal plane bounded by the vertical planes through front, side, and rear lot lines.</p> <p>s. "Lot Line" shall mean any boundary of a lot.</p> <p>t. "Member" shall mean and refer to all those Natural Persons who are</p>	<p>q. "Living Space" shall mean heated enclosed space within a Dwelling utilized for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, bathing, washing and sanitation purposes. Living Space does not include garages, three-season rooms, attics, decks, patios, crawl spaces, breezeways, etc.</p> <p>r. "Lot," also known as Unit, shall mean any numbered parcel of land, or any separately identified condominium unit, in any subdivision as shown on any plat of The Properties recorded under the provisions of Article II hereof, but not including any of the Common Properties or the Reserved Properties.</p> <p>s. "Lot Area" shall mean the area of a horizontal plane bounded by the vertical planes through front, side, and Lot Lines.</p> <p>t. "Lot Line" shall mean any legal boundary of a Lot as shown on a plat of survey prepared by a licensed surveyor.</p> <p>U. "Member" shall mean and refer to all those Natural Persons who are</p>	<p>The proposed Declaration changed the language to Living Space to mirror the International Residential Code adopted by AECC.</p> <p>Incorporated the term The Properties into the definition.</p> <p>Incorporated Lot Lines in the definition.</p> <p>Proposed language adds "legal boundary" as prepared by a licensed surveyor.</p> <p>Definition clarifies who are Natural Persons and</p>
--	---	--	---

	<p>defined as Members of the Association as provided in Article IV, Section I.</p> <p>v. “<i>Natural Person</i>” shall mean any human being over the age of 18 who has the legal capacity to be the grantee of a deed conveying legal or equitable title to a Lot or Dwelling in the Association.</p> <p>w. “<i>Occupant</i>” shall mean any person authorized by the Owner to occupy a Dwelling for any period of time, whether the Owner or alone, or whether as a guest of the Owner or as a tenant. Occupants shall be bound by all of the obligations of the Amended Declaration, the Bylaws, and all Rules and Regulations adopted by the Association. Upon reasonable request, Occupants shall be required to identify themselves to employees or agents of the Association, and to identify the Dwelling they are occupying and the Identity of the Owner.</p>	<p>defined as Owners, of Lots in the Association or, if the Lots are owned by Legal Entities, the Natural Persons designated by the Legal Entities to function as the Members for the purpose of these Governing Documents as provided in Article IV, Section I.</p> <p>w. “<i>Natural Person</i>” shall mean any human being who is age of eighteen (18) or older who has the legal capacity to hold title to a Lot.</p> <p>x. “<i>Occupant</i>” shall mean any person authorized by the Owner to occupy a Dwelling for any period of time, whether with the Owner or alone, or whether as a guest of the Owner or as a tenant. Occupants shall be bound by all of the obligations of this Declaration, the Bylaws, and all Rules and Regulations adopted by the Association.</p>	<p>includes language on Lots owned by Legal Entities.</p> <p>The proposed Declaration removed the words the grantee of a deed.</p> <p>Removed language from the definition regarding Occupants being required to identify themselves to employees or agents of the Association, and to identify the Dwelling they are occupying and the Identity of the Owner and moved to Article III. Section 15.</p>
--	--	--	---

	<p>x. "Owner" shall mean the person or persons whose estates or interests, individually or collectively, aggregate fee simple absolute ownership of any Lot or Dwelling situated in the Properties who has all of the power, control and incidents of ownership as would an owner of fee simple title; provided, however, that no Lot or Dwelling shall be owned by more than three Natural Persons, except that a married couple shall be deemed to be one Natural Person; and no Lot or Dwelling may be owned by more than one Legal Entity.</p> <p>Notwithstanding, any applicable theory of mortgage, Owner shall not mean or refer to the mortgagee unless and until such mortgagee has acquired title pursuant to foreclosure or any proceeding in lieu of foreclosure. (See Article IV)</p> <p>"Recreational Vehicle" definition is not in this document.</p>	<p>V. "Owner" shall mean the Natural Persons or Legal Entities who estates or interests, individually or collectively, aggregate fee simple absolute ownership of a Lot.</p> <p>Notwithstanding any applicable theory of mortgage, Owner shall not mean or refer to the mortgagee unless and until such mortgagee has acquired title pursuant to foreclosure or any proceeding in lieu of foreclosure. An owner may also be referred to as a Member, except in situations in which a matter of legal title to the Lot are involved or at issue. (See Article IV, Section I)</p> <p>bb. "Recreation Vehicle" shall mean and refer to a motor vehicle or trailer equipped with living space and amenities typically found in a residential living unit including, but not limited to a motor home.</p>	<p>The definition has been revised consistent with the definition of Unit Owner in CICA. The limitations on the number of memberships per lot are addressed in Article IV. Section 1. There can be any number of owners of a Lot, but the number of Owners who would be able to have membership privileges as to the Associations' amenities will be as limited in Article IV. Section 1.</p> <p>This definition was added to the proposed Declaration for clarifying what Recreation Vehicle is for the purpose of Sections in Article III..</p> <p>Change in language from Amended</p>
--	--	--	--

	<p>aa. "Reserved Properties" shall mean any real property owned by the Association which is used in furtherance of the Association's purposes and objectives, but which is not subject to restrictions imposed by the Amended Declaration, and which shall be put to those uses deemed to be in the Association's best interests. (See Article II, Section 3.)</p> <p>bb. "Single Family" shall mean one or more persons each related to the other by blood, marriage, or adoption, or a group of not more than their domestic servants, maintaining a common household in a Dwelling.</p> <p>"Trailer" definition is not in this document.</p> <p>ee. "Voting Member" shall mean the Natural Person designated by the Owner or Owners of any Lot or Dwelling as the one person to whom the Association shall send its notices and invoices, and the</p>	<p>cc. "Reserved Properties" shall mean any real property owned or acquired by the Association which is used in furtherance of the Association's purposes and objectives, but which is not subject to the restrictions imposed by this Declaration, and which shall be put to those uses deemed to be in the Association's best interests. (Article II, Section 3)</p> <p>"Single Family" definition is not in this document.</p> <p>ff. "Trailer" shall mean and refer to a transport vehicle designed to be towed by a motorized vehicle.</p> <p>ee. "Voting Member" shall mean the Natural Person designated from among the Owners of any Lot, including Lots owned by a Legal Entities, by the Owners of that Lot as the one person to whom</p>	<p>Declaration to this Declaration.</p> <p>Definition no longer needed in this Declaration.</p> <p>This definition was added to the proposed Declaration for clarification needed in Article III.</p> <p>This proposed definition is to align language with Article IV.</p>
--	--	---	---

	<p>one person who has the power to vote on all matters requiring a vote under the Amended Declaration or any Supplementary Declaration, unless the context shall prohibit. (See Article IV.)</p>	<p>the Association shall send its notices and invoices, and the one person who has the power to vote on all matters requiring a vote under this Declaration, unless otherwise provided herein. (See Article IV. Section 2.)</p> <p><i>ii.</i> “<i>Written Ballot</i>” shall mean a written document which clearly indicates the vote of a Voting Member being cast on any issue on which a vote of the Voting Members of the Association is taken. As further provided in the Bylaws, a Written Ballot may be cast by a Voting Member either in person at the meeting called for such vote or by mail or by any other means of delivery, provided that such Written Ballot must be delivered to the offices of the Association prior to the commencement of the meeting called for such vote.</p>	<p>This proposed definition is to align language with the Bylaws.</p>
<p>Article II Property Subject to</p>			

<p>This Declaration, Additions Thereto, and Mergers</p>	<p>The Association owns various parcels of land which were conveyed to it by the Developer or which were subsequently acquired by the Association, a complete description of which is set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto, which are not subject to the Amended Declaration, and which are defined as Reserved Properties. The Association may acquire additional Reserved Properties when deemed to be in the best interests of the Association. Any or all of the Reserved Properties may be added to the scheme of the Amended Declaration upon approval in writing of the Association pursuant to a vote of the Voting Members and by the recording of a Supplementary Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions; provided that any such addition shall have the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes of the Voting Members voting in person or by Written Ballot at a meeting duly called for this purpose written notice of which shall be sent to all Voting Members not less than ten (10) days and not more than thirty (30) days in advance and shall set forth the purpose of the meeting.</p>	<p>The Association owns various parcels of land which were conveyed to it by the Developer or which were subsequently acquired by the Association, a complete description of which is set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto, which are not subject to the Amended Declaration, and which are defined as Reserved Properties. The Association may, by a vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the directors on the Board, acquire additional Reserved Properties when deemed to be in the best interests of the Association, and upon any such acquisition Exhibit B attached hereto will be amended to include such additional Reserved Properties. Any or all of the Reserved Properties may be added to the scheme of this Declaration upon approval in writing of the Association pursuant to a vote of the Voting Members and by the recording of a Supplementary Declaration provided that any such addition shall have the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes of the Voting Members voting by Written Ballot at a meeting duly called for this purpose, written notice of which shall be sent to all Voting Members not</p>	<p>The previous language states that the Association may acquire additional Reserved Properties when deemed to be in the best interests of the Association. The previous language does not describe how the Association may acquire additional Reserved Properties. The proposed language adds that additional Reserved Property may be acquired by a two-thirds (2/3) affirmative vote of the Board of Directors.</p> <p>At the September 23rd Town Hall meeting, Owners asked that the proposed language be removed, and the document go back to original language. The Legal Commission decided at their October</p>
--	---	--	--

	<p>The five-acre parcel of land on the which the marine service center is located and the eighty-acre parcel of land south of the dam, the legal descriptions of which are identified in Items 1 and 2 on Exhibit B attached hereto, were purportedly made subject to the original Declaration by virtue of the recording of Supplementary Declarations covering those parcels. The attempt to add those parcels to the Properties was likely ineffective because the vote of the members of the Association required to add additional property was neither sought nor obtained. Those aforementioned parcels are owned by the Association as Reserved Properties, and they are not subject to the Declaration or to this Amended Declaration.</p>	<p>less than ten (10) days and not more than thirty (30) days in advance and shall set forth the purpose of the meeting.</p>	<p>6th meeting to remove the proposed language and go back to the original language</p> <p>Aligned with Section 1-40(a) of the CICAA is not less than ten (10) days and not more than thirty (30) days prior to the meeting.</p> <p>The five-acre parcel of</p>
--	---	--	--

			<p>land paragraph was deleted because it refers to Reserved Properties so it is not subject to the Declaration.</p>
<p>Article III General Restrictions</p>			
<p>Section 1. Land Use and Building Type</p>	<p>Any Lot which is designated on the Declaration or any Supplementary Declaration listed on Exhibit A with a numeral (without prefix)) is intended as a</p>	<p>(a) Any Lot which is designated in any of the documents identified on Exhibit A attached hereto shall be governed by this Article</p>	<p>The proposed Declaration is similar language from the Amended Declaration</p>

	<p>Lot and shall be used for single family residence purposes only. No Structure, except as specifically authorized elsewhere in this Amended Declaration, shall be erected, re-erected or maintained on any Lot, except one Dwelling designed for occupancy by a Single Family, a private Garage containing no more than nine hundred (900) square feet for the sole use of the Owners or Occupants of the Dwelling, Dwelling Accessory Buildings as permitted and Water Facilities for the sole use of the Owners or Occupants of the Dwelling. If approved in writing by the Architectural and Environmental Control Committee (AECC), a Garage may have a Living Area in connection therewith for the sole use of the Owner or Occupant, but any such Living Area shall not be rented separately from the rental of the Dwelling. No Structure, Garage, or other Dwelling Accessory Building shall be erected prior to construction of a Dwelling. No Dwelling, Dwelling Accessory Building or Structure may be erected except in such manner and location as hereinafter provided or as approved in writing by the Association.</p>	<p>III. (b) All additions, alterations and improvements to Lots are subject to the ACL Building Code and prior approval in writing by the Architectural and Environmental Control Committee (AECC). (c) No Structure, except as specifically authorized elsewhere in this Declaration, shall be erected, or re-erected or maintained on any Lot, except one (1) Dwelling designed for occupancy by a single family, which may include an attached Garage as well as one (1) detached Garage, Dwelling Accessory Buildings (as permitted), and Water Facilities, all for the sole use of the Owners and Occupants of the Dwelling. (d) Not more than thirty percent (30%) of the area of a Lot may be occupied by buildings and Structures, including but not limited to Dwellings, Dwelling Accessory Buildings, Garages, and impervious surfaces. (e) No Living Space shall be constructed or maintained in any Garage unless the prior written approval of the AECC has been</p>	<p>but reorganized for clarity. Many of the changes in the proposed Declaration are to be aligned with the new AECC Building and Environmental Code approved by the BOD on May 16, 2020.</p>
--	--	--	---

<p>Section 2. Quality of Structures</p>	<p>It is the intention and purpose of this Amended Declaration to insure that all Dwellings, Dwelling Accessory Buildings</p>	<p>obtained. If approved in writing by the AECC, a Garage may have a Living Space in connection therewith for the sole use of the Owner or Occupant, but any such Living Space shall not be rented separately from the rental of the Dwelling.</p> <p>(f) No Structure, Garage, Water Facility or other Dwelling Accessory Building shall be erected prior to construction of a Dwelling, except for shoreline stabilization or watershed projects as prior approved by the AECC.</p> <p>(g) No Dwelling Dwelling Accessory Building or Structure may be erected except in such manner and location as hereinafter provided or as approved in writing by AECC.</p> <p>(h) No items, including but not limited to, equipment, boats, Trailers, campers, Recreational Vehicles, building materials, firewood or any other similar items may be temporarily or permanently stored on a vacant Lot.</p>	
	<p>It is the intention and purpose of this Declaration to insure that all Dwellings, Dwelling Accessory Buildings and</p>		

	<p>and Garages shall be of a quality of design, workmanship and materials which are compatible and harmonious with the natural setting of the area and the other structures within the immediate area and throughout the Properties. Therefore, prior written approval shall be obtained from the AECC with respect to all matters stated in this Amended Declaration as requiring such approval. All Dwellings and Dwelling Accessory Buildings and Garages shall be constructed in accordance with applicable governmental building codes and with such more restrictive standards or building codes as may be required by the AECC or the Board.</p>	<p>Garages shall be of a quality of design, workmanship and materials which are compatible and harmonious with the natural setting of the area and the other structures within the immediate area and throughout The Properties.</p>	
<p>Section 3. Building Height</p>	<p>No Dwelling shall be erected, altered or placed upon any Lot which has a Building Height of more than thirty (30) feet. No detached Dwelling Accessory Building, Garage or other Structure shall exceed seventeen (17) feet in height, unless a greater height is approved in writing by the AECC.</p>	<p>No Dwelling shall be erected, altered or placed upon any Lot which has a Building Height of more than thirty-five (35) feet.</p>	<p>The proposed language of Building Height is to align to the AECC Building and Environmental Code approved by the BOD at the May 16, 2020 meeting.</p>
<p>Section 4. Materials to be Used and Size of Dwellings</p>	<p>The ground floor area of any Dwelling shall be not less than one thousand (1000) square feet, and all Dwellings shall contain a minimum of fourteen hundred (1,400) square feet in total Living Area, unless otherwise approved by AECC. Building exteriors must be made of concrete, masonry, vinyl, brick,</p>	<p>The ground floor area of any Dwelling shall be not less than one thousand (1,000) square feet. All exteriors must be in colors that are compatible and harmonious with the natural setting and other buildings within the immediate area, as determined by the AECC. The exterior apportion of any Structure</p>	<p>To align with the AECC Building and Environmental Code and not to limit construction of new homes due to required square footage of the dwelling.</p>

	<p>frame, log construction, or such other building materials as may be approved by the AECC. All exteriors must be painted, stained or finished in colors that are compatible and harmonious with the natural setting and other buildings within the immediate area, as determined by the AECC. The exterior portion of any Structure must be completed within one year from date of commencement of said construction.</p>	<p>must be completed within one year from date of commencement of said construction.</p>	
<p>Section 5. Location on Lot</p>	<p>On and after the effective date of the Restated Declaration, effective November 6, 2011, every Dwelling, Dwelling Accessory Building or Garage, or other Structure, including any overhang, shall be a minimum of twenty-seven (27) feet from the front Lot Line. For corner lots this twenty-seven (27) foot set back shall be applicable to all sides of the Lot which face the street right of way. Roof overhangs of Dwellings, Dwelling Accessory Buildings or Garages and decks attached thereto must be at least ten (10) feet inside any side or rear Lot Line. All Dwellings, Dwelling Accessory Buildings, Garages, decks and sanitary systems constructed on any Lot must be not less than one hundred (100) feet from the existing lake edge as established at pool level of eight hundred (800) feet.</p>	<p>Every Dwelling, Dwelling Accessory Building or Garage, or other Structure constructed or reconstructed after November 6, 2011 shall be set back, measuring from the roof overhang, a minimum of ten (10) feet from the rear and side property lines and twenty-seven (27) feet from the front property line. If there is no roof overhang, measuring is from the exterior face of the foundation to the lot lines. All Dwellings, Dwelling Accessory Buildings, Garages, attached decks and sanitary systems constructed on any Lot must be not less than one hundred (100) feet from any existing lake edge as established at pool level of eight hundred (800) feet above mean sea level, regardless of the survey pin locations of the Lot or driveway space.</p>	<p>The proposed Location on Lot language was changed to conform to Jo Daviess County Building Code.</p> <p>This language provides clarification on where the 100 feet set back begins.</p>
<p>Section 7. Water</p>	<p>No Water Facility may be built or</p>	<p>No Water Facility may be built or</p>	

<p>Facilities</p>	<p>maintained on any Lot without the prior written approval of the AECC. In its discretion the Board may approve, prohibit or limit the construction or maintenance or location of any Water Facility and the use thereof.</p>	<p>maintained on any Lot without the prior written approval of the AECC. In its discretion the AECC may approve, prohibit or limit the construction or maintenance or location of any Water Facility and the use thereof. Each Owner shall be responsible for keeping any Water Facility located on his or her Lot in good condition and repair. Any Water Facility that is not maintained in good condition and repair shall be removed from The Properties by the Owner, at the Owner's sole expense, following written notice from the Association.</p>	<p>Additional language is clarified and aligned to the AECC Building and Environmental Code.</p>
<p>Section 8. Home Occupations, Nuisances and Animals</p>	<p>The Board shall have the power to adopt reasonable rules and regulations governing home based occupations, nuisances and the possession of animals. No home based occupation or profession shall be conducted in any Dwelling, Dwelling Accessory Building or Garage except those expressly permitted by the Board. No noxious or offensive activity shall be carried on, in or upon any Lot or Dwelling, nor shall anything be done thereon which may be or may become an annoyance or nuisance to the neighborhood. No animals, other than inoffensive common domestic household pets, shall be domiciled on any Lot or in any Dwelling.</p>	<p>The Board shall have the power to adopt reasonable rules and regulations governing home based occupations, nuisances and the possession of animals, that the Board deems necessary to preserve and promote the health, safety, welfare, and natural setting of the area for the Association and its members. No home-based occupation or profession shall be conducted in any Dwelling, Dwelling Accessory Building or Garage except those expressly permitted by the Board. No noxious or offensive activity shall be carried on, in or upon any Lot or Dwelling, nor shall anything be done thereon which may be or may become an annoyance or nuisance to the</p>	

		<p>neighbors. No animals, livestock, fowl or poultry of any kind shall be raised, bred, or kept in any Dwelling or elsewhere on the Property; provided, however, that dogs, cats or other common domestic household pets may be kept in Dwellings subject to rules and regulations adopted by the Board. Any pet causing or creating a nuisance or unreasonable disturbance shall be permanently removed from The Properties upon seven (7) days' written notice from the Board to the Owner of the Dwelling containing such pet and the decision of the Board shall be final.</p>	<p>Additional language was added to the proposed Declaration clarifying the animals and common domestic household pets.</p>
<p>Section 9. Temporary Structures.</p>	<p>No trailer, basement of an incomplete building, tent, shack, garage, except as permitted in Section 1 of this Article, and no temporary building or structure of any kind shall be used at any time for a residence, either temporary or permanent. Temporary buildings or structures used during any construction, including repair, remodeling or renovation on any Lot, shall be on the same Lot where the construction is being performed, unless the prior written approval of another location is granted by the AECC. All temporary structures shall be removed upon completion of construction.</p>	<p>No vehicle, trailer, basement of an incomplete building, tent, shack, accessory building, Garage, except as permitted in Section 1 of this Article, or temporary building or structure of any kind shall be used at any time for a dwelling, either temporary or permanent on an otherwise vacant lot. Temporary buildings or structures used during any construction, including repair, remodeling or renovation on any Lot, shall be on the same Lot where the construction is being performed, unless the prior written approval of another location is granted by the AECC. All temporary structures shall be removed upon completion of construction.</p>	<p>The language of vehicle, trailer, and accessory building were added to the language to align with AECC Building Code.</p>

<p>Section 11. Wells and Plumbing.</p>	<p>All plumbing fixtures, dishwashers, toilets or sewage disposal systems shall be connected to a septic tank system constructed by the Owner and approved by the AECC and by any state, county or municipal authority having jurisdiction. Septic tank systems and locations must be of registered professional engineer design. Said engineer's design plans must be submitted to the AECC for approval and issuance of permit prior to commencing construction. All systems are to be of the closed type; no domestic wastewater is to be discharged into the lake or any adjacent property. Any such sewage disposal system installed shall be subject to inspection while being constructed and to final approval by the approving authority before backfilling. All wells, plumbing fixtures, and sewage disposal systems shall be subject to inspection from time to time by the Association for the purpose of determining whether they are in compliance with applicable statutes, ordinances, codes, or rules and regulations. A fee to cover the reasonable costs of such inspections shall be established from time to time by the Board.</p>	<p>All plumbing fixtures, dishwashers, toilets or sewage disposal systems shall be connected to a septic tank system constructed by the Owner and approved by the AECC and by any state, county or municipal authority having jurisdiction. Septic tank systems and locations must be of registered professional engineer design. Said engineer's design plans must be submitted to the AECC for approval and issuance of permit prior to commencing construction. All systems are to be of the closed type; no domestic wastewater is to be discharged into the lake or any adjacent property. Any such sewage disposal system installed shall be subject to inspection while being constructed and to final approval by the approving authority before backfilling. All wells, plumbing fixtures, and sewage disposal systems shall be subject to inspection from time to time, by a company licensed to conduct such inspections, for the purpose of determining whether such items are in compliance with applicable statutes, ordinances, codes, or rules and regulations.</p>	<p>The language added to the proposed Declaration is to align with AECC Building and Environment Code.</p> <p>Language was removed regarding a fee for inspection set by the Board.</p> <p>Language added was that a company licensed to conduct inspections must be used.</p>
<p>Section 12. Nonconforming Uses</p>	<p>All existing structures built before the adoption of the Restated Declaration, effective November 6, 2011, are exempt</p>	<p>All existing structures built prior to January 1, 2000 are exempt from the requirements stated in Article III; all</p>	<p>The language in the proposed Declaration is to align with the AECC</p>

	<p>from the requirements stated in Article III; provided, however, that if any exempt Dwelling, Dwelling Accessory Building, Garage or other Structure is seventy-five percent (75%) destroyed and is being reconstructed, restored or replaced it shall, when completed, be in conformance with the requirements of this Article and then then applicable building codes. Any new Structure built upon a Lot after the effective date of this Amended Declaration is subject to the restrictions contained in this Article and the then applicable building codes.</p>	<p>existing structures built according to a written permit issued by the AECC on or after January 1, 2000 are exempt from the requirements stated in this Article III; provided, however, that if any exempt Dwelling, Dwelling Accessory Building, Garage or other Structure is seventy-five (75%) or more destroyed and is being reconstructed, restored or replaced it shall, when completed, be in conformance with the requirements of this Article and the then current applicable building codes. Any new Structure built upon a Lot after the effective date of this Declaration is subject to the restrictions contained in this Article and the then current applicable building codes.</p>	<p>Building and Environmental Code approved by the BOD on May 16, 2020.</p>
<p>Section 13. Deviations by Agreement with the Association; Other Permitted Uses</p>	<p>a. The Association, its successors or assigns, shall have the right to enter into agreements with the grantee of any lot or lots without the consent of grantees of other lots or adjoining adjacent property to deviate from any of the covenants set forth in this Article III for reasons of practical difficulties or particular hardships evidenced by any such grantee. Any such deviation, which shall be manifested by agreement in writing, shall not constitute a waiver of any such covenant as to</p>	<p>a. The Association, its successors or assigns, shall have the right to enter into agreements with the Owner of any Lot or Lots without the consent of Owners of other Lots or adjoining or adjacent property to deviate from any of the covenants set forth in this Article III for reasons of practical difficulties or particular hardships evidenced by any such Owner. Any such deviation, which shall be manifested by agreement in writing, shall not establish a</p>	<p>Association attorney added language that any such deviation, which shall be</p>

<p>Section 14. Leasing Property, CICA Section 1-35 (a).</p>	<p>other lots in the Properties.</p> <p>b. Notwithstanding anything herein which is to the contrary, the Association reserves to itself the right to construct and maintain on lots selected by it in the Properties a Structure or Structures for use by it, and its successors and assigns, as an office or offices or other facilities to be used in connection with the operations and programs conducted by the Association for the benefit of the Owners, or as a location for a water well or wells, water storage facility or sewage treatment facility or facilities, provided no such facility shall be maintained in such a manner as to interfere unreasonably with the enjoyment of any lot by the Owners thereof.</p>	<p>precedent and shall not constitute a waiver of any such covenant as to other Lots in The Properties.</p> <p>b. Notwithstanding anything herein which is to the contrary, The Association reserves to itself the right to construct and maintain on Lots selected by it in The Properties a Structure or Structures for use by it, and its successors and assigns, as an office or offices or other facilities to be used in connection with the operations and programs conducted by the Association for the benefit of the Owners, or as a location for a water well or wells, water storage facility or sewage treatment facility or facilities, provided no such facility shall be maintained in such manner as to interfere unreasonably with the enjoyment of any Lot by the Owners, thereof.</p>	<p>manifested by agreement in writing, shall not establish a precedent and shall not constitute a waiver of any such covenant as to other Lots in The Properties.</p>
<p>Section 14. Leasing Property, CICA Section 1-35 (a).</p>	<p>The provisions of the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Governing Documents (also referred to as Community Instruments) that relate to the use of an individual Lot or Dwelling or the Common Properties shall be</p>	<p>All Owners leasing their Lots or dwellings shall deliver a copy of the signed lease to the Association no later than the date of occupancy or ten (10) days after the lease is signed, whichever comes first. All leases shall</p>	<p>Language was added to conform to CICA giving the Association more authority for properties that lease their Lots or Dwellings.</p>

	<p>applicable to any person leasing a Lot or Dwelling and shall be deemed to be incorporated in any lease executed or renewed. Unless otherwise provided in the Community Instruments, the Owner leasing the Lot or dwelling shall deliver a copy of the signed lease to the Association or if the lease is oral, a memorandum of the lease, not later than the date of occupancy or ten (10) days after the lease is signed, whichever occurs first.</p>	<p>be in writing. In the event that an Owner fails to comply with any leasing provisions set forth in the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Governing Documents (also referred to as the Community Instruments) or otherwise is in violation of this Section, the Association may seek to evict a tenant from the Dwelling or Lot under Article IX of the Code of Civil Procedure, as well as pursue any and all other legal and/or equitable remedies available to the Association as to the Owner. Furthermore, all provisions of the Association's Community Instruments shall be applicable to any person leasing a Dwelling or Lot and shall be deemed to be incorporated in any lease executed or renewed. The Board may proceed directly against a tenant, at law or in equity under the provisions of Article IX of the Code of Civil Procedure, for any other breach by tenant of any of the provisions of the Association's Community Instruments. The Owner leasing his or her Dwelling or Lot shall not be relieved thereby from any of the Owner's obligations under the Association's Community Instruments or otherwise provided by law. The Board may also from time to time adopt rules and regulations pertaining to the leasing of Dwellings and Lots,</p>	
--	---	--	--

		including policies and procedures to further the goals and objectives of this Section.	
Section 15. Use of The Properties by Non-Owners	This section is not in this document.	Upon reasonable request, Occupants shall be required to identify themselves to employees or agents of the Association, and to identify the Dwelling they are occupying and the identity of the Owner of such Dwelling.	Removed from definitions in the Amended Declaration and added as Article III. Section 15 of proposed Declaration.
Section 16. Combination of Lots Article II Property Subject to This Declaration, Additions, Therefo, and Mergers	This section is not in this document.	Two (2) or more numbered Lots may be combined by the Owner(s) of the Lots, provided that any Lot combination must be done by written agreement, which written agreement must be prior approved by the AECC and Board and then recorded with the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County. Provided further that any numbered Lots that are combined shall still be treated as separate Lots for the purposes of assessments charged by the Association with each combined Lot continuing to be assessed a separate assessment as if no combination had taken place.	Added language to align with AECC Building and Architectural Code approved by BOD on May 16, 2020.

<p>Section 3. Reserved Properties</p>	<p>The Association owns various parcels of land which were conveyed to it by the Developer or which were subsequently acquired by the Association, a complete description of which is set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto, which are not subject to the Amended Declaration, and which are defined as Reserved Properties. The Association may acquire additional Reserved Properties when deemed to be in the best interests of the Association. Any or all of the Reserved Properties may be added to the scheme of the Amended Declaration upon approval in writing of the Association pursuant to a vote of the Voting Members and by the recording of a Supplementary Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions; provided that any such addition shall have the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes of the Voting Members voting in person or by Written Ballot at a meeting duly called for this purpose, written notice of which shall be sent to all Voting Members not less than ten (10) days not more than thirty (30) days in advance and shall set forth the purpose of the meeting.</p> <p>The five acre parcel of land on which the marine service center is located and the eight acre parcel of land south of the dame, the legal descriptions of which</p>	<p>The Association owns various parcels of land which were conveyed to it by the Developer or which were subsequently acquired by the Association, a complete description of which is set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto, which are not subject to the Amended Declaration, and which are defined as Reserved Properties. The Association may, by a vote of at least two-thirds ($\frac{2}{3}$) of the directors on the Board, acquire additional Reserved Properties when deemed to be in the best interests of the Association, and upon any such acquisition Exhibit B attached hereto will be amended to include such additional Reserved Properties. Any or all of the Reserved Properties may be added to the scheme of this Declaration upon approval in writing of the Association pursuant to a vote of the Voting Members and by the recording of a Supplementary Declaration; provided that any such addition shall have the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes of the Voting Members voting by Written Ballot at a meeting duly called for this purpose, written notice of which shall be sent to all Voting Members not less than ten (10) days not more than thirty (30) days in advance and shall set forth the purpose of the meeting.</p>	<p>The previous language speaks that the Association may acquire additional Reserved Properties but does not specifically state how the Reserved Property can be acquired. The proposed language added that by a vote of the directors on the Board by a two-thirds ($\frac{2}{3}$) affirmative vote could acquire additional Reserved Properties when deemed to be in the best interest of the Association.</p>
---------------------------------------	---	--	---

	<p>are identified in Items 1 and 2 on Exhibit B attached hereto, were purportedly made subject to the original Declaration by virtue of the recording of Supplementary Declarations covering those parcels. The attempt to add those parcels to the Properties was likely ineffective because the vote of the members of the Association required to add additional property was neither sought nor obtained. Those aforementioned parcels are owned by the Association as Reserved Properties, and they are not subject to the Declaration or to this Amended Declaration.</p>		
<p>Article IV Membership, Voting Rights</p>			
<p>Section 1. Membership</p>	<p>Membership in the Association shall be the privilege of each natural Person, and his or her spouse, who is the legal or equitable Owner of any Lot or Dwelling; except that no Lot or Dwelling shall have as Owners more than three (3) Natural Persons, including their spouses. Any Legal Entity which owns any Lot or Dwelling may designate on (1) Natural Person, including his or her spouse, as a Member of the Association. Each such designation by a Legal Entity shall be in writing and shall provide the name, address and telephone number of</p>	<p>For Lots owned by Natural Persons, all Owners of the Lot are considered Members of the Association. For a Lot owned by Legal Entities, such Legal Entities may designate in writing one (1) Natural Person, who has an ownership interest in the Legal Entity and who shall function as the Member for such Lot for the purpose of these Governing Documents. Every Owner and Member shall provide the Association with his or her current mailing address, email address and telephone number.</p>	<p>This language was rewritten by the Association Attorney to clarify membership rights of Natural Persons and Legal Entities.</p> <p>The Association Attorney also stated that you cannot restrict the number of Natural Persons on a deed.</p>

	<p>the Member, including any spouse, which person shall be the Voting Members as defined in Section 2. After the initial designation, changes in the identity of the Voting Member can be made only with the approval of the Board, or upon a showing that the change in the identity of the Voting Member has resulted from a bona fide change in the ownership interest of the Legal Entity making the request. The Board's decision in all such matters shall be binding and final. Any Natural Person or Legal Entity that holds a legal or equitable interest in any Lot or Dwelling as security for the performance of an obligation shall not be a Member. Every Member, including any spouse of a Member, shall provide the Association with his or her current mailing address and telephone number.</p>	<p>After the initial designation of who the Member(s) for a particular Lot will be, changes in the identity of the Member(s) for such Lots can be made only (1) upon a bona fide change in the ownership of the Lot documented by a recorded legal document identifying such ownership change, or (2) upon a showing that the change in the identity of the Member(s) has resulted from a bona fide change in the ownership interest of the Legal Entity making the request, or (3) with the approval of the Board. The Board's decision in all such matters shall be binding and final. Any Natural Person or Legal Entity that holds a legal or equitable interest in any Lot as security for the performance of an obligation shall not be a Member.</p>	
<p>Section 2. Voting Rights - One Voting Member</p>	<p>The Owners of each Lot or Dwelling shall designate on Natural Person as the Voting Member for said Lot or Dwelling. Only the Voting Member, as defined in Article I, Section 1 (ee) , shall be entitled to vote at any regular or special meeting of the Association, and only the Voting Member shall be sent notice of any regular or special meeting of the Association. In the event there are multiple Owners of a Lot or Dwelling who are Natural Person, including their</p>	<p>The Owners of each Lot shall designate one Natural Person from among themselves as the Voting Member for said Lot. Only the Voting Member, as defined in Article I, Section 1 (gg) of this Declaration, shall be entitled to vote at any regular or special meeting of the Association. In the event there are multiple Owners of a Lot who are Natural Persons and they fail to designate one Natural Person as the Voting Member, the person</p>	<p>Minor language change on who the Voting Member is for said Lot.</p> <p>Also removed the words "and their spouses" as Natural Persons unless their names are on the deed.</p> <p>Additional verbiage clarified that there can</p>

	<p>spouses, and they fail to designate on Natural Person as the Voting Member, the first person named in the deed conveying title to the Lot or Dwelling shall be deemed to be the Voting Member. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Amended Declaration, where there is more than one owner of a Lot and the designated Voting Member is not present at a meeting of the membership and has not otherwise voted, the owner in attendance shall be entitled to cast the member vote associated with that unit even if that owner is not the designated Voting Member. The Vote must be cast on the day of the meeting prior to the closing of the polls. In the event a Lot or Dwelling is owned by a Legal Entity, it shall designate one Natural Person to be the Voting Member. The failure of a Legal Entity to designate a Voting Member shall be a bar to the right to vote on any matter, and the vote of such Lot or Dwelling shall not be counted for the determination of a quorum. Owners, other than a Legal Entity, may change the designation of the Voting Member at any time by delivering to the Association of a written designation, signed by all of the Owners of the Lot or Dwelling, which contains the Voting Member's name, address and telephone number. Any such change in the designation of the</p>	<p>named in the deed conveying title to the Lot shall be deemed to be the Voting Member. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Declaration, where there is more than Owner of a Lot and the designated Voting Member is not present at a meeting of the membership and has not otherwise voted, the Owner in attendance shall be entitled to cast the member vote associated with Lot even if that Owner is not the designated Voting Member. The vote must be cast on the day of the meeting prior to the closing of the polls. In the event a Lot is owned by a Legal Entity, the Natural Person that the Legal Entity designates to be the Member for the purposes of these Governing Documents shall also be the Voting Member. The failure of a Legal Entity to designate a Voting Member for its Lot shall be a bar to such Lot's right to vote on any matter; until a Voting Member is designated for such Lot. Owners may change the designation of the Voting Member for their Lots at any time by delivering to the Association a written designation, signed by all Owners of the Lot, which contains the Voting Member's name, address and telephone number. Any such change</p>	<p>only be one vote per Lot.</p>
--	--	---	----------------------------------

<p>ARTICLE V Property Rights in the Common Properties Section 3. Extent of</p>	<p>Voting Member shall be effective when received by the Association.</p> <p>Every Lot or Dwelling shall be entitled to one (1) vote, provided that all assessments, charges, fees and fines which are due the Association are paid in full at the time of the vote. If the Association owns any Lot or Dwelling, it shall not have the right to cast any vote, and the vote of any such Lot or Dwelling shall not be counted for the purpose of determining a quorum. The total number of votes shall not exceed the total number of Lots or Dwellings in The Properties. The vote of a Lot or Dwelling shall not be divisible. If there is a dispute between or among the multiple Owners of a Lot or Dwelling as to who shall be the Voting Member, the vote for such Lot or Dwelling shall not be counted for any purpose, including determining a quorum. For purposes of determining the votes allowed under this section, when Dwellings in Multifamily Structures are counted, the Lot or Lots upon which such Dwellings are situated shall not be counted.</p> <p>a. The right of the Association to prescribe rules and regulations for the use of Common Properties, including but not limited to the number, size, type</p>	<p>in the designation of the Voting Member shall be effective when received by the Association.</p> <p>Every Lot shall be entitled to one (1) vote, provided that all assessments, charges, fees and fines which are due to the Association are paid in full at the time of the vote. If the Association owns any Lot, it shall not have the right to cast any vote for such Lot. The total number of votes shall not exceed the total number of Lots in The Properties. The vote of a Lot shall not be divisible. If there is a dispute between or among the multiple Owners of a Lot as to who shall be the Voting Member, the vote for any such Lot shall not be counted for any purpose.</p>	
		<p>The rights and easements of enjoyment created hereby shall be subject to the following:</p> <p>a. The right of the Association to</p>	<p>In the proposed Covenants we added Owner or Member to the language.</p>

<p>Members' Easements</p>	<p>and speed of boats operated on any waters on the Properties; the taking of fish from waters on the Properties; and such other regulations as the Association deems necessary to the health, safety and welfare of the Association and its Members. The Association may assign specific piers, docks, or other water facilities situated on or adjacent to the Common Properties for the use of specific Lot Owners.</p> <p>b. The right of the Association in accordance with the Amended Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws to borrow money for the purpose of improving the Common Properties or the Reserved Properties and in aid thereof to mortgage any or all of the property owned by the Association. In the event of a default upon any such mortgage the lender's rights hereunder shall be limited to a right, after taking possession of such property, to charge admission and other fees as a condition to continued enjoyment by the Members and, if necessary, to open the enjoyment of such properties to a wider</p>	<p>prescribe rules and regulations for the use of Common Properties, including but not limited to the number, size, type and speed of boats operated on any waters on The Properties; the taking of fish from waters on The Properties; and such other regulations as the Association deems necessary to the health, safety and welfare of the Association and its Members.</p> <p>b. The Association may assign specific piers, docks, or other water facilities situated on or adjacent to the Common Properties for the use of specific Lot Owners.</p> <p>c. The right of the Association in accordance with this Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws to borrow money for the purpose of improving the Common Properties or the Reserved Properties and in aid thereof to mortgage any or all of the property owned by the Association. In the event of a default upon any such mortgage the lender's rights hereunder shall be limited to a right, after taking possession of such property, to charge admission</p>	
---------------------------	---	---	--

	<p>public until the mortgage debt is satisfied whereupon the possession of such properties shall be returned to the Association and all rights of the Members hereunder shall be fully restored.</p> <p>c. The right of the Association to take such steps as are reasonably necessary to protect the above described properties against foreclosures.</p> <p>d. The right of the Association to suspend the enjoyment rights of any member for any period during which any assessment, charge or fine remains unpaid; or to suspend the enjoyment rights of any Member for any period not to exceed ninety (90) days, or to levy and assess such fines and penalties for any violation of the Amended Declaration, the Bylaws or the Rules and Regulations, all as determined by the Board.</p> <p>e. The right of the Association to charge reasonable admission and other charges or fees for the use, maintenance or preservation of the Common Properties or the Reserved Properties.</p> <p>f. The right of the Association to dedicate or transfer all or any part of the Common Properties or the</p>	<p>and other fees as a condition to continued enjoyment by the Members and, if necessary, to open the enjoyment of such properties to a wider public until the mortgage debt is satisfied whereupon the possession of such properties shall be returned to the Association and all rights of the Members hereunder shall be fully restored.</p> <p>d. The right of the Association to take such steps as are reasonably necessary to protect the above described properties against foreclosures.</p> <p>e. The right of the Association to suspend the enjoyment rights of any Owner or Member for any period during which any assessment, charge or fine remains unpaid; or to suspend the enjoyment rights of any Owner or Member for any period not to exceed ninety (90) days, or to levy and assess such fines and penalties for any violation of this Declaration, the Bylaws or the Rules and Regulations, all as determined by the Board.</p> <p>f. The right of the Association to charge reasonable admission and other charges or fees for</p>	
--	---	--	--

	<p>Reserved Properties to any public agency, authority, or utility for the preservation of the public health, welfare and safety and subject to such conditions as may be agreed to by the Association in accordance with its Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws.</p> <p>g. The right of the Association, its successors and assigns, to construct on, over and under the Common Properties or the Reserved Properties and to main water, electric, gas, telephone, sanitary disposal system and other utility facilities to serve the Properties, the Common Properties, or the Reserved Properties or any portions thereof and to grant easements to others in such regards.</p>	<p>the use, maintenance or preservation of the Common Properties or the Reserved Properties.</p> <p>g. The right of the Association to dedicate or transfer all or any part of the Common Properties or the Reserved Properties to any public agency, authority, or utility for the preservation of the public health, welfare and safety and subject to such conditions as may be agreed to by the Association in accordance with its Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws.</p> <p>h. The right of the Association, its successors and assigns, to construct on, over and under the Common Properties or the Reserved Properties and to maintain water, electric, gas, telephone, sanitary disposal system and other utility facilities to serve The Properties, the Common Properties or the Reserved Properties or any portions thereof and to grand easement to others in such regard.</p>	
<p>Section 4. Rights of Owners' Spouses</p>	<p>This section is not in this declaration.</p>	<p>An individual who is married to an Owner (i.e. the Owner's spouse) shall have the same right and easement of</p>	<p>This new language added by the Association Attorney</p>

		<p>enjoyment in and to the Common Properties, subject to the same restrictions as stated herein, as the Owner he or she is married to has; provided, however, that such spouse shall be required to prove the Association with his or her current name, address and telephone number prior to exercising such rights.</p>	<p>clarifies the rights of Owners' Spouses.</p> <p>In conjunction to the changes made in Article IV. Section 1. This section clarifies that each spouse has the same rights as the Member that he or she is married to.</p>
<p>Article VI Covenant to Pay Assessments</p> <p>Section 4. Change in Basis and Maximum of Annual Assessments and Special Assessments</p>	<p>Each year the Board shall prepare an annual budget which shall identify the Association's projected income and expenses for the next year, which shall include an appropriate amount for the reserves, capital expenditures, payment of real estate taxes, and for the repair and replacement of the Association's facilities and equipment. A copy of the proposed annual budget shall be communicated to each Lot or Dwelling owner at least thirty (30) days, but not more than sixty (60) days, prior to the adoption by the Board. The annual budget, approved by the Board, shall be acted upon at the November Board Meeting, or at such other meeting as the</p>	<p>Each year the Board shall prepare an annual budget which shall identify the Association's projected income and expenses for the next year, which shall include an appropriate amount for the reserve, capital expenditures, payment of real estate taxes, and for the repair and replacement of the Association's facilities and equipment. A copy of the proposed annual budget shall be communicated to each Owner at least thirty (30) days, but not more than sixty (60) days, prior to the adoption by the Board. The annual budget, approved by the Board, shall be acted upon at the November Board Meeting, or at such other meeting as the Board may</p>	<p>Language change in proposed Covenants are updates in definitions of Owner, Association, and Voting Member.</p>

<p>Section 5. Special Assessments not Included in the Annual Budget</p>	<p>Board may determine. If an adopted budget or any separate assessment adopted by the Board would result in the sum of all regular and separate assessments payable in the current fiscal year exceeding one hundred fifteen percent (115%) of the sum of all regular and separate assessments payable during the preceding fiscal year, the common interest community association, upon written petition by members with twenty (20) percent of the votes of the association delivered to the Board within fourteen (14) days of the Board action, shall call a meeting of the members within thirty (30) days of the date of delivery of the petition to consider the budget or separate assessment; unless a majority of the total votes of the members are cast at the meeting to reject the budget or separate assessment, it shall be deemed ratified.</p>	<p>determine. If an adopted budget or any separate assessment adopted by the Board would result in the sum of all regular and separate assessments payable in the current fiscal year exceeding one hundred fifteen percent (115%) of the sum of all regular and separate assessments payable during the preceding fiscal year, the Association, upon written petition by Voting Members with twenty (20) percent (20%) of the votes of the Association delivered to the Board within fourteen (14) days of the Board action, shall call a meeting of the Voting Members within thirty (30) days of the date of delivery of the petition to consider the budget or separate assessment; unless a majority of the total votes of the Voting Members are cast at the meeting to reject the budget or separate assessment, it shall be deemed ratified.</p>	
	<p>Assessments for additions and alterations to the common areas or to association-owned property not included in the adopted annual budget, shall be separately assessed and are subject to approval of a majority of the total Voting Members voting in person or by Written Ballot at a meeting duly called for this purpose, written notice of which shall be sent to all Voting Members at least thirty</p>	<p>Assessments for additions and alterations to the common areas or to a Association-owned property not included in the adopted annual budget, shall be separately assessed and are subject to approval of a majority of the total Voting Members voting in person or by Written Ballot at a meeting duly called for this purpose, written notice of which shall be sent to all Voting</p>	<p>The language change in the proposed Covenants is in the notification timelines for voting on Special Assessments.</p>

	(30) days in advance and shall set forth the purpose of the meeting.	Members not less than ten (10) and not more than thirty (30) days in advance and shall set forth the purpose of the meeting.	
Section 7. Quorum for Any Action Authorized Under Sections 4 and 5, CICAA Section 1-40 (b) (1)	The quorum required for any action requiring a vote under Section 4 and 5 hereof shall be twenty percent (20%) of the Voting Members eligible to vote at such meeting.	This Section was deleted from this document.	The Association Attorney felt that this Section is not something that the Board has the authority to add per Section 1-60(a) of the CCAA and it should be deleted.
Section 8. Due Date of Assessments	The annual assessments provided for herein shall become due and payable on the first day of March of said year, or on such other date or dates as may be established by the Board. The due date of any special assessment under Section 5 or 6 hereof shall be fixed in the resolution authorizing such assessment. Written notice of the assessment shall be sent to the Voting Member designated for each Lot or Dwelling subject thereto. If the assessment is not paid within ninety (90) days of the date on which it is due, written notice shall be sent to every Owner of that Lot or Dwelling at the last address on file at the Association office.	The annual assessments provided for herein shall become due and payable on the first day of March of said year, or on such other date or dates as may be established by the Board. The due date of any special assessment under Section 5 or 6 hereof shall be fixed in the resolution authorizing such assessment. Written notice of the assessment shall be sent to the Voting Member designated for each Lot subject thereto.	The Association Attorney recommended removing the language because for two reasons: (a) it could mean that the Association could take no action to collect an unpaid assessment during the initial 90 days that an assessment is passed due; (b) it also is not clear that the written notice is a demand letter, reminder, or a notice.
Section 9. Proof of Payment	The Association, upon demand and payment of a service fee of not more than \$25.00, shall at any time furnish to	The Association, upon demand and payment of a reasonable service fee as determined by the Board, shall at any	The language in the proposed Covenants was changed to a

	<p>any Owner liable for said assessment a certificate in writing signed by an authorized agent of the Association, setting forth whether said assessment has been paid. Such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of payment of any assessment therein stated to have been paid.</p>	<p>time furnish to any Owner liable for said assessment a certificate in writing signed by an authorized agent of the Association, setting forth whether said assessment has been paid. Such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of payment of any assessment therein stated to have been paid.</p>	<p>“reasonable service” as determined by the Board rather than a set fee of not more than \$25.</p>
<p>Section 10. Effect of Non-Payment of Assessment: The Personal Obligation of the Owner; the Lien; Remedies of Association</p>	<p>If the assessments are not paid on the date when due (being the dates specified in Section 8 hereof), then such assessment shall become delinquent and shall, together with such interest thereon and cost of collection thereof as hereinafter provided, thereupon become a continuing lien on the property which shall bind such property in the hands of the then Owner, his heirs, devisees, personal representatives and assigns. The personal obligation of the then Owner to pay such assessment, however, shall remain his personal obligation for the statutory period. If the assessment is not paid within thirty (30) days after the delinquency date, the assessment shall bear interest from the date of delinquency at a rate as determined by the Board from time to time. The Association may bring an action at law against the Owner personally obligated to pay the same or foreclose the lien against the property. There shall be added to the amount of</p>	<p>Any assessments (or installments thereof), other charges or expenses, including, but not limited to, annual assessments, special assessments and duly imposed fines, which an Owner is required to make or is liable for hereunder which are not paid when due shall be deemed delinquent and the Board shall have the right to assess a late fee for the delinquent payment. Additionally, if an assessment, charge or expense is not paid within thirty (30) days after the due date, the Board shall have those rights and remedies to enforce such collection as shall be provided or permitted by law and equity including, but not limited to, bringing suit for and on behalf of the Association to enforce collection of the amount due, the costs of said suit, and other fees and expenses together with interest, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and managing agent fees associated with collection of</p>	<p>The Association Attorney revised this section with provisions which are typically included in a section outlining an Association’s right related to unpaid assessments.</p>

such assessment the costs of preparing and filing the complaint in such action, and in the event a judgment is obtained, such judgment shall include interest on the assessment as above provided and a reasonable attorney' fee to be fixed by the court together with the costs of the action.

unpaid assessments, along with any and all interest, costs and other sums set forth above which the Association is entitled to receive. Without limiting the foregoing, if any Owners shall fail to pay any assessments, along with any and all interest, costs, and other sums set forth above which the Association is entitled to receive. Without limiting the foregoing, if any Owners shall fail to pay any assessments, charges or expenses required to be paid, the Board shall have such rights and remedies:

(a) The right to enforce the collection of such defaulting Owner's assessments, changes or payments, together with interest thereon, and all fees, expenses and costs including attorneys' fees, managing agent fees, and court costs, incurred in the collection thereof:

(b) The right to foreclose the lien created in favor of the Association for unpaid assessments and other changes, together with interest, costs, attorneys' fees, managing agent fees and other expenses associated with the cost of collecting the same provided for in Section 1 of this Article. The Board, acting on behalf of the

<p>Section 12. Exempt Property</p>	<p>The following property subject to this Declaration shall be exempted from the assessments, charge and lien created herein: (a) all properties to the extent of any easement or other interest therein dedicated and accepted by local public</p>	<p>other Owners, shall have the power to bid in the interest so foreclosed at foreclosure sale, and to acquire and hold, lease, mortgage and convey any interest so acquired. To the fullest extent permitted by law, any court shall be authorized to restrain the defaulting Owner from reacquiring his or her interest at such foreclosure sale; and</p> <p>(c) The right to take possession of such defaulting Owner's interest in their Dwelling and Lot, to maintain for the benefit of all the Owners an action for possession in the matter prescribed in the Illinois Eviction Act (735ILCS 5/9-101 et. seq.), as amended, and to execute leases of such defaulting Owner's interest in their Dwelling and Lot and apply rents derived therefrom against such unpaid assessments, charges or expenses.</p>	
		<p>The following property subject to this Declaration shall be exempted from the assessments, charge andlien created herein: (a) all properties to the extent of any easement or other interest therein dedicated and accepted by</p>	<p>The Association Attorney recommended removing the language in (d) of this section was removed because he feels that no Lot should</p>

	<p>authority and devoted to the public use; (b) all Common Properties; © Reserved Properties; (d) all properties exempted from taxation by the laws of the State of Illinois, upon the terms and to the extent of such legal exemption. Notwithstanding any provisions herein, no land or improvements devoted to dwelling use shall be exempt from said assessments, charges or liens.</p>	<p>local public authority and devoted to the public use; (b) all Common Properties; and © Reserved Properties. Notwithstanding any provisions herein, no land or improvements devoted to dwelling use shall be exempt from said assessments, charges or liens.</p>	<p>be exempt from assessment.</p>
<p>Section 13. Restricted Lots</p>	<p>The Owner of any Lot upon which no Structure has been erected may enter into an agreement with the Association wherein the Owner agrees that said Lot shall remain forever vacant open space upon which no Structure of any kind shall be erected, except one requested by the Association and agreed upon by the Owner and the Board. All agreements creating a Restricted Lot shall be in substance and form acceptable to the Board and suitable for recording, and when agreed to by the Association shall be recorded with the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County, Illinois. Restricted Lots subject to such an agreement shall begin in the year following the recording of such agreement be liable for only sixty (60) percent of any future annual assessments. Restricted Lots shall continue to remain liable for any Special Assessments approved pursuant to</p>	<p>Restricted Lots are those Lots without any Structure erected on the Lot and for which an agreement has been entered between the Owner of the Lot and the Association wherein the Owner agreed that said Lot shall remain forever vacant open space upon which no Structure of any kind shall be erected, except one requested by the Association and agreed upon by the Owner and the Board. All such Restricted Lot agreements were required to be recorded with the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County, Illinois. Restricted Lots subject to such an agreement shall, beginning in the year following the recording of such agreement, be liable for only sixty percent (60%) of any future annual assessments. Restricted Lots shall continue to remain liable for any Special Assessments approved pursuant to Section 5 or 6 of this</p>	<p>This language in the proposed Covenants removes the ability to restrict a Lot but grandfather those Lots that have been restricted. An Exhibit C has been added listing the Restricted Lots.</p>

<p>Section 14. Senior Exemption</p>	<p>Section 5 or 6 hereof. The Owner of a Restricted Lot shall have all the rights and privileges of any other Owner, except as modified by such agreement, and shall continue to remain responsible for the maintenance of such Restricted Lot as is the Owner of any other vacant Lot.</p>	<p>Article. The Owner of a Restricted Lot shall have all of the rights and privileges of any other Owner, except as modified by such agreement, and shall continue to remain responsible for the maintenance of such Restricted Lot as is the Owner of any other vacant Lot. The list of approved Restricted Lots is attached hereto on Exhibit "C". Lots which have previously been approved by the Board as Restricted Lots may remain as Restricted Lots unless the Owner of the Lot and the Board agree to rescind the Restricted Lot agreement, in which case the Lot shall be treated in the same manner as all other non-Restricted Lots for assessment purposes. No additional Lots may be granted Restricted Lot status following the recording of this Declaration.</p>	
	<p>If a Dwelling qualifies for the Senior Citizen Assessment Freeze as provided in the Jo Daviess County, Illinois Ordinances in effect from time to time, such Dwelling shall be exempt from any increase in future annual assessments which become effective the year after the granting of such Senior Citizen Assessment Freeze. The Owner of a Dwelling which qualifies for this Senior Exemption shall before January 1st provide the Association with satisfactory</p>	<p>If a Lot qualifies for the Senior Citizen Assessment Freeze ("Senior Exemption") as provided in the Jo Daviess County, Illinois Ordinances in effect from time to time, such Lot shall be exempt from any increase in future annual assessments which become effective the year after the granting of such Senior Exemption. The Owner of a Lot which qualifies for this Senior Exemption shall, on an annual basis before January 1st each year, provide</p>	<p>The language in the proposed Covenants is clarifying language for Senior Exemption and added "on an annual basis" to clarify that it must be filed annually.</p>

	<p>evidence that the Dwelling has qualified for the Senior Assessment Freeze program for the following year. Such Dwelling shall continue to remain liable for any Special Assessments approved pursuant to Section 5 or 6 hereof. All such Senior Exemptions shall end on the year immediately following the first to occur of the conveyance or transfer of the Dwelling to a third party the death of the last surviving Owner entitled to such Senior Citizen Assessment Freeze.</p>	<p>the Association with satisfactory evidence that the Lot has qualified for the Senior Exemption program for the following year. Such Lot shall continue to remain liable for any Special Assessments approved pursuant to Section 5 or 6 hereof. All such Senior Exemptions shall end on the year immediately following the first to occur of the conveyance or transfer of the Lot to a third party or the death of the last surviving Owner entitled to such Senior Exemption.</p>	
<p>Article VII Architectural and Environmental Control Committee</p> <p>Section 1. Powers of the Committee</p>	<p>a. Generally. No Dwelling, Multifamily Structure, Dwelling Accessory Building, Structure, Driveway, Water Facility, fence, wall or other structure of any type or kind may be commended, erected nor shall any exterior addition to or change or alteration be commenced or made on any Lot or on any of the Common Properties or Reserved Properties subject to this</p>	<p>a. Generally. No Dwelling, Multifamily Structure, Dwelling Accessory Building, Structure, Driveway, Water Facility, fence, wall or other structure of any type or kind may be commended, erected nor shall any exterior addition to or change or alteration be commenced or made on any Lot or on any of the Common Properties or Reserved</p>	<p>The Association Attorney added clarifying language, stating additions, alterations or changes to the Common Properties and Reserved Properties may be made by the Board. The Owner must go through AECC for additions, alterations or</p>

	<p>Amended Declaration without the prior written approval of the Architectural and Environmental Control Committee (AECC). Such approval shall be obtained only after written application has been made to the AECC by the Owner of the Lot requesting authorization from the AECC. Such written application shall be in the manner and form prescribed from time to time by the AECC and shall be accompanied by two (2) complete sets of plans and specifications for any such proposed construction or improvement. Such plans shall include plot plans showing the location of all improvements existing upon said Lot and the location of the improvement proposed to be constructed or placed upon said Lot, each properly and clearly designated; said plans shall also show the building lines shown on the recorded plat of subdivision. Such plans shall set forth the color and composition of all exterior materials proposed to be used, together with any other material or information which the AECC may require from time to time. All plans, drawings and</p>	<p>Properties subject to this Declaration without the prior written approval of the Architectural and Environmental Control Committee (AECC); provided, that, additions, alterations or changes to the Common Properties and Reserved Properties may be made by the Board. Such approval shall be obtained only after written application has been made to the AECC by the Owner of the Lot requesting authorization from the AECC. Such written application shall be in the manner and form prescribed from time to time by the AECC and shall be accompanied by two (2) complete sets of plans and specifications for any such proposed construction or improvement. Such plans shall include plot plans showing the location of all improvements existing upon said Lot and the location of the improvement proposed to be constructed or placed upon said Lot, each properly and clearly designated; said plans shall also show the building lines shown on the recorded plat of subdivision.</p>	<p>changes to any Lot or any of the Common Properties or Reserved Properties subject to this Declaration without prior written approval of the AECC.</p>
--	---	---	--

	<p>other documentation required to be submitted to the AECC shall be as the AECC may require. There shall also be submitted, where applicable, the permits or reports required under Article III of the Amended Declaration (See, Art. III, Sec. II, Wells and Plumbing.) All such plot plans shall be prepared by either a registered land surveyor or engineer or architect; except that plans for Driveways, Water Facilities, wall or fences need not be prepared by such professionals. No grading of the lot shall be permitted without the prior written approval of the AECC. The AECC shall have the power, subject to the Board's approval to adopt building codes, guidelines and standards governing the quality, design, workmanship and materials and colors to be used for all proposed construction or improvements.</p>	<p>Such plans shall set forth the color and composition of all exterior materials proposed to be used, together with any other material or information which the AECC may require from time to time. All plans, drawings and other documentation required to be submitted to the AECC shall be as the AECC may require. There shall also be submitted, where applicable, the permits required under Article III of the Declaration. (See, Art. III, Sec. II, Wells and Plumbing.) The AECC shall have the power subject to the Board's approval, to adopt building codes, guidelines and standards governing the quality, design, workmanship and materials and colors to be used for all-proposed construction or improvements.</p>	<p>The language of "All such plot plans shall be prepared by either a registered land surveyor or engineer or architect" et. al was removed because the language is in the Architectural and Building Code and does not need to be in the proposed Declaration.</p>
--	--	--	---

<p>Section 4. Liability of the AECC and the Association</p>	<p>Neither the AECC or nor any agent thereor, nor the Association, shall be responsible in any way for the defects in any plans, specifications or other materials submitted to it, nor for any of the work done according thereto.</p>	<p>No approval of plans and specifications submitted by an Owner pursuant to this Article by the AECC or Board shall be construed as representing or implying that such plans and specifications shall, if followed, result in properly designed improvements. Such approvals shall in no event be construed as representing or guaranteeing that any Dwelling, Multifamily Structure, Dwelling Accessory Building, Structure, Driveway, Water Facility, fence, wall or other structure of any type or other improvement built in accordance therewith shall be built in a good and workmanlike manner. Neither the Association, the Board nor the AECC shall be responsible or liable for any defects in any plans or specifications submitted, revised or approved pursuant to the terms of this Article, any loss or damages to any Natural Person or Legal Entity arising out of the approval or disapproval of any plans or specifications, any loss or damage arising from the non-compliance of such plans or specifications with any governmental ordinances and regulations, nor any defects in construction undertaken pursuant to such plans and</p>	<p>The Association Attorney wrote new language regarding Liability of the AECC and the Association.</p>
---	---	---	---

Section 6. Satellite Dishes and Antennas	This section is not in this document.	<p>specifications.</p> <p>No radio or television antennas or satellite dishes shall be affixed or placed upon or on any portion of the Common Properties or Reserved Properties without the prior written approval of the AECC or Board. The placement, installation and use of antennas and satellite dishes on or upon the Dwellings and Lots by Owners shall be subject to all applicable provisions of the rules and regulations adopted by the Board. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the installation of any satellite dish or antenna shall be at the Owner's sole risk and sole cost and expense. This provision, however, is not intended to interfere with the Owners' rights to adequate reception under the 1996 Telecommunications Act or other presents, or future, federal or Illinois statutes.</p>	The Association Attorney wrote this language because it was not in the Amended Declaration. This language is also included in the Architectural and Environmental Building Code.
Section 7. Remedies for Un-Approved Additions and Alterations	This section is not in this document.	If an addition, alteration or improvement that requires AECC approval hereunder is made to a Dwelling or Lot by an Owner without the prior written approval of the AECC or Board, then the Association may, at the discretion of the Board and in addition to all other rights of	This is new language written by the Association Attorney regarding Remedies for Unapproved Additions and Alterations. This language adds a

		<p>enforcement provided to the Association as set forth in this Declaration, the Bylaws, rules and regulations or as provided at law or in equity, take any of the following actions;</p> <p>(a) Require the Owner to remove the addition, alteration or improvement and restore the Dwelling and Lot to the condition that existed prior to the making of the addition, alteration or improvement, all at the Owner's expense; or</p> <p>(b) If the Owner refuses or fails to properly perform the work required under subsection (a) hereof, the Board may cause such work to be done and may charge the Owner for the cost thereof as determined by the Board; or</p> <p>(c) Ratify the action taken by the Owner, and the Board may, but shall not be required to, condition such ratification upon the same conditions that it may impose upon the giving of its prior approval under this Article.</p>	<p>provision outlining specific remedies available to the Association if an Owner makes an improvement or alteration without first obtaining AECC approval.</p>
<p>Article IX General Provisions</p>			
<p>Section 1. Term and Amendment</p>	<p>The covenants and restrictions of this Amended Declaration shall run with and</p>	<p>The covenants and restrictions of this Declaration shall run with and bind the</p>	<p>The changes in the language in the</p>

	<p>bind the land, and shall inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the Association, or the Owner of any land subject to this Amended Declaration, their respective legal representatives, heirs, successors and assigns. Said covenants shall be automatically extended for successive periods of one (1) year, unless this Amended Declaration is amended by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the Voting Members eligible to vote in person or by Written Ballot at a meeting of the Association duly called for the purpose of changing the Amended Declaration, written notice of which shall be sent to all Voting members at least thirty (30) days in advance. At any such meeting a quorum shall consist of twenty percent (20% of all eligible Voting Members. All such amendments shall be effective upon filing with the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County, Illinois, a certified copy of a resolution adopted by the Board certifying that the amendment of this Amended Declaration has been approved by the required vote.</p>	<p>land, and shall inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the Association, or the Owner of any land subject to this Declaration, their respective legal representatives, heirs, successors and assigns. Said covenants shall be automatically extended for successive periods of one (1) year, unless this Declaration is amended by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Voting Members eligible to vote in person or by Written Ballot at a meeting of the Association duly called for the purpose of changing the Declaration, written notice of which shall be sent to all Voting Members not less than ten (10) and not more than thirty (30) days prior to such meeting. All such amendments shall be effective upon filing with the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County, Illinois, a certified copy of a resolution adopted by the Board certifying that the amendment of this Declaration has been approved by the required vote.</p>	<p>proposed Amendment is to clarify the notice requirements of CICAA.</p>
<p>Section 3. Enforcement</p>	<p>Enforcement of this Amended Declaration shall be by any proceeding at law or in equity against any person or persons violating or attempting to violate any covenant or restriction, either to</p>	<p>This section has been removed from this document.</p>	<p>This language has been moved to Article X. Section 1. in the proposed Declaration. According to the</p>

	restrain violation or to recover damages, and against the land to enforce any lien created by these covenants; and failure by the Association or any Owner to enforce any covenant or restriction herein contained shall in no event be deemed a waiver of the right to do so thereafter.		Association Attorney, it revises former Article IX. Section 3. With a general enforcement provision regarding the Association and each owner's right to enforce the terms of the Declaration.
Section 4. No Waiver.	This section is not in this document.	No covenants, restrictions, conditions, obligations, or provisions contained in this Declaration shall be deemed to have been arogated or waived by reason or any failure to enforce the same, irrespective of the number of violations or breaches which may occur.	The Association Attorney added this language as a typical provision regarding the Declaration not being waived by lack of enforcement.
Section 5. Gender Neutrality	This section is not in this document.	Unless the provisions of this Declaration require otherwise, words imparting the masculine gender shall include the feminine, words imparting the feminine gender, shall include the masculine, words imparting the singular number shall include the plural, and words imparting the plural shall include the singular.	The Association Attorney added this language as a typical provision regarding use of terms within this Document.
Section 6. Rule Against Perpetuities	This section is not in this document.	The covenants, restrictions, conditions, reservations, easements, charges, liens and other provisions as delineated in this Declaration shall run with and bind the land so as to insure the Owners full enjoyment and benefit	The Association Attorney added this language typically included in this type of provisions concerning the rule against

		<p>of their Dwellings and Lots. If, and to the extent that, any of the covenants, restrictions, conditions, reservations, easements, charges, liens or other provisions contained in this Declaration would otherwise be unlawful or void for violation of:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> (a) The rule against perpetuities; (b) The rule restricting restraints on alienation; or (c) Any other applicable statute or common law rule analogous thereto or otherwise imposing limitations upon the time for which such covenants may be valid, then the provision concerned shall continue and endure only after the expiration of a period of twenty-one (21) years after the death of the last to survive of the class of persons consisting of all of the lawful descendants of Tom Hanks, professional actor and star of such films as Sleepless in Seattle, Apollo 13, and Saving Private Ryan, living at the date this Declaration is recorded. 	<p>perpetuities which is an old legal rule providing that restrictions against real estate cannot last forever.</p> <p>The Attorney states that the Rule Against Perpetuities requires that any document containing restrictions on real estate must name a specific person and those restrictions shall last until 21 years after the death of the person that are living at the time the document takes effect.</p>
<p>Section 7. Liberal Construction</p>	<p>This section is not in this document.</p>	<p>The provisions of this Declaration shall be liberally construed to effectuate its purpose of creating a uniform plan for the operation of a first-class development.</p>	<p>The Association Attorney added this language as a general provision regarding how the terms of the</p>

	This section is not in this document.	The Article and Section headings are intended for convenience only and shall not be construed with any substantive effect in this Declaration. In the event of any conflict between statements made in recitals to this Declaration and the provisions contained in the body of this Declaration, the provisions in the	Declaration will be interpreted.
Section 8. Headings/Captions	This section is not in this document.	The Article and Section headings are intended for convenience only and shall not be construed with any substantive effect in this Declaration. In the event of any conflict between statements made in recitals to this Declaration and the provisions contained in the body of this Declaration, the provisions in the	The Association Attorney added this language as a typical provision regarding the headings/captions used in this Document.
Section 9. Waiver and Release of Claims	This section is not in this document.	To the extent allowed by any policy of insurance owned by him or her, each Owner hereby waives and releases any and all claims which he or she may have against any other Owner, the Association, its officers, members of the Board, the managing agent of the Association, if any, and their respective employees and agents for damage to the Common Properties, the Dwellings and Lots, or to any personal property located therein caused by fire or other casualty, to the extent that such damage is covered by fire or other form of casualty insurance.	The Association Attorney added this language as a typical waiver provision whereby each owner waives any claims they may have against the Association or other Owners for damage to the extent insurance proceeds are available for the damage.
Section 10. Security.	This section is not in this document.	The Association may, but is not obligated to, provide measures of security on The Properties from time to time; however, the Association is not a provider of security and shall have no duty or obligation to provide any	The Association Attorney added this language as a general disclaimer provision which provides that the Association is not

		<p>security on The Properties. The obligation to provide security lies solely with each Owner individually. The Association shall not be held liable for any loss or damage by reason of failure to provide adequate security or ineffectiveness of security measures undertaken.</p>	<p>obligated to provide security but if it takes any type of security measures (which is not obligated to do) this does not mean it is a provider of security.</p>
<p>Article X Remedies</p> <p>Section 1. Enforcement</p>	<p>This section is not in this document.</p>	<p>In addition to or in conjunction with all other rights herein granted to the Association, the Association or any Owner, their successors or assigns, shall have the right to enforce the provisions of this Declaration, Bylaws and rules and regulations of the Association by any proceeding at law or in equity against any natural Person(s) or Legal Entity or Entities violating or attempting to violate any such provisions, and further the Association shall have the right levy a fine, following notice and an opportunity to be heard, against such Natural Person(s) or Legal Entity or Entities. All rights and remedies may be exercised at any time and from time to time, cumulatively, or otherwise, and failure of the Association or any Owner to enforce any such provisions shall in no way be deemed a waiver of the right to do so thereafter. All costs and expenses incurred by the Association</p>	<p>The Association Attorney suggested moving this Section 1 from Article IX. Section 3. And placing it here.</p>

<p>Section 2. Board Self Help</p>	<p>This section is not in this document.</p>	<p>in connection with any such proceedings or with exercising the Board's self-help rights as set forth in Section 2 of this Article, including, but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs and managing agent fees, shall be assessed against any Owner violating any such provisions and shall be a charge and constitute a lien on his or her Lot and be enforceable in the same manner as unpaid assessments as provided in this Declaration and recoverable by the Association as part of any such proceedings.</p>	
		<p>In the event of a violation or breach by an Owner of the provisions, covenants or restrictions of this Declaration, the Bylaws, or rules or regulations of the Board, where such violation or breach may be cured or abated by affirmative action, then the Board, upon not less than ten (10) days' prior written notice to the Owner, shall have the right to enter upon that part of the Property, including, but not limited to, any Dwelling exterior and Lot, where the violation or breach exists to remove or rectify the violation or breach at the expense of the Owner in violation or breach, and the Board, or its agents, shall not thereby be deemed guilty in any manner of trespass; provided, that,</p>	<p>The Association Attorney added this language as a typical provisions regarding the Board's ability to take certain remedial actions without having to file a lawsuit. As an example, if an owner left garbage on his or her Lot and failed to remove it after written notice from the Association, this would permit the Association to go onto the Owner's Lot and have the garbage removed and charge any costs</p>

		<p>if the violation or breach exists within a Dwelling, judicial proceedings must be instituted before any items of construction can be altered or demolished.</p>	<p>incurred back to the owner without first having to file a lawsuit over this. This section would not, however, permit the Association to remove an item of construction from a home without a court order.</p>
<p>Section 3. Managing Agent Fees</p>	<p>This section is not in this document.</p>	<p>Any and all managing agent fees and costs associated with the collection of delinquent assessments and/or curing an Owner's or Occupant's breach or violation of the Declaration, Bylaws, and/or rules and regulations shall be assessed back to the defaulting Owner's account and become an additional obligation and charge of such delinquent Owner. To assist the Association in collecting delinquent assessments and/or curing violations of the Declaration, Bylaws and/or rules and regulations from the Owners, the managing agent, if any, may perform the following duties: prepare and issue delinquency notices, prepare and issue statutory and other demand letters, order an ownership (tract) search to verify current ownership of the delinquent Lot, prepare and record a lien against the delinquent Lot for unpaid assessments or other changes</p>	<p>The Association Attorney added language specifically permitting the Association to charge back fees charged by a management company with respect to collection of unpaid assessments and outlines certain actions the manager may take with respect to collections.</p>

		<p>and any such other services performed in an effort to assist the Association in the collection of delinquent assessments or other charges or curing breaches or violations of the Declaration, Bylaws and rule and regulations. The managing agent is entitled to receive a reasonable fee for such services performed, as more fully outlined in the management agreement entered into between the managing agent and the Association.</p>	
<p>Section 4. Fees Associated with mortgage Foreclosure</p>	<p>This section is not in this document.</p>	<p>All expenses and fees, including, but not limited to, managing agent fees, attorneys' fees and court costs, incurred by the Association as a result of the Association being included as a defendant in a mortgage foreclosure action shall be assessed back to the Owner sued in such foreclosure action and become an additional obligation and charge of such delinquent Owner.</p>	<p>The Association Attorney added language providing that if the Association chooses to file an appearance in a mortgage foreclosure lawsuit in which it has been named a defendant then the fees and costs incurred by the Association could be charged back to the Owner that was named in the lawsuit.</p>
<p>Article XI Maintenance, Repairs and Replacements</p>			
<p>Section 1.</p>	<p>This section is not in this document.</p>	<p>Each Owner shall be responsible for</p>	<p>The Association</p>

<p>Maintenance by Owners</p>		<p>the maintenance, repair, and replacement of his or her Dwelling and Lot at such Owner's sole cost and shall keep his or her Dwelling and Lot in good condition and repair.</p>	<p>Attorney added language as a specific provision requiring Owners to keep their Lots and home in good condition and repair.</p>
<p>Section 2. Owner Failure to Maintain</p>		<p>If, in the judgment of the AECC, an Owner fails to maintain his or her Dwelling and Lot in good condition and repair or the appearance of such Owner's Dwelling and Lot is not of the quality of that of other Dwellings and Lot in The Properties or in compliance with rules and regulations adopted by the Board from time to time, then the Association may, in its discretion, take the following action: (i) The AECC may advise the Owner of the work that must be done and allow the Owner at least twenty (20) days (or less in the case of an emergency) to cause the work to be done; and (ii) If the work is not done to the satisfaction of the AECC, in its sole judgment, then the AECC may levy a fine and, in addition, the Board may see injunctive relief, and/or enter upon such Owner's Dwelling and Lot to cause such work to be done and the cost thereof shall be a charge payable by the Owner to the Association upon demand in the same manner as unpaid assessments.</p>	<p>The Association Attorney added language as a typical provision regarding the Association's remedies if an Owner fails to keep their home and Lot in good repair.</p>

<p>Section 3. Willful and Negligent Damage</p>	<p>This section is not in this document.</p>	<p>If, due to the act or omission of an Owner, his or her family, tenants, servantsb, pets, guests or invitees or other authorized Occupant of the Owner's Dwelling or Lot, damage is caused to the Common Properties or Reserved Properties and maintenance, repairs, or replacements shall be required thereby, which would otherwise be an Association expense, then such Owner shall pay for such damage and such maintenance, repairs and replacements, as determined by the Board, and the cost of such maintenance, repairs, or replacements, and any damage, shall be added to and become a part of the assessment to which such Owner's Lots is subject and the Association shall have a lien upon said Lot enforceable in the manner and to the extent herein set forth in this Declaration and the failure of such Owner to pay such costs shall carry with it the same consequences as the failure to pay any assessments levied hereunder when due, as herein provided.</p>	<p>The Association Attorney added a typical provision permitting the Association to charge back any cost it incurs to repair damage to the Common Properties caused by an Owner or his tenants, guests, pets, etc.</p>
--	--	--	--

**At the conclusion of the proposed Declaration will be an Amendment section. In this section will be a Board of Directors' adopted (March 18, 2020) ACL Homeowners' Energy Policy Statement. The Illinois Homeowners' Policy Statement Act (765 ILCS 165/eq.seq.) requires the amendment to be attached to the Association's Declaration.

APPLE CANYON ~~LAKE~~PROPERTYLAKE PROPERTY OWNERS' ASSOCIATION
AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS

2019 Version

PREAMBLE

This instrument is recorded for the purpose of replacing, in its entirety, the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended and Restated Bylaws (hereinafter referred to as the "2017 Bylaws"), recorded on November 21, 2017 as Document No. 396754 in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds, Jo Daviess County, Illinois.

This Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended and Restated Bylaws is adopted pursuant to the provisions of Article XVII, Sections 1 and 2 of the 2017 Bylaws. This Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended and Restated Bylaws, the text of which is set forth below, shall become effective following its approval by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast by the Voting Members voting at a regular or special meeting of the Voting Members, provided that notice of such meeting shall be sent to all Voting Members at least fourteen (14), and not more than forty (40), days in advance of such meeting, and upon its recording in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds, Jo Daviess County, Illinois.

This Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended and Restated Bylaws, as adopted, shall be included among Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Governing Documents, as amended from time to time, sometimes described as "Community Instruments", which shall be understood to mean all of the following. In the event of any inconsistency in the provisions of any of the Governing Documents, the lower numbered document shall control:

1. Illinois Common Interest Community Association Act ("CICAA") (765 ILCS 160/1-1 et. seq.)
2. Illinois General Not-For-Profit Corporation Act (805 ILCS 105/101.01 et. seq.)
3. Articles of Incorporation
4. Declaration
5. Bylaws
6. ACL Building and Environmental Code
7. Board Approved Policies
8. Rules and Regulations**EFFECTIVE NOVEMBER 6, 2011**
9. Board Approved Committee/Commission Operations and Procedures

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association (hereinafter referred to as the "Association"), through its Board of Directors, administers the property legally described in Exhibit "A", which is attached hereto and made a part hereof (hereinafter referred to as "The Properties", as further defined in the Declaration);

WHEREAS, the 2017 Bylaws were recorded on November 21, 2017 as Document No. 396754 in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds, Jo Daviess County, Illinois;

WHEREAS, the Board and the Owners of the Association desire to amend and restate the 2017 Bylaws, replacing it, in its entirety, with this Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended and Restated Bylaws;

WHEREAS, this Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended and Restated Bylaws is adopted pursuant to Article XVII, Sections 1 and 2 of the 2017 Bylaws, having been approved by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast by the Voting Members voting at a regular or special meeting of the Voting Members, following notice of such meeting sent to all Voting Members at least fourteen (14), and not more than forty (40) days in advance thereof; and

WHEREAS, this Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended and Restated Bylaws shall become effective upon recordation in the Offices of the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County, Illinois.

NOW THEREFORE, the 2017 Bylaws are hereby amended and restated as follows:

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS

Section 1.

All capitalized terms used, but not otherwise defined in these Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended and Restated Bylaws (hereinafter referred to as the "Bylaws") which are defined in the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions, effective November 6, 2014 for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association, as amended from time to time, (hereinafter referred to as the Restated Declaration Covenants) shall have the same meaning when used in these Bylaws.

Section 2.

- a. CICAA shall mean the Common Interest Community Association Act, ~~Public Act 096-1400~~, (765 ILCS 160), ~~effective July 29, 2010, /1 et. seq.)~~ as hereafter amended or supplemented under applicable Illinois law.
- b. ~~Governing Documents, sometimes described as Community Instruments, shall be understood to mean all of the following. In the event of any inconsistency in the provisions of any of the Governing Documents, the lower numbered document shall control:~~

- ~~i. CIGAA~~
- ~~ii. Illinois General Not-For-Profit Corporation Act (805 ILCS 105/101.01 et. seq.)~~
- ~~iii. Restated Articles of Incorporation effective November 6, 2011.~~
- ~~iii. Restated Covenants effective November 6, 2011, as amended.~~
- ~~iv. Restated Bylaws, effective November 6, 2011 Covenants, as amended.~~
- ~~v. These Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, revised September 20, 2009, as adopted and amended from time to time.~~
- ~~viii. ACL Building & Environmental Code~~
- ~~vii. Board Approved Policies, as adopted and amended from time to time.~~
- ~~viii. Rules and Regulations, as adopted and amended from time to time.~~
- ~~vii. Board Approved Committee/Commission Operations and Procedures, as adopted and amended from time to time.~~
- ~~be. Restated "Articles of Incorporation" shall mean the Restated Articles of Incorporation approved by the members Voting Members of the Association, ~~to be effective on November 6, 2011.~~ as amended.~~
- ~~cd. "The Apple Core" shall mean the newspaper published periodically (typically monthly) by the Association and sent postage prepaid via the United States Postal Service to all Owners and Voting Members at their last known address, and available on the Association website as of the date of publication and mailing, which contains notices of all regular and special meetings of the Association's Voting Members and its Board of Directors, and information, news and commentary with respect to the Common Properties and Facilities, and the activities, finances and projects of the Association. Publication of notices of meetings, Association documents, including but not limited to the annual budget, annual and special dues and assessments, fees, minutes of the meetings of the Board and the Committees and Commissions of the Association shall constitute notice as required by law and Association's Governing Documents, which shall be deemed to have been sent to all Owners and Voting Members on the day it is mailed. The Board shall adopt policies regarding the publication of any and all materials to be printed in *The Apple Core*, which shall be administered by the Editorial Review Commissiontee. (See Article ~~XIII~~XII, Section ~~18~~2.)~~
- ~~de. "Voting Member Ticket" shall mean a petition signed by fifty (50) Voting Members which identifies the name(s) of the Member Owner whose name is to be added to the Ballot by the Nominating Committee along with all other candidates to be elected to the Board by the Voting Members at the next election, as provided in Article ~~VII~~VI, Section 5 of these Bylaws.~~
- ~~ef. "Ballot Envelope" shall mean an envelope clearly designated on the outside as a Ballot Envelope, which shall be used by Voting Members to insert the Written Ballot(s) the Voting Member(s) is casting in any election. The Ballot Envelope~~

shall contain no information that would identify the Voting Member using it or the nature of the vote being cast by said Voting Member.

- fg. "Return Envelope" shall mean an envelope prepared by the Association and sent to each Voting Member for the purpose of being used for the return of Ballot Envelopes to the Association in connection with all votes being conducted by the Association. All Return Envelopes shall be addressed to the offices of the Association, and shall have clearly designated on the outside the identity of the Voting Member to whom it was sent, and the identification of each Lot or Dwelling for which the Voting Member has the right to cast Written Ballots.
- gh. "Nominating Committee Guidelines" shall mean the written procedures adopted by the Nominating Committee and approved by the Board that shall be followed by the Nominating Committee in the recruitment and interviewing of candidates for the Board, and for providing the Voting Members with all relevant information concerning those candidates who seek to be elected to the Board at the next annual meeting. (See Article XXXI, Section 310.)
- hi. "Tellers Committee Commission Guidelines" shall mean the written procedureprocedures adopted by the Tellers CommitteeCommission and approved by the Board prior to the annual meeting that shall be followed by the Tellers CommitteeCommission when it counts all Written Ballots cast on all matters during that year. (See Article XXXI, Section 417(a).)

ARTICLE II MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. ~~Membership is defined. Membership in the Association shall be as provided in Article IV, Section 1 of the Restated DeclarationCovenants, which provides:~~

~~Section 1. — Membership. — Membership in the Association shall be the privilege of each Natural Person, and his or her spouse, who is the legal or equitable Owner of any Lot or Dwelling; except that no Lot or Dwelling shall have as Owners more than three (3) Natural Persons, including their spouses. Any Legal Entity which owns any Lot or Dwelling may designate one (1) Natural Person, including his or her spouse, as a Member of the Association. Each such designation by a Legal Entity shall be in writing and shall provide the name, address and telephone number of the Member, including any spouse, which person shall be the Voting Member as defined in Section 2. After the initial designation, changes in the identity of the Voting Member can be made only with the approval of the Board, or upon a showing that the change in the identity of the Voting Member has resulted from a bona fide change in the ownership interest of the Legal Entity making the request. The Board's decision in all such matters shall be binding and final. — Any Natural Person or Legal Entity that holds a legal or equitable interest in any Lot or Dwelling as security for the performance of an obligation shall not be a Member. Every Member, including any spouse of a Member, shall provide the Association with his or her current mailing address and telephone number.~~

Section 2. The membership rights of any Natural Person who is the legal or equitable Owner of any Lot, or is the designated Member of any Lot owned by a Legal Entity, or of any Occupant isare subject to the payment of any and all annual and special assessments on all

Lots and Dwellings owned by said MemberOwner. Whether or not he or she is personally obligated to pay such dues or assessments, any Member's rights to use the Common Properties and Facilities may be suspended by action of the Board during the period when the dues or assessments remain unpaid. Upon payment of the unpaid dues and assessments, his or her rights and privileges shall be automatically restored.

~~Section 3. Any person, who is the spouse of a Member, if appointed by the Board, shall be eligible to serve as full member of any committee, subcommittee or any other body of the Association. Where the record owner of any lot or living unit is an entity (living trust, land trust, partnership, corporation, etc.) the record owner may designate one Natural Person as the Member of the Association. The spouse of the Member so designated shall also be eligible to serve as a full member of any committee, subcommittee or other body of the Association.~~

Section 4. Pursuant to Article V, Section 3 of the Restated DeclarationCovenants, the Board may from time to time ~~adoptsadopt~~ and ~~publishespublish~~ Rules and Regulations governing the use of the Common Properties and Facilities, the Properties, the Lots and Dwellings and the personal conduct of persons using all of the Common Properties and Facilities ~~same~~. The Board in its discretion may levy fines, penalties or other charges and/or suspend the Member'sOwner's/ right to use such Common Properties and Facilities for violation of such Rules and Regulations.

The Board may adopt such rules, regulations, guidelines and procedures from time to time, and provide for the creation of an appeals board to which MembersOwners who are issued citations for the violation of any rule or regulation may appeal. (See, Article ~~VIII~~VII, Section, 1(~~e~~), (~~pk~~), (l).)

xxx

ARTICLE III VOTING RIGHTS

The voting rights of membersMembers are as set forth in Article IV, Section 2, of the Restated DeclarationCovenants, ~~which provides:~~

~~Section 2. Voting Rights—One Voting Member.—The Owners of each Lot or Dwelling shall designate one Natural Person as the Voting Member for said Lot or Dwelling. Only the Voting Member, as defined in Article I, Section 1(x), shall be entitled to vote at any regular or special meeting of the Association, and only the Voting Member shall be sent notice of any regular or special meeting of the Association. In the event there are multiple Owners of a Lot or Dwelling who are Natural Persons, including their spouses, and they fail to designate one Natural Person as the Voting Member, the first person named in the deed conveying title to the Lot or Dwelling shall be deemed to be the Voting Member. In the event a Lot or Dwelling is owned by a Legal Entity, it shall designate one Natural Person to be the Voting Member. The failure of a Legal Entity to~~

~~designate a Voting Member shall be a bar to the right to vote on any matter, and the vote of such Lot or Dwelling shall not be counted for the determination of a quorum. Owners, other than a Legal Entity, may change the designation of the Voting Member at any time by delivering to the Association a written designation, signed by all of the Owners of the Lot or Dwelling, which contains the Voting Member's name, address and telephone number. Any such change in the designation of the Voting Member shall be effective when received by the Association.~~

~~Every Lot or Dwelling shall be entitled to one vote, provided that all assessments, charges, fees and fines which are due the Association are paid in full at the time of the vote. If the Association owns any Lot or Dwelling, it shall not have the right to cast any vote, and the vote of any such Lot or Dwelling shall not be counted for the purpose of determining a quorum. The total number of votes shall not exceed the total number of Lots or Dwellings in The Properties. The vote of a Lot or Dwelling shall not be divisible. If there is a dispute between or among the multiple Owners of a Lot or Dwelling as to who shall be the Voting Member, the vote for any such Lot or Dwelling shall not be counted for any purpose, including determining a quorum. For purposes of determining the votes allowed under this section, when Dwellings in Multifamily Structures are counted, the Lot or Lots upon which such Dwellings are situated shall not be counted.~~

ARTICLE IV

PROPERTY RIGHTS AND RIGHTS OF ENJOYMENT OF COMMON PROPERTIES

~~Section 1. Each Member shall be entitled to the use and enjoyment of the Common Properties and Facilities as provided by Article V of the Restated Covenants.~~

~~Section 1. Any Member may delegate his or her rights of enjoyment in the Common Properties and Facilities to any Occupant as defined in Article I, Section 1(u) of the Restated Covenants in accordance with such Rules and Regulations as may be adopted by the Board from time to time. The rights and privileges of all such Occupants are subject to suspension under Article II, Sections 2 and 4 of the Bylaws to the same extent as those of the delegating Member.~~

~~Section 2. Without limiting the generality of Section 2, Members may be permitted to introduce guests to use the Common Properties and Facilities only in accordance with the Rules and Regulations adopted by the Board from time to time. The rights and privileges of such guest are subject to suspension under Article II, Sections 2 and 4 of these Bylaws to the same extent as those of the Member introducing such guests.~~

ARTICLE V

ASSOCIATION PURPOSES AND POWERS

Section 1. The Association has been organized for the purposes as set forth in Article 5 of the ~~Restated Articles which provides:~~Articles of Incorporation and for the purposes as outlined within the Restated DeclarationCovenants.

~~To promote the health, safety and welfare of the property owners, residents and guests within all lots and properties (collectively, The Properties) in Branigar's Apple Canyon Lake Subdivision in Jo Daviess County, Illinois, in accordance with plat thereof recorded with the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County, and such additions thereto as may hereafter be brought within the jurisdiction, functions, duties and membership of the~~

~~Association by annexation as provided in the Restated Covenants, effective November 6, 2011, recorded with the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County, Illinois (as the same may be hereafter amended and supplemented, the Restated Covenants), for the purpose to own, acquire, build, operate and maintain a man-made reservoir, recreational waterway, recreation parks, playgrounds, swimming pools, golf courses, commons, streets, footways, including buildings, structures and personal properties incident thereto (the Common Properties and Facilities), pay any taxes assessed with respect thereto, provide any services normally provided by municipalities such as fire and police protection, enforce any and all covenants and restrictions applicable to The Properties and the Common Properties and Facilities and, insofar as permitted by law, do any other thing that, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, will promote the common benefit and enjoyment of the owners, residents and guests of The Properties and the Common Properties and Facilities.~~

Section 2. Additions to the Properties may be made only in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Restated DeclarationCovenants. The Association shall have power to dispose of the Common Properties and Facilities, and the Reserved Properties only as authorized by the applicable provisions of the Restated DeclarationCovenants.

Section 3. Subject to the applicable provisions of the Restated DeclarationCovenants, and to the extent provided by law, the Association may participate in mergers and consolidations. Any such merger shall be adopted only upon a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors and approved by at least two-thirds of the votes cast by the Voting Members at a special meeting of the Association duly called for such purpose, written notice of which shall be given at least ~~sixty (60)~~ten (10) and not more than thirty (30) days in advance to all Voting Members. At any such meeting a quorum shall consist of twenty percent (20%) of the votes of all Voting Members eligible to vote at such meeting.

Section 4. Subject to the following sentence, the Association may incur indebtedness for borrowed money or mortgage, pledge or grant security interests in the Common Properties and Facilities as determined from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Association shall not incur indebtedness in an amount that would result in the total principal amount of all indebtedness of the Association then outstanding, after giving effect to such incurrence, to exceed the total annual assessments, fees and other revenue of the Association from all sources for the most recently completed fiscal year of the Association, without the prior approval of a majority of the votes cast by the Voting Members at a ~~Special Meeting~~ of the Association duly called for such purpose, written notice of which shall be given at least ten (10) and not more than thirty (30) days in advance of said meeting. At any such meeting a quorum shall consist of twenty percent (20%) of the votes of all Voting Members.

Section 5. The Association may be dissolved only upon a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors and approved by at least two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast by the Voting Members at a special meeting of the Association duly called for such purpose, written notice of which shall be sent at least sixty (60) days in advance of said meeting. At any such meeting a quorum shall consist of twenty percent (20%) of the votes of all Voting Members. Upon dissolution of the Association, the Common Properties and Facilities and the Reserved Properties shall be dedicated to an appropriate public entity to be devoted to purposes as nearly as practicable the same as those to which they were required to be devoted by the Association. In the event that such dedication is refused acceptance, the Common Properties and Facilities and the Reserved

September 23, 2020

Properties shall be granted, conveyed and assigned to any nonprofit corporation, association, trust or other organization to be devoted to purposes as nearly as practicable the same as those to which they were required to be devoted by the Association. No such disposition shall be effective to divest or diminish any right or title of any ~~MemberOwner~~ vested in such ~~MemberOwner~~ under the Restated ~~DeclarationCovenants~~ unless made in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Restated ~~DeclarationCovenants~~.

~~ARTICLE V~~
~~ARTICLE VI~~
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the Board) each of whom must be ~~an Owner and/or a Voting~~ Member of the Association while serving on the Board. If there are multiple ~~ownersOwners~~ of a single ~~unitLot~~, only one of the multiple ~~ownersOwners~~ shall be eligible to serve as a member of the ~~boardBoard~~ at any one time, unless the ~~unit-ownerOwner~~ owns another ~~unitLot~~ independently.

Section 2. The Board shall consist of nine (9) members, three (3) of whom are elected by the Voting Members of the Association at each annual meeting and shall hold office for a term of three (3) years or until their successors are elected or appointed, and shall not be compensated for their service, but may be reimbursed for reasonable expenses actually incurred. No member of the Board may be engaged as an employee of the Association. Upon the adoption of the Bylaws all Board members who are then serving terms shall continue to serve until the annual meeting in June of the year when the term he or she is then serving expires.

Vacancies on the Board ~~shall~~may be filled by a two-thirds ~~(2/3)~~ vote of the remaining members of the Board until the next annual meeting, ~~of Voting Members~~ or until ~~Voting Members holding twenty percent (20%%)~~ of the ~~total~~ votes of the ~~Voting Members Association~~ request a special meeting to fill the vacancy, ~~in either case~~ for the balance of the term. If a special meeting is called to fill the vacancy, the special meeting shall be held no later than thirty (30) days following the filing of the petition for the Special Meeting. Notice shall be given pursuant to Article ~~XIVXIII~~, Section. 3. If the Board is unable to fill the vacancy or if there are no longer ~~at least~~ six (6) Board members, the remaining Board members shall call ~~ana special~~ election within ninety (90) days ~~of the vacancy occurring~~ to fill the vacancies.

~~Any duly appointed member of the Board is to hold office until his or her term expires or until his or her successor is elected by the Voting Members, or until the death, resignation or removal of the Board member.~~

~~ARTICLE VII~~

Section 3. New Board members shall as soon as practicable after being elected or appointed, complete a form providing the General Manager with his or her regular mailing address, telephone and fax number(s) and email address(s), if applicable. Any changes shall be communicated to the General Manager promptly.

ARTICLE VI
VOTING PROCEDURES
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Election to the Board and votes on all matters and issues requiring a vote of the Voting Members shall be by Written Ballot as described in Article ~~XV~~XIV and as provided herein. On any vote requiring approval of the Voting Members or on any election, the Voting Member may cast, in respect to each issue being voted upon, or for each Board vacancy, as many votes as he or she is entitled to exercise under the provisions of Article III of these Bylaws. The ~~Members~~Owners receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected to the Board. In case of a tie, the outcome shall be determined by a coin toss conducted by the General Manager at the annual meeting.

Section 2. Nominations for election to the Board shall be made by a Nominating Committee described in Article ~~XIII~~XII, Section ~~3~~10 of the Bylaws. Nominations may also be made by petition on a Voting Members Ticket as provided in Section 5 below.

Section 3. The Association shall maintain a current list of all Voting Members, which shall identify every Lot or Dwelling for which ~~a Member~~an individual is designated as the Voting Member. The Association shall send by first class mail in one envelope to each Voting Member the number of Written Ballots said Voting Member is entitled to cast, along with the Notice of the annual or special meeting and a description of the candidates who were nominated for election to the Board, or a description of the issue to be voted upon. Written Ballots shall be mailed to the Voting Members at least thirty (30) days but not more than forty-five (45) days in advance of the date on which the Written Ballot is to be cast.

Each Voting Member shall receive as many Written Ballots as he or she has votes. Notwithstanding that a Voting Member may be entitled to several votes, he or she shall exercise on any one Written Ballot only one vote for each vacancy shown thereon, or each issue described thereon. ~~The~~In the event that multiple positions on the Board are up for election at an election meeting, the Voting Member need not cast a vote for every candidate on the Written Ballot for a candidate to fill every Board position which is up for election, but cumulatively may not cast more than one (1) vote on each Written Ballot for any particular candidate. —Cumulative voting shall not be permitted. The completed Written Ballots shall be placed in the Ballot Envelope provided and returned in the Return Envelope provided.

Section 4. Upon receipt of each Return Envelope, the General Manager shall verify that the Voting Member whose name appears on the Return Envelope is authorized to cast Written Ballots for each Lot or Dwelling listed on the outside of the Return Envelope. The Return Envelopes shall be placed in a secure place until the date set for the annual or special meeting at which the votes are to be counted. On that day, the Return Envelopes containing the Ballot Envelopes shall be given, unopened, to the Tellers Committee. Written Ballots may also be cast in person on the day of the annual meeting or special meeting, up until the deadline for casting a vote, by placing the Written Ballot in within the Ballot Envelope into the designated ballot box, after the Voting Member's right to vote has been verified by the Tellers Committee. A Voting Member who had previously submitted a Return Envelope prior to the meeting at which the Written Ballots are to be counted, may, ~~prior to the meeting~~ upon verification of said

Voting ~~Members~~Member's eligibility to vote and up until the deadline for casting a vote, request that his or her Return Envelope be returned and that a new Written Ballot(s) and a new Ballot Envelope be supplied to permit such Voting Member to submit ~~ana~~ new Ballot Envelope and a new Written Ballot.

Section 5. Voting Members Ticket. Additional nominations of eligible Owners or Voting Members for election to fill one of the vacancies on the Board, which shall be known as a Voting Members Ticket may be made by Voting Members having at least fifty (50) total votes of Voting Members in the Association presenting a signed petition to the chair of the Nominating Committee not less than sixty (60) days preceding the date of the annual meeting. The Voting Members Ticket shall identify the name of the Owner or Voting Member, and, if he or she meets the qualifications of Article ~~VIV~~, Section 1, then his or her name shall be included on the Written Ballot sent to all Voting Members.

Section 6. If no election is held to elect Board members within the time period specified in ~~the~~these Bylaws, or within a reasonable amount of time thereafter, not to exceed ninety (90) days, then Voting Members having at least twenty-percent (20%) of the total votes of in the ~~Voting Members Association~~ may bring an action to compel compliance with the election requirements specified in the Bylaws. If the court finds that an election was not held to elect members of the Board within the required period due to the bad faith acts or omissions of the Board, the Voting Members shall be entitled to recover their reasonable attorney's fees and costs from the Association. If the relevant notice requirements have been met and an election is not held solely due to a lack of a quorum, then this Section 6 does not apply.

ARTICLE ~~VHVII~~ POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. The Board of Directors shall exercise for the Association all powers, duties and authority vested in the Association by law, including but not limited to the provisions of CICAA, as amended and in effect from time to time, or by the Restated DeclarationCovenants, or by the Bylaws, as amended and in effect from time to time, except for such powers, duties and authority reserved by law or by the Restated DeclarationCovenants to the Voting Members.

The duties of the Board shall include, but not be limited to the following:

- a. To elect from the Board members at the first meeting following the annual meeting the President, Vice-President, Treasurer and Secretary, and appoint such other persons who are authorized to serve as Assistant Treasurer or Assistant Secretary, and define their duties.
- b. To meet at least four (4) times annually.
- c. To provide for the operation, care, upkeep, maintenance, replacement and improvement of the Common Properties and Facilities and the Reserved Properties and Facilities, including the method of approving payment vouchers.
- d. To provide sound financial planning and financial controls, including adopting authorizations identifying those persons who are authorized to sign Association checks and

other corporate documents and to direct the financial affairs of the Association, and obtain adequate and appropriate insurance, and approve the annual budget for the Association.

e. To prepare and adopt each year an annual budget which shall identify the Association's projected income and expenses for the next year, which shall include an appropriate amount for the repair and replacement of the Association's Common Properties and Reserved Properties, its facilities and equipment, and shall provide an indication of which portions are intended for reserves, capital expenditures, repairs and the payment of real estate taxes. The annual budget shall include a statement of the annual assessment to be paid by the Members~~Owners~~ for the next year, and the fees to be charged for the next year. ~~Said~~A copy of the proposed annual budget shall be ~~published in The Apple Core and posted on the Association's website, communicated to each Owner/Voting Member~~ at least thirty (30) days, but not more than sixty (60) days, prior to the meeting of the Board at which the budget is adopted,

f. To provide all ~~members by publication in The Apple Core and on the Association's website, Owners/Voting Members~~ with a reasonably detailed summary of the receipts, common expenses and reserves for the preceding budget year.

g. To either (i) make available for review to all ~~members~~Owners/Voting Members an itemized accounting of the common expenses for the preceding year actually incurred or paid, together with an indication of which portions were for reserves, capital expenditures or repairs or payment of real estate taxes with a tabulation of all amounts collected, stating the net excess or deficit of income over expenditures plus reserves; or (ii) provide a consolidated annual independent audit report of the financial status of all fund accounts of the Association.

~~h. If the Board determines that to balance the annual budget, an increase in the annual assessment must be levied, the Board may increase the annual assessment prospectively for the following year or for any future period. If the adopted budget or any separate assessment adopted by the Board results in the sum of all regular and separate assessments payable in the current fiscal year exceeding one hundred fifteen percent (115%) of the sum of all regular and separate assessments payable during the preceding year, upon the written petition of twenty percent (20%) of the votes of the Voting Members delivered to the Board within 14 days of the Board's action, the Board shall call a special meeting of the Voting Members to be held within thirty (30) days of the date said petition is delivered to the Board to consider the said budget. Unless a majority of the total votes cast at said meeting reject the budget or separate assessment, it shall be deemed ratified. If the budget is not ratified, the Board shall submit a new budget to the Voting Members, and the procedures set forth in this section shall be repeated until a budget for the next year has been adopted.~~

~~i. To adopt separate assessments for additions and alterations to the Common Properties and Facilities or the Reserved Properties which are not included in the adopted annual budget, which shall be separately assessed and are subject to the approval of a majority of the total Voting Members in the Association voting at a special meeting called for that purpose. Any common expense not set forth in the annual budget or any increase in assessments over the amount adopted in the budget shall be separately assessed against the members.~~

~~j. To adopt separate assessments for expenditures related to an emergency or for expenditure mandated by law, which assessments may be adopted by the Board without Voting Member approval. Emergency means an immediate danger to the structural integrity of any~~

~~part of the Common Properties or Facilities or to the life, health, safety or property of the Owners.~~

~~k. To adopt separate assessments payable over more than one fiscal year. With respect to such multi-year assessments not covered by subsections (i) and (j) above, the entire amount of the multi-year assessment shall be deemed considered and authorized in the first fiscal year in which the assessment is approved.~~

h. To maintain a current roster of all Lots and Dwellings, all of the Owners thereof, the Voting Member designated for each Lot and Dwelling, and the annual and special assessments applicable thereto. Such records shall be kept in the office of the Association and shall be open for examination and copying at convenient hours of weekdays by any MemberOwner or their authorized agent. To prepare an annual directory of the names and addresses of all MembersOwners and make it available to all MembersOwners upon request and the payment of a reasonable fee.

m. To borrow such amounts as are required to preserve and maintain the Common Properties and Facilities in accordance with the provisions of Article VI, Section 4 of the Bylaws.

n. To adopt, publish and make available to the Owners and Voting Members rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Properties and Facilities, the Properties, the Lots and Dwellings and the personal conduct of the Owners, Members, their Occupants and their guests while thereon.

~~o. To suspend the enjoyment rights of any MemberOwner for any period not to exceed ninety (90) days for any infraction of its published rules and regulations. after the Owner has been given notice of the infraction and an opportunity to be heard.~~

p. To establish fines for noncompliance with the Restated DeclarationCovenants, the Bylaws and the Rules and Regulations, after the MemberOwner has been given notice of the infraction and an opportunity to be heard.

~~q. To maintain and make available for inspection and copying the Restated Covenants, the Restated Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws, the Rules and Regulations adopted by the Board, and Board Policies. those Association records outlined within Section 1-30(i) of the CICAA. Such records shall be kept in the office of the Association and shall be open for examination and copying at convenient hours of weekdays by any MemberOwner or their authorized agent, upon payment of a reasonable charge.~~

r. To call special meetings of the Voting Members whenever it deems necessary, or at any time upon the written request of one hundred Voting Members holding twenty-five (25) percent (20%) of the total votes of the Voting members Association.

s. To appoint and remove, with or without cause, all officers, agents, and the General Manager of the Association, prescribe their duties, fix their compensation, and require of them such security or fidelity bond as ~~it~~ may be required by law or as deemed appropriate by the Board.

~~tp.~~ To obtain and maintain fidelity insurance covering persons who control or disburse funds for the Association for the maximum amount that is commercially reasonable available or reasonably required to protect funds that are in the custody and control of the Association.

~~u.~~ ~~— To cause to be kept and made available for examination and copying at convenient hours of the weekdays by any Owner, all Governing Documents; records in chronological order of the receipts and expenditures affecting the Common Properties and Facilities; all contracts, leases and other agreements entered into by the Board; minutes of all meetings of the Board for a period of not less than seven (7) years; Written Ballots for a period of not less than one year; such other records of the Board as are available for inspection by members of a not-for-profit corporation pursuant to Section 107.75 of the General Not For Profit Corporation Act of 1986, and with respect to any Legal Entities that own Lots or Dwellings, the designation of the Natural Person authorized to vote as a Voting Member. Charges for retrieving and copying any such records shall be made pursuant to Article XVI, Section. 4.~~

~~vg.~~ To exercise oversight and direction over the General Manager's performance, to evaluate annually the General Manager's performance, and to provide the General Manager with a written evaluation report.

~~wr.~~ To cause an appropriate officer to issue, upon demand by any person and upon payment of a reasonable service fee as determined by the Board, a certificate setting forth whether any and all assessments applicable to any Lot or Dwelling have been paid. Such certificate shall be conclusive evidence that any assessment therein stated to have been paid, has been paid.

~~xs.~~ In the event of any resale of any Lot or Dwelling, to make available for inspection to the prospective purchaser, upon demand, all such documents as required by law including, but not limited to:

1. A copy of the Restated DeclarationCovenants, the Bylaws, and all Rules and Regulations.
2. A statement of any liens or unpaid assessments, dues or other charges due and owing from said property.
3. A statement of any capital expenditures anticipated by the Association within the current or succeeding two (2) fiscal years.
4. A statement of the status and amount of any reserve for replacement fund and any portion of such fund earmarked for any specified project by the Board.
5. A copy of the statement of financial condition of the Association for the last fiscal year for which such a statement is available.
6. A statement of the status of any pending suits or judgments in which the Association is a party.
7. A statement setting forth what insurance coverage is maintained by the Association.

The General Manager shall furnish the required documents within thirty (30) days of receiving a written request for such information. Charges for retrieving and copying any such records shall be made pursuant to Article XVI, CICAA Section. 4. 1-30(i)(3).

- yt. To analyze trends and provide long-range plans for the future of the Association.
- zu. To determine and establish Board policies related to basic operation of the Association.
- aav. To provide for official publications of the Association, including but not limited to *The Apple Core* and the ACLPOA website.
- bbw. To delegate any of its powers in the course of operation to any ~~committee~~Committee, officer, employee or agent as permitted by law.

~~ARTICLE IX~~
ARTICLE VIII
BOARD MEETINGS

~~Section 3.~~ Section 1. ~~Section 1.~~ *Regular Meetings.* A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held not less than four (4) times each year at such times as the Board may fix. The ~~place~~date, time and ~~hour~~location of all regular meetings shall be posted and published in *The Apple Core*, at the ~~clubhouse~~ administrative offices and on the Association's website, at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting. If a Regular Meeting needs to be rescheduled, the date, time and location of the rescheduled meeting shall be posted on the Association's website and at the clubhouse at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting.

Section 2. *Special Meetings.* Special Meetings of the Board may be called by the President, or at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the members of the Board, ~~or upon the written request of fifty (50) or more votes of.~~ Notices of Special Meetings of the Board shall be given to all members of the Board, Owners and Voting Members who shall submit the request to the President at the office of the at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to such meeting setting forth the date, time, location of such meeting and the matter or matters to be acted upon by the Board at such meeting. Notice shall be given by either (i) United States Mail, postage prepaid, sent to recipient's address on file with the Association, or (ii) by hand delivery, or (iii) by any commonly used electronic media, including but not limited to, email or facsimile, pursuant to electronic communication policies adopted from time to time by the Board, provided that the recipient has provided the Association with his or her fax number or email address or other address for receipt of such electronic communication. Alternatively, instead of providing Owners individually with such notice, copies of such notice shall be posted at the administrative offices and on the Association's website at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to such Special Meeting.

Section 3. ~~*Notice of Special Meetings And All Meetings Concerning Budget Matters.*~~ All ~~Special Meetings~~meetings of the Board, ~~and any regular meeting~~ at which the Board proposes to act upon the annual budget of the Association or consider any annual or special assessments (referred to herein as Budget Matters), shall be held only after notice has been given to all members of the Board, all Voting Members and all Owners at least ~~thirty (30)~~ten (10) days but not more than sixty (60) days, prior to such meeting, ~~in accordance with Section 4,~~ setting forth the date, time, and location of such meeting and the matter or matters to be acted upon by the Board at such meeting. ~~However, if a majority of the members of the Board determines that a Special Meeting of the Board must be held on an expedited schedule, notice of such meeting may be given to~~ Notice shall be sent to all Owners and Voting Members by any means practicable within at least forty-eight (48) hours but not more than ten (10) days prior to such meeting. Notice of a Special Meeting of the Board on an expedited schedule may be by posting

~~notice on the Association's website, using any telephonic or electronic communication device, and by posting notice at the Clubhouse and other conspicuous places on the Common Properties, and by United States Mail, postage prepaid, if time permits.~~

~~Section 4. — *Methods for Notice.* Notice of any Special Meeting of the Board or of any regular meeting of the Board at which Budget Matters will be acted upon shall be sent to the members of the Board (i) by United States Mail, postage prepaid, sent to recipient's address on file with the Association, or (ii) by hand delivery, or (iii) by any commonly used electronic media, including but not limited to, email or facsimile, pursuant to electronic communication policies adopted from time to time by the Board, provided that the recipient has provided the Association with his or her fax number or email address or other address for receipt of such electronic communication. Notice ~~Alternatively, instead of such meeting shall be provided to all providing Owners and~~ Voting Members ~~and all other Owners by publication individually with such notice, copies of such notices shall be published~~ in *The Apple Core* and posted on the Association's website and ~~by posting notice at the clubhouse administrative offices~~, or as otherwise authorized under applicable law, ~~or as permitted in Section 3 for a special meeting called on an expedited schedule.~~~~

~~New Board members shall as soon as practicable after being elected or appointed, complete a form providing the General Manager with his or her regular mailing address, telephone and fax number(s) and email address(s), if applicable. Any changes shall be communicated to the General Manager promptly.~~

Section 45. *Attendance Constitutes Waiver of Notice.* The presence of any Board member or Voting Member at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of the form and time of notice, unless said person states that he or she is present solely to object to the notice, and does not thereafter vote in respect of any action taken at such meeting.

Section 56. *Place and Purpose of Special Meetings.* The ~~place, hour and~~ purpose of each ~~special meeting and any regular meeting dealing with Budget Matters~~ Special Meeting shall be set forth in the notice and publication of such Meeting as provided in Section 4.2 of this Article. No business may be transacted at any ~~special meeting, or in respect of any Budget Matters at any regular~~ meeting, except that mentioned in the Notice of such meeting. No action of the Board of Directors can conflict with any official action taken by the Voting Members at a regular ~~annual~~Annual or Special Meeting of the Voting Members.

Section 67. *Owner's and Voting Member's Comments.* A portion of every meeting of the Board must be reserved for comments by the Owners and Voting Members, provided, however, the duration and meeting order for Owners and Voting Members' comments is within the sole discretion of the Board.

Section 78. *Meetings Open to Owners and Voting Members.* All regular and special meetings of the Board shall be open to all Owners and Voting Members. All Association business is to be conducted at open meetings, except when the Board determines in its discretion to meet in executive session, either associated with a noticed meeting or separately from a noticed meeting, for the following purposes:

- ~~_____~~ a. to discuss litigation when an action against or on behalf of the Association is ~~being contemplated or~~ has been filed and is pending in a

court or administrative tribunal or when the Board finds that such an action is probable or imminent;

- b. to discuss third-party contracts or information regarding _____
_____ appointment, employment, engagement or dismissal of an employee, _____ independent contractor, agent, or other provider of goods and services;
- c. to interview a potential employee, independent contractor, agent or other _____ provider of goods and services;
- d. to discuss violations of the Association's rules and regulations;
- e. to discuss or consider a Member's an Owner's failure to pay any annual or special _____ assessment, or common expenses due the Association; or
- f. to consult with the Association's legal counsel.

~~All executive session meetings shall be held in the Association clubhouse or in the Board Room, unless they are unavailable.~~ Any vote on these matters shall be taken at a meeting or portion thereof open to the Owners and Voting Members.

Section 89. *Participation by Telephone.* Members of the Board may participate in any meeting by the use of any means of communication, including audio conference or conference telephone call, by which all Board members participating in the meeting may simultaneously hear each other, and participation in a meeting in such manner shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.

Section 940. *Quorum.* A quorum shall consist of a majority of the members of the Board, incumbent at such time. ~~In no case shall fewer than five (5) votes carry any question voted upon by the Board. In no case shall fewer than five (5) votes carry any question voted upon by the Board.~~

Section 104. *Unanimous Board Written Consent.* Any action required by law, the Restated Declaration Covenants or ~~the~~these Bylaws to be, or which may be, taken at a meeting of the Board may be taken without a meeting if a unanimous consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all Board members entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter.

ARTICLE IX

~~ARTICLE X~~

REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. One or more members of the Board of Directors may be removed by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the total Voting Members in the Association at a duly called special meeting of the Voting Members pursuant to this Article ~~XIX~~.

Section 2. The call for removal may be made by any four (4) or more members of the Board, or upon written request of ~~one hundred twenty-five (125) or more of the votes of Voting Members.~~Voting Members having at least one hundred twenty-five (125) of the total votes in the Association. Such call for removal shall specifically name the Board member(s) whose removal is sought. If such a call for removal takes place, then a special meeting of the Voting Members shall be called, within sixty (60) days of the call for removal having been received, for the purpose of voting on the removal of the Board member(s) named in the call for removal. The meeting notice for such special meeting shall state that a purpose of the special meeting is to vote upon the removal of the Board member(s) named in the meeting notice. Only the Board member(s) named in meeting notice may be removed at such meeting. At such meeting, prior to the vote for removal taking place, the individuals seeking removal of the Board member(s) shall be given an opportunity to present their reason(s) for seeking such removal and the Board member(s) whose removal is sought shall be given an opportunity to present their defense(s). The vote shall be taken pursuant to Article VI.

~~Section 3. — The call for removal shall identify the causes that support removal. The causes for removal shall include, but not be limited to, failure to attend fifty percent (50%) of the regular meetings of the Board in the twelve (12) month period following the annual meeting, or violation of the Restated Covenants, the Bylaws, or the Association's Rules and Regulations, or failure to pay any amounts that are due the Association, or dereliction of duty, or conduct which tends to injure the good name of the Association, disturb its well-being or hamper its work.~~

~~Section 4. — The offending charges and specifications of these charges shall be included in the call for removal by those who call for the removal and shall be submitted to the President in writing at a regular or special meeting at which time the Board member shall be provided a copy of the call for removal. The offending Board member shall be given no more than thirty (30) days to submit his or her defense, which shall be in writing and submitted to the President at the office of the Association.~~

~~Section 5. — The call for removal and the Board member's defense of these charges shall be presented at any regular or special meeting of the Voting Members. This meeting shall be called within sixty (60) days after the Board member has submitted his or her defense.~~

~~Section 6. — A quorum for a meeting to remove shall be one hundred twenty-five (125) votes of the Voting Members, present in person or by Written Ballot. The vote shall be taken pursuant to Article VII.~~

~~ARTICLE XI GENERAL MANAGER~~

~~The Board of Directors shall appoint a salaried General Manager and establish the duties, authority, the compensation and other terms of employment of the manager.~~

~~ARTICLE XII~~ ARTICLE X ~~OFFICERS~~

Section 1. The officers shall be President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer, each of whom shall be elected from among the members of the Board (the Executive Officers), and

such other officers as the Board may elect from time to time from among the Board. To the extent permitted by CICAA and other applicable law, the Board may delegate any of the duties of any one officer to or among any one or more other officers, or to the General Manager, as the Board may from time to time determine, provided that the duties of the Executive Officers as members of the Executive Committee may not be delegated.

Section 2. The Executive Officers of the Association shall be elected annually by a majority vote of the members of the Board at the first meeting of the Board following the Annual Meeting of Members/Owners. All officers shall hold office until their successors are elected or until they resign or are removed.

Section 3. All officers shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board and may be removed from office at any time, with or without cause, by a majority of the Board.

Section 4. The President shall:

- a. Call to order and preside at all meetings of the Board, the Executive Committee, and of the Voting Members and announce the results of all votes taken at all such meetings.
- ~~b. —Serve for one year.~~
- ~~e. —Approve the election of the chair of each Standing Committee/Commission who was elected by the committee/commission members.~~
- ~~d.b. _____ Appoint the chair and members of any special committee authorized by the Board. Members expressing an interest to serve on such special committee may make application with such application subject to approval by the Board.~~
- ~~e.c.~~ See that all lawful orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out.
- ~~f.d.~~ Be a member, *ex officio* without vote, of all Standing Committees/Commissions and special committees/commissions of the Board or the Association.
- ~~g.e.~~ _____ Sign all notes, leases, contracts, mortgages, deeds, and other written instruments approved by the Board.
- ~~h.f.~~ Have the authority to co-sign all checks along with any one of the other signatories authorized by the Board.

Section 5. The Vice President shall perform all the duties of the President in his or her absence.

Section 6. The Secretary shall:

- a. Be the Secretary of the Board and Secretary of the Association.
- b. Cause the minutes of all meetings of the Board and of the Voting Members to be kept and, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of secretary.

- c. Have the authority to co-sign all checks along with any one of the other signatories authorized by the Board, except payroll, and notes of the Association.
- d. In the absence of the President and Vice President, call the meeting to order and preside until the election of a chairman *pro tem*, making this action the first item on the agenda.

Section 7. The Treasurer shall:

- a. Keep the financial records and books of account.
- b. Have the authority to co-sign all checks along with any one of the other signatories authorized by the Board, except payroll, and notes of the Association.
- c. See that full and accurate financial records are kept and audited annually by a Certified Public Accountant at the completion of each fiscal year.
- d. Report the financial status of the Association to the Board of Directors as requested and to the members Owners and Voting Members at the annual meeting.
- e. Present to the membership Owners and Voting Membership at the regular annual meeting a copy of the budget for the current year and the financial statements for the preceding year.
- f. Be the chair of the Budget/Audit Committee.Commission

ARTICLE ~~XHXI~~
COMMITTEES/COMMISSIONS

Section 1. The Board, by resolution adopted by a majority of the Board, may designate one (1) or more committees. Except for the Nominating Committee, each such committee shall consist of at least two (2) or more Board directors and may also consist of Owners, , Voting Members or the spouses of same; provided, however that the majority of the members of each such committee shall be Board directors. Such committees, to the extent consistent with law and as provided in said resolution or as otherwise provided in this Article, shall have and exercise the authority of the Board in the management of the Association; but the designation of such committees and the delegation thereof of authority shall not operate to relieve the Board, or any individual member of the Board, of any responsibility imposed upon it or him or her by law. The members of each committee shall be appointed by the Board and serve solely at the direction of the Board. Any member thereof may be removed by the Board whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Association shall be served by such removal.

Section 2. The Board, by resolution adopted by a majority of the Board, may designate one (1) or more commissions, which commissions may not act on behalf of the Association or bind the Association to any action, but may make recommendations to the Board. The members of the commission need not be Board directors but must be Owners, , Voting Members or the spouses of same and shall be appointed by the Board. Any member thereof may be removed

by the Board whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Association shall be served by such removal.

Section 3. Each member of a committee or commission shall continue as such until the next annual meeting of the Board and until his or her successor is appointed and shall have qualified, unless the committee or commission shall be sooner terminated, or unless such member shall cease to qualify as a member thereof.

Section 4. One (1) member of each committee and commission shall be chosen as chairperson annually by the committee/commission members.

Section 5. Vacancies in the membership of any committee or commission may be filled by appointment made in the same manner as provided in the case of the original appointments.

Section 6. Unless otherwise provided in this Article or in the resolution of the Board designating a committee or commission, a majority of the whole committee or commission shall constitute a quorum and the act of a majority of the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the committee or commission.

Section 7. Each committee or commission may adopt rules for its own governance not inconsistent with the Restated Declaration, these Bylaws or with the rules and regulations adopted by the Board.

Section 8. The Standing Committees/Commissions of the Association shall be:

- Executive Committee
- Nominating Committee
- Architectural and Environmental Control Committee
- ~~Recreation Committee~~Commission
- ~~Maintenance Committee~~

- ~~Architectural and Environmental Control Committee~~
- Budget/Audit ~~Committee~~Commission
- Conservation ~~Committee~~Commission
- Legal ~~Committee~~Commission
- Rules and Regulations ~~Committee~~Commission
- Tellers ~~Committee~~Commission
- Editorial Review ~~Committee~~Commission
- Strategic/Long Range Planning Commission
- Appeals Board Commission

Unless otherwise provided herein, the members of each committee/commission shall be appointed by the Board, and, ~~except in the case of the Executive Committee,~~ may be removed by the Board at any time, and shall consist of a chair, a vice-chair and a secretary, who shall be elected by the members of the committee/commission and two or more additional members. The Board may appoint a Board member as a full member to any committee/commission, who shall be liaison to the Board.

Section 29. The Executive Committee shall:

- a. Consist of the four Executive Officers elected by the Board.
- b. Have supervision over the General Manager's performance.
- c. Provide the General Manager with instructions, directions, goals and objectives regarding his or her duties within the scope of duties and authority delegated to the General Manager by the Board.
- d. Annually evaluate the General Manager's performance with input from all Board members, and recommend for the Board's approval the annual evaluation and a compensation package for the following year consistent with any employment agreement between the Association and the General Manager.
- e. Provide the General Manager with a written evaluation report along with a compensation package each year.
- f. Maintain a personnel file on the General Manager documenting any contract changes, job description changes, and all annual or interim performance evaluations.

Section 310. The Nominating Committee shall consist of seven (7) Owners or Voting Members appointed by the ~~President with the approval of the majority of the~~ Board at the Board meeting preceding the regular annual meeting. Said Nominating Committee shall serve for the year following the next annual meeting. The ~~President~~Board shall make an earnest attempt to appoint to the Nominating Committee Owners or Voting Members who are representative of all of the subdivisions of the Association, with at least one of them being a current Board member.

This Nominating Committee shall serve from the close of such annual meeting until the close of the next annual meeting. The appointment of the members of the following year's Nominating Committee shall be announced by the outgoing President at each annual meeting. Within thirty (30) days after the annual meeting, the immediate past chair of the Nominating Committee shall call a meeting at which the Nominating Committee shall elect its chair, vice-chair and secretary and conduct such other business as may be appropriate to prepare for the nominations to be made that year, including but not limited to, the adoption of Nominating Committee Guidelines, which shall be submitted to the Board for approval.

The Nominating Committee shall recruit candidates who meet the eligibility requirements in Article ~~VIV~~, Section 1, (referred to herein as Eligible Members) and shall make as many nominations for election to the Board as it has received applications from Eligible Members and for all Eligible Members submitted on Voting Members Tickets, ~~but not less than two (2) more than the number of vacancies that are to be filled at the next annual meeting.~~ The Nominating Committee shall interview all of the candidates, and inform all of the Voting Members regarding each candidate's positions on matters regarding the Association's affairs, and cause the candidates' answers to questions related to these matters to be published in *The Apple Core*, to be posted on the Association's website, and to be included with the Written Ballots and other voting materials sent to all Voting Members.

The names of all candidates shall be placed on a Written Ballot ~~as provided in Article VII,~~ which

September 23, 2020

shall be prepared in advance of the time fixed in Article ~~VHVI~~, Section 3 for the mailing of such Written Ballots to the Voting Members. The listing of names on the Written Ballot shall be determined by a lottery conducted by the Nominating Committee.

~~Section 411. The Recreation Committee~~Commission shall advise the Board on all matters pertaining to the recreational program and activities of the Association and shall perform such other functions as the Board, in its discretion, determines.

~~Section 112 Section 5. The Maintenance Committee shall advise the Board on all matters pertaining to the maintenance, repair or improvement of the Common Properties and Facilities of the Association, and shall perform such other functions as the Board, in its discretion, determines. At least one member of the Board shall serve as a member of this committee.~~

~~Section 6.~~ The AECC shall be comprised of not less than three (3) representatives who shall be appointed by the Board, and who shall be subject to removal by the Board at any time. The Board shall appoint at least one (1) architect, licensed engineer or building contractor to the AECC, if one is available. In the event the Board is unable to appoint an architect, licensed engineer or building contractor to the AECC, the Association may retain one or more of the same from time to time to consult and advise the AECC in the performance of its duties. The majority of the members of the AECC shall also be Members of the Board. Any vacancies existing from time to time shall be filled by appointments made by the Board. The AECC, subject to the Board's approval, may engage such inspectors or agents to assist it in the performance of its duties and responsibilities. No member of the AECC shall participate in the review of any application in which the member has any interest either as an owner or as the provider of any services for which the member is compensated.

~~The Architectural and Environmental Control Committee (AECC) shall be comprised of not less than three (3) representatives. The Board shall appoint at least one (1) architect, licensed engineer or building contractor to the AECC, if one is available, and at least two (2) Board Members to the committee. In the event the Board is unable to appoint an architect, licensed engineer or building contractor to the AECC, the Association may retain one or more of the same from time to time to consult and advise the AECC in the performance of its duties. The majority of the members of the AECC shall be Board Members of the Association. Any vacancies existing from time to time shall be filled by appointments made by the Board. The AECC, subject to the Board's approval, may engage such inspectors or agents to assist it in the performance of its duties and responsibilities. No member of the AECC shall participate in the review of any application in which the member has any interest either as an owner or as the provider of any services for which the member is compensated.~~

The AECC shall have the duties and functions described in Article VII of the Restated DeclarationCovenants, and shall perform such other functions as the Board, in its discretion, determines. It shall watch for any proposals, programs or activities which may adversely affect the residential value of The Properties or the Common Properties and Facilities and shall advise the Board regarding action the Association should take on such matters.

Section 12. The Recreation Commission shall advise the Board on all matters pertaining to the recreational program and activities of the Association and shall perform such other functions as the Board, in its discretion, determines.

Section ~~7~~13. The Budget/Audit ~~Committee~~Commission shall be chaired by the Board Treasurer and consist of ~~a member of the Board plus~~ two or more additional members. It shall be the duty of this ~~committee~~commission to prepare an annual budget for the fiscal year beginning the first day of January for approval by the Board as provided in Article ~~VIII. The Treasurer shall submit a report on the budget and on the financial condition of the Association to the membership at the Annual Meeting of Members. It shall be the responsibility of this committee to cause an annual audit of the Association books by a certified public accountant, and to make such audit available to the d~~VII.

Section ~~8~~14. The Conservation ~~Committee~~Commission shall include a member of the Board and shall advise the Board on matters relating to the protection, preservation and improvement of all land and water areas and all flora and fauna within the Apple Canyon Lake watershed.

Section ~~9~~15. The Legal ~~Committee~~Commission shall advise the Board on any legal matters referred to this ~~committee~~commission and shall perform such other functions as the Board, in its discretion, determines. At least one member of the Board shall serve as a member of this ~~committee~~commission.

Section ~~40~~16. The Rules and Regulations ~~Committee~~Commission shall include a member of the Board and shall be responsible for monitoring, modifying and formulating rules and regulations to recommend for approval by the Board.

Section ~~44~~17. The Tellers ~~Committee~~Commission shall consist of not less than five (5) members approved by the Board. The Tellers ~~Committee~~Commission shall;

- a. Not less than two (2) months prior to the commencement of the annual meeting adopt written Tellers ~~Committee~~Commission Guidelines, which will describe the procedures it will follow to count all valid Written Ballots at all votes taken during the following year, which will be submitted to the Board for approval.
- b. Obtain the General Manager's verification that the signature of the Voting Member whose name appears on the Return Envelope is the authorized Voting Member for each ~~of~~ Lot or Dwelling Unit identified on the Return Envelope.
- c. Count all of the Written Ballots cast by all eligible Voting Members, and report the results to the President.
- d. Allow a candidate, or his or her representative, to be present at the counting of the ballots.
- e. Deliver to the General Manager for safekeeping for a period of one (1) year all Return Envelopes and Written Ballots.

All actions shall be taken in such a manner that the vote of any Voting Member shall not be disclosed to anyone, including the members of the Tellers ~~Committee~~Commission.

Section ~~12~~18. The Editorial Review ~~Committee~~Commission shall consist of a member of the Board, who shall be the chair, the General Manager, who shall be the vice-chair, the Managing Editor of *The Apple Core*, who shall be the secretary and such other Owners or Voting Members as the Board may appoint from time to time. This ~~Committee~~Commission shall prepare policies for the acceptance of material to be printed in *The Apple Core*, including, but not limited to, letters to the editor and policies for advertising material printed, which policies shall be submitted to the Board for approval annually.

~~Section 13~~Section 19. The Strategic/Long Range Planning Commission shall formulate, monitor and make recommendations to the Board for additions and deletions to the Strategic/Long Range Plan.

Section 20. The Appeals Board Commission shall listen to appeals filed pursuant to the appeals process provisions set forth in the Rules and Regulations and make recommendations to the Board on each citation at issue following the appeal hearing. In listening to each appeal, the Appeals Board Commission shall listen to each appeal with an open mind and treat each party fairly and with the utmost respect in an effort to provide consistency in the application and enforcement of the Rules and Regulations.

Section 21. With the exception of the Nominating Committee and the Architectural and Environmental Control Committee, each committee/commission shall have power to appoint a subcommittee/subcommission from among its membership or the ~~membership~~Owners or Voting Members of the Association and may delegate to any such subcommittee/subcommission any of its powers, duties and functions- subject to the approval of the Board.

Section ~~4~~22. It shall be the duty of each committee/commission to have contact with Owners and Voting Members of the Association on any matters involving functions, duties, and activities within its field of responsibility, and to submit a report to the ~~membership~~Voting Membership at the Annual Meeting.

ARTICLE ~~XIV~~XII MEETINGS OF VOTING MEMBERS

Section 1. *Regular Annual Meeting.* The regular Annual Meeting of the Voting Members shall be held on the second Saturday of June at an hour to be set by the Board.

Section 2. *Special Meetings.* Special Meetings of the Voting Members for any purpose may be called at any time by the President, or by any three (3) or more members of the Board, or upon written request of the ~~votes of one hundred~~Voting Members having at least twenty-five (125) Voting Members, or as otherwise provided percent (20%) of the total votes in the Bylaws or applicable law~~Association~~.

~~Special Meeting Concerning Budget Matters. — In the event that a Special Meeting of the Voting Members is called pursuant to Article VIII, Section 1(h) concerning the annual budget approved by the Board, notice of said meeting shall be sent to the Voting Members not less than fourteen (14) days in advance of said special meeting, and said~~

~~special meeting shall be called within thirty (30) days of the date of delivery of the petition pursuant to Section 3.~~

Section 3. *Notice of Meeting.* Notice of any ~~Special~~ meeting of the Voting Members ~~called pursuant to Section 2 or Section 2a of this Article, or any other provision of the Bylaws~~ shall be given not less than ~~fourteen (14)~~ten (10) days nor more than thirty (30) days prior to the meeting, unless otherwise provided in the Bylaws. Notice to Voting Members shall be sent (i) by United States Mail, postage prepaid, sent to recipient's address on file with the Association, or (ii) by hand delivery, or (iii) by any commonly used electronic media, including but not limited to, email or facsimile, pursuant to electronic communication policies adopted from time to time by the Board, provided that the recipient has provided the Association with his or her fax number or email address or other address for receipt of such electronic communication, and the Voting Member has given his/her written authorization to conduct business via this method. Notice to all other ~~Members~~Owners shall be provided by publication in *The Apple Core* and on the Association's website and by posting notice at the clubhouse, or as otherwise authorized under applicable law. Notice shall set forth the nature of the business to be transacted provided, however, that if the business of any meeting shall involve any matter to which another provision of these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Restated DeclarationCovenants shall otherwise govern notice to the Voting Members, then notice of such meeting shall be given or sent as therein provided.

Section 4. *Attendance Constitutes Waiver of Notice.* The presence of any Voting Member at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of the form and time of notice, unless said person states that he or she is present solely to object to the notice and does not vote or submit a Written Ballot in respect of any action taken at such meeting.

Section 5. *Voting Members Must Register.* Each Voting Member shall register his or her mailing address and, to the extent such Voting Member desires to receive notice by electronic means, such Voting Member's telephone and fax number and email address with the Association and notify it when there is a change in any of such address or information. Notices of meetings shall be sent to the Voting Member at the mailing address or email address or fax number on file at the time of the mailing.

Section 6. *Quorum.* The presence, in person or by Written Ballot, at ~~the~~ meeting of ~~one hundred~~the Voting Members having at least twenty-five (25) percent (20%) of the total votes ~~of~~in the ~~Voting Members in person or by Written Ballot~~Association shall constitute a quorum for any action by the Voting Members, provided, however, if the business of any meeting shall involve any matter with respect to which another provision of the Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Restated DeclarationCovenants shall otherwise govern a quorum, then the quorum of such meeting shall be as therein provided.

ARTICLE ~~XV~~ ~~WRITTEN BALLOTS~~

~~Section 1. *Written Ballot Defined.* All matters requiring a vote of the Voting Members, as defined in Article I, Section 1(x) of the Restated Covenants, shall be by Written Ballot which is defined in Article I, Section 1(ee) of the Restated Covenants as follows:~~

~~ee. — Written Ballot shall mean a written document which clearly indicates the vote of a Voting Member being cast on any issue on which a vote of the Voting Members of the Association is taken. A Written Ballot may be cast by a Voting Member either in person at the meeting called for such vote or by mail or by any other means of delivery, provided that such Written Ballot must be delivered to the offices of the Association prior to the commencement of the meeting called for such vote.~~

~~Section 2. — Casting a Written Ballot Constitutes Attendance at Meeting. — At all regular and special meetings the Voting Member who casts a Written Ballot(s) shall be deemed to be present at the meeting and shall be counted as present for purposes of determining a quorum and for all other purposes permitted under these Bylaws.~~

~~ARTICLE XVI BOOKS AND RECORDS~~

~~Section 1. — The Board shall keep and maintain the following records, or true and complete copies of these records, at the Association's principal office:~~

- ~~a. the Association's Governing Documents and plat of survey, and all amendments thereto;~~
- ~~b. the minutes of all meetings of the Association and the Board of Directors for the immediately preceding seven (7) years;~~
- ~~c. all current policies of insurance of the Association;~~
- ~~d. all contracts, leases, and other agreements to which the Association is a party or under which the Association or the unit owners have obligations or liabilities;~~
- ~~e. a current listing of the names and addresses of all Voting Members entitled to vote, and of all other Members;~~
- ~~f. Written Ballots for all matters voted on by the members of the Association during the immediately preceding twelve (12) months, including but not limited to, the election of members of the Board; and~~
- ~~g. the books and records of account for the Association's current and ten (10) immediately preceding fiscal years, including but not limited to, itemized and detailed records of all receipts and expenditures, and such other records of the Board as are available for inspection by members of a not-for-profit corporation pursuant to Section 107.75 of the General Not-For-Profit Corporation Act of 1986.~~

~~Section 2. — Any Member shall have the right to inspect, examine, and make copies of the records described in subdivisions (a), (b), and (c), of Section 1 of this Article XVI, in person or by agent, at any reasonable time or times, at the Association's principal office. In order to exercise this right, a member must submit a written request to the Board or its authorized agent, stating with particularity the records sought to be examined.~~

~~Section 3. — Except as otherwise provided in Section 5 of this Article, any Member of the Association shall have the right to inspect, examine, and make copies of the records described~~

~~in subdivisions (d), (e), (f), and (g), of Section 1 of this Article XVI, in person or by agent, at any reasonable time or times at the Association's principal office. In order to exercise this right, a member must submit a written request to the Board or its authorized agent, stating with particularity the records sought to be examined.~~

~~Section 4. — The actual cost to the Association of retrieving and making requested records available for inspection and examination under this Article XVI shall be charged by the Association to the requesting Member. If a Member requests copies of records requested under this Article XVI, the actual costs to the Association of reproducing the records shall also be charged by the Association to the requesting Member.~~

~~Section 5. — Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 3 of this Article XVI, unless otherwise directed by court order, an Association need not make the following records available for inspection, examination, or copying by its members:~~

- ~~(a) documents relating to appointment, employment, discipline, or dismissal of Association employees;~~
- ~~(b) documents relating to actions pending against or on behalf of the Association or its Board in a court or administrative tribunal;~~
- ~~(c) documents relating to actions threatened against, or likely to be asserted on behalf of, the Association or its Board in a court or administrative tribunal;~~
- ~~(d) documents relating to common expenses or other charges owed by a Member other than the requesting Member; and~~
- ~~(e) documents provided to an Association in connection with the lease, sale, or other transfer of a unit by a Member other than the requesting member.~~

ARTICLE XVIII **AMENDMENTS**

Section 1. These Bylaws may be amended at any regular or Special Meeting of the Voting Members by at least two-thirds (2/3) ~~vote~~ of the votes cast by the Voting Members voting at such meeting, provided, however, that ~~those~~the provisions of ~~the~~these Bylaws ~~which are governed by the Restated Covenants applicable to The Properties~~ may not be amended ~~except as provided in such~~to conflict with any provisions of the Restated Declaration Covenants or law.

Following the adoption of a modification or amendment, an instrument duly executed by the ~~president~~President, or such other officer authorized by the Board setting forth said modification or amendment shall be duly recorded, and the amendment or modification shall be effective as of the date of said recording.

Section 2. Notice of the proposed amendment(s) shall be mailed to all ~~members~~Members not less than ~~fourteen (14)~~ten (10) days nor more than ~~forty (40)~~thirty (30) days in advance of the meeting at which such amendment(s) is to be voted upon.

ARTICLE ~~XVIII~~XIV
PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

The rules contained in the current edition of *Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised*, shall constitute the parliamentary authority for the conduct of all meetings of the Board of Directors and meetings of members to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with the Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation or the Restated [DeclarationCovenants](#).

ARTICLE ~~XIX~~XV
INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS OR OFFICERS

Section 1. *Actions by Third Parties.* The Association shall indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of the Association) by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a member of the Board, or an officer, or member of a committee [or commission](#) of the Association against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such action, suit or proceeding, if such person acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the Association, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding, by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of *nolo contendere* or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Association or, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, that the person had reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful.

Section 2. *Action by the Association.* The Association shall indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the Association to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that such person is or was a member of the Board, ~~or~~ an officer, or a member of a committee [or commission](#) of the Association against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with the defense or settlement of such action or suit, if such person acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the Association, provided that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his or her duty to the Association, unless, and only to the extent that the court in which such action or suit was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability, but in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses as the court shall deem proper.

Section 3. *Indemnification in Event of Successful Defense.* To the extent that a director, officer, committee [or commission](#) member, employee or agent of the Association has been successful, on the merits or otherwise, in the defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to in Sections 1 or 2 [of this Article](#), or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, such person shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection therewith.

Section 4. *Procedures for Indemnification.* Any indemnification under Sections 1 and 2 of this Article (unless ordered by a court) shall be made by the Association only as authorized in the specific case, upon a determination that indemnification of the director, officer, committee or commission member, employee or agent is proper in the circumstances because he or she or itthey has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in said Sections. Such determination shall be made (a) by the Board by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who were not parties to such action, suit or proceeding, or (b) if such a quorum is not obtainable, or even if obtainable, if a quorum of disinterested directors so directs, by independent legal counsel in a written opinion, or (c) by act of the Voting Members.

Expenses incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding may be paid by the Association in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding, as authorized by the Board in the specific case, upon receipt of a written undertaking by or on behalf of the director, officer, committee member, employee or agent to repay such amount unless it shall ultimately be determined that he or she or it is entitled to be indemnified by the Association as authorized in this Article ~~XIXXVIII~~.

Section 5. *Insurance.* The Association is authorized to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a member of the Board or an officer or committee or commission member of the Association against any liability asserted against such person and incurred by such person in such capacity, or arising out of his or her status as such, whether or not the Association has the power to indemnify such person against such liability under the provisions of this Article or the Illinois Not-For-Profit Corporation Act.

~~ARTICLE XX
EFFECTIVE DATE~~

~~These Bylaws shall become effective November 6, 2011, having been adopted by two-thirds (2/3) of the Members voting at a duly called Special Meeting of the Members on September 24, 2011 and recorded with the Jo Daviess County Recorder of Deeds.~~

An easy to understand guide for why the Bylaws need to change

	Existing Bylaws	Proposed Bylaws	Reason for Change
<p>Preamble</p>	<p>There is not a Preamble in the existing Bylaws</p>	<p>APPLE CANYON LAKE PROPERTY OWNERS' ASSOCIATION AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS</p> <p>This instrument is recorded for the purpose of replacing, in its entirety, the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended and Restated Bylaws (hereinafter referred to as the "2017 Bylaws"), recorded on November 21, 2017 as Document No. 396754 in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds, Jo Daviess County, Illinois.</p> <p>This Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended and Restated Bylaws for is adopted pursuant to the Provisions of Article XVII, Section 1 of the 2017 Bylaws. This Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended and Restated Bylaws, the text of which is set forth below, shall become effective following its approval by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast by the Voting Members voting at a</p>	<p>The Association Attorney recommended that the Preamble be added to the Bylaws.</p>

regular or special meeting of the Voting Members, provided that notice of such meeting shall be sent to all Voting Members at least fourteen (14), and not more than forty (40), days in advance of such meeting, and upon it recording in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds, Jo Daviess County, Illinois. This Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended and Restated Bylaws, as adopted, shall be included among Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Governing Documents, as amended from time to time, sometimes described as "Community Instruments", which shall be understood to mean all of the following. In the event of any inconsistency in the provisions of any of the Governing Documents, the lower numbered document shall control:

1. Illinois Common Interest Community Association Act ("CICAA") (765 ILCS 160/1-1 et. seq.)
2. Illinois General Not-For Profit Corporation Act (805 ILCS 105/101.01 et. seq)
3. Articles of Incorporation
4. Declaration
5. Bylaws
6. ACL Building and Environmental Code

		<p>7. Board Approved Policies 8. Rules and Regulations 9. Board Approved Committee/Commission Operations and Procedures</p>	
<p>Recitals</p>	<p>There is not a Reciting in the existing Bylaws</p>	<p>WHEREAS, the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association (hereinafter referred to as the "Association"), through its Board of Directors, administers the property legally described in Exhibit "A", which is attached hereto and made a part hereof (hereinafter referred to as "The Properties",) as further defined in the Declaration.</p> <p>WHEREAS, the 2017 Bylaws were recorded on November 21, 2017 as Document No. 396754 in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds, Jo Daviess County, Illinois;</p> <p>WHEREAS, the Board and the Owners of the Association desire to amend and restate the 2017 Bylaws, replacing it, in its entirety, with this Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended and Restated Bylaws;</p> <p>WHEREAS, the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended and Restated Bylaws is</p>	<p>The Association Attorney recommended that the Recitals be added to the Bylaws.</p>

		<p>adopted pursuant to Article XVII, Sections 1 and 2 of the 2017 Bylaws, having been approved by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast by the Voting Members voting at a regular or special meeting of the Voting Members, following notice of such meeting sent to all Voting Members at least fourteen (14), and not more than forty (40) days in advance thereof; and</p> <p>WHEREAS, the Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended and Restated Bylaws shall become effective upon recordation in the Offices of the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County, Illinois.</p> <p>NOW THEREFORE, the 2017 Bylaws are hereby amended and restated as follows:</p>	
<p>Article I Definitions Section 1</p>	<p>All capitalized terms used, but not otherwise defined in these Amended and Restated Bylaws (hereinafter referred to as the "Bylaws") which are defined in the Amended and Restated Covenants and Restrictions, effective November 6, 2011, as amended, (hereinafter referred to as the Restated Covenants) shall have the same</p>	<p>All capitalized terms used, but not otherwise defined in these Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association Amended and Restated Bylaws (hereinafter referred to as the "Bylaws") which are defined in the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association, as amended from time to</p>	

	<p>meaning when used in these Bylaws.</p> <p>CICAA shall mean the Common Interest Community Association Act, Public Act 096-1400, (765 ILCS 160), effective July 29, 2010, as hereafter amended.</p> <p>Governing Documents, sometimes described as Community Instruments, shall be understood to mean all of the following. In the event of any inconsistency in the provisions of any of the Governing Documents, the lower numbered documents shall control:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> i. CICAA ii. Restated Articles of Incorporation effective November 6, 2011. iii. Restated Covenants effective November 6, 2011. iv. Restated Bylaws, effective 	<p>time, (hereinafter referred to as the Restated Covenants) shall have the same meaning when used in these Bylaws.</p> <p>Section 2.</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> a. CICAA shall mean the Common Interest Community Association Act, (765 ILCS 160/1 et. seq.) as hereafter amended or supplemented under applicable Illinois law. b. "Articles of Incorporation" shall mean the Restated Articles of Incorporation approved by the Voting Members of the Association, as amended. c. "The <i>Apple Core</i>" shall mean the newspaper published periodically (typically monthly) by the Association and sent postage prepaid via the United States Postal Service to all Owners and Voting Members at their last known address, and available on the Association website as the date of publication and mailing, which contains notices of all regular and special meetings of the 	<p>The Association Attorney shared that it is not necessary to repeat the listing of Community Instruments in the definitions since they are listed in the Preamble.</p> <p>The language change was referring to the proposed Bylaws.</p> <p>Language change was adding Voting Member.</p>
--	---	---	--

	<p>November 6, 2011, as amended.</p> <p>v. Rules and Regulations, revised September 20, 2009, as adopted and amended from time to time.</p> <p>vi. Board Approved Policies, as adopted and amended from time to time.</p> <p>vii. Board Approved Committee Operations and Procedures, as adopted and amended from time to time.</p> <p>c. Restated Articles of Incorporation shall mean the Restated Articles of Incorporation approved by the members of the Association, to be effective November 6, 2011.</p> <p>D. <i>The Apple Core</i> shall mean the newspaper published periodically (typically monthly) by the Association and sent postage prepaid via the United States Postal Service to all Owners at their last known address, and available on the Association website as the date of publication and mailing, which contains notices of all regular and special meetings of the Association's Members and its Board of Directors, and information, news and commentary</p>	<p>Association's Voting Members and its Board of Directors, and information, news and commentary with respect to the Common Properties and Facilities, and the activities, finances and projects of the Association. Publication of notices of meetings, Association documents, including but not limited to the annual budget, annual and special dues and assessments, fees, minutes of the meetings of the Board and the Committees and Commissions of the Association shall constitute notice as required by law and Association's Governing Documents, which shall be deemed to have been sent to all Owners and Voting Members on the day it is mailed. The Board shall adopt policies regarding the publication of any and all materials to be printed in <i>The Apple Core</i>, which shall be administered by the Editorial Review Committee. (See Article XI, Section 18.)</p> <p>d. "Voting Member Ticket" shall mean a petition signed by fifty</p>	<p>The language change was adding Owner.</p>
--	--	---	--

	<p>with respect to the Common Properties and Facilities, and the activities, finances and projects of the Association. Publication of notices of meetings, Association documents, including but not limited to the annual budget, annual and special dues and assessments, fees, minutes of the meetings of the Board and the Committees of the Association shall constitute notice as required by law and Association's Governing Documents, which shall be deemed to have been sent to all Owners on the day it is mailed. The Board shall adopt policies regarding the publication of any and all materials to be printed in <i>The Apple Core</i>, which shall be administered by the Editorial Review Committee (See Article XIII, Section 12.)</p> <p>e. Voting Member Ticket shall mean a petition signed by fifty (50) Voting Members which identifies the name(s) of the Member whose names is to be added to the Ballot by the Nominating Committee along with all other candidates to be elected to the Board by the Voting Members at the next election, as provided in Article VII, Section 5 of these Bylaws.</p> <p>h. Nominating Committee Guidelines</p>	<p>(50) Voting Members which identifies the name(s) of the Owner whose name is to be added to the Ballot by the Nominating Committee along with all other candidates to be elected to the Board by the Voting Members at the next election, as provided in Article VI, Section 5 of these Bylaws.</p> <p>h. "Nominating Committee Guidelines" shall mean the written procedures adopted by the Nominating Committee and approved by the Board that shall be followed by the Nominating Committee in the recruitment and interviewing of candidates for the Board, and for providing the Voting Members with all relevant information concerning those candidates who seek to be elected to the Board at the next annual meeting. (See Article XII, Section 10.)</p> <p>i. "Tellers Commission Guidelines" shall mean the written procedures adopted by the Tellers Commission and approved by the Board prior to</p>	<p>The language added included Voting Member and Article reference.</p> <p>The language changed to Commission and Article reference.</p>
--	---	--	--

	<p>shall mean the written procedures adopted by the Nominating Committee and approved by the Board that shall be followed by the dominating Committee in the recruitment and interviewing of candidates for the Board, and for providing the Members with all relevant information concerning those candidates who seek to be elected to the Board at the next annual meeting. (See Article XIII, Section 3.)</p> <p>i. Tellers Committee Guidelines shall mean the written procedure adopted by the Tellers Committee and approved by the Board prior to the annual meeting that shall be followed by the Tellers Committee when it counts all Written Ballots cast on all matters during that year. (See Article XIII., Section 11(a).)</p>	<p>the annual meeting that shall be followed by the Tellers Commission when it counts all written Ballots cast on all matters during that year. (See Article XII, Section 17(a).)</p>	
--	---	---	--

<p>Article II Membership</p>	<p>Section 1. Membership is defined in Article IV, Section 1 of the Restated Covenants, which provides:</p> <p>Section 1. Membership. Membership in the Association shall be the privilege of each Natural Person, and his or her spouse, who is the legal or equitable Owner of any Lot or Dwelling; except that no Lot or Dwelling shall have as Owners more than three (3) Natural Persons, including their spouses. Any Legal Entity which owns any Lot or Dwelling may designate one (1) Natural Person, including his or her spouse, as a Member of the Association. Each such designation by a Legal Entity shall be in writing and shall provide the name, address and telephone number of the Member, including any spouse, which person shall be the Voting Member as defined in Section 2. After the initial designation, changes in the identity of the Voting Member can be made only with the approval of the Board, or upon a showing that the change in the identity of the Voting Member has resulted from a bona fide change in the ownership interest of the Legal Entity making the request. The Board's decision in all such matters shall be binding and final. Any Natural Person or Legal Entity that holds</p>	<p>Section 1. Membership. Membership in the Association shall be as provided in Article IV, Section 1 of the Restated Declaration.</p> <p>Section 2. The membership rights of any Natural Person who is the legal or equitable Owner of any Lot, or is the designated Member of any Lot owned by a Legal Entity, or of any Occupant are subject to the payment of any and all annual and special assessments on all Lots and Dwellings owned by said Owner. Whether or not he or she is personally obligated to pay such dues or assessments, any member's rights to use the Common Properties and Facilities may be suspended by action of the Board during the period when the dues or assessments remain unpaid. Upon payment of the unpaid dues and assessments, his or her rights and privileges shall be automatically restored.</p> <p>Section 3. Pursuant to Article V, Section 3 of the Restated Declaration, the Board may from time to time adopt and publish Rules and Regulations governing the use of the Common Properties and Facilities, the Properties, the Lots and Dwellings and the personal conduct of persons using</p>	<p>Changes were because there was no reason to repeat this language within the Bylaws because it is already included within the proposed Declaration.</p> <p>Some language was deleted because it was already outlined in Article IV. Section 1. of the Declaration which outlines membership rights.</p>
--	---	--	---

	<p>a legal or equitable interest in any Lot or Dwelling as security for the performance of an obligation shall not be a Member. Every Member, including any spouse of a Member, shall provide the Association with his or her current mailing address and telephone number.</p> <p>Section 2. The membership rights of any Natural Person who is the legal or equitable Owner of any Lot, or is the designated Member of any Lot owned by a Legal Entity, or of any Occupant is subject to the payment of any and all annual and special assessments on all Lots and Dwellings owned by said Member. Whether or not he or she is personally obligated to pay such dues or assessments, any Member's rights to use the Common Properties and Facilities may be suspended by action of the Board during the period when the dues or assessments remain unpaid. Upon payment of the unpaid dues and assessments, his or her rights and privileges shall be automatically restored.</p> <p>Section 3. Any person, who is the spouse of a Member, if appointed by the Board, shall be eligible to serve as full member of any committee, subcommittee or any other body of the</p>	<p>all of the same. The Board in its discretion may levy fines, penalties or other charges and/or suspend the Owner's right to use such Common Properties and Facilities for violation of such Rules and Regulations.</p> <p>The Board may adopt such rules, regulations, guidelines and procedures from time to time, and provide for the creation of an appeals board to which Owners who are issued citations for the violation of any rule or regulation may appeal. (See, Article VII, Section, 1(l).)</p>	
--	---	---	--

	<p>Association. Where the record owner of any lot or living unit is an entity (living trust, land trust, partnership, corporation, etc.) the record owner may designate one Natural Person as the Member of the Association. The spouse of the Member so designated shall also be eligible to serve as a full member of any committee, subcommittee or other body of the Association.</p> <p>Section 4. Pursuant to Article V, Section 3 of the Restated Covenants, the Board from time to time adopts and publishes Rules and Regulations governing the use of the Common Properties and Facilities and the personal conduct of persons using the Common Properties and Facilities. The Board in its discretion may levy fines, penalties or other charges and/or suspend the Member's right to use such Common Properties and Facilities for violation of such Rules and Regulations.</p> <p>The Board may adopt such rules, regulations, guidelines and procedures from time to time, and provide for the creation of an appeals board to which Members who are issued citations for the violation of any rule or regulation</p>		
--	---	--	--

<p>Article III Voting Rights</p>	<p>may appeal. (See, Article VIII, Section, 1(o), (p).)</p>	<p>The voting rights of Members are as set in Article IV, Section 2, of the Restated Declaration.</p>	<p>The reason for deletion of some language within the Bylaws is because it is already included in the proposed Declaration, Article IV. Section 2. outlining voting rights.</p>
<p>Section 2. Voting Rights – One Voting Member. The Owners of each Lot or Dwelling shall designate one Natural Person as the Voting Member for said Lot or Dwelling. Only the Voting Member, as defined in Article I, Section 1(x), shall be entitled to vote at any regular or special meeting of the Association, and only the Voting Member shall be sent notice of any regular or special meeting of the Association. In the event there are multiple Owners of a Lot or Dwelling who are Natural Persons, including their spouses, and they fail to designate one Natural Person as the Voting Member, the first person named in the deed conveying title to the Lot or Dwelling shall be deemed to be the Voting Member. In the event a Lot or Dwelling is owned by a Legal Entity, it shall designate one Natural Person to be the Voting Member. The failure of a Legal Entity to designate a Voting Member shall be a bar to the right to vote on any matter, and the vote of such Lot or Dwelling shall not be counted for the</p>			

	<p>determination of a quorum. Owners, other than a Legal Entity, may change the designation of the Voting Member at any time by delivering to the Association a written designation, signed by all of the Owners of the Lot or Dwelling, which contains the Voting Member's name, address and telephone number. Any such change in the designation of the Voting Member shall be effective when received by the Association.</p> <p>Every Lot or Dwelling shall be entitled to one vote, provided that all assessments, charges, fees and fines which are due the Association are paid in full at the time of the vote. If the Association owns any Lot or Dwelling, it shall not have the right to cast any vote, and the vote of any such Lot or Dwelling shall not be counted for the purpose of determining a quorum. The total number of votes shall not exceed the total number of Lots or Dwellings in The Properties. The vote of a Lot or Dwelling shall not be divisible. If there is a dispute between or among the multiple Owners of a Lot or Dwelling as to who shall be the Voting Member, the vote for any such Lot or Dwelling shall not be counted for any purpose, including determining a quorum. For</p>		
--	---	--	--

<p>Article IV Property Rights and Rights of Enjoyment of Common Properties</p>	<p>purposes of determining the votes allowed under this section, when Dwellings in Multifamily Structures are counted, the Lot or Lots upon which such Dwellings are situated shall not be counted.</p> <p>Section 1. Each Member shall be entitled to the use and enjoyment of the Common Properties and Facilities as provided by Article V of the Restated Covenants.</p> <p>Section 2. Any Member may delegate his or her rights of enjoyment in the Common Properties and Facilities to any Occupant as defined in Article I, Section 1(u) of the Restated Covenants in accordance with such Rules and Regulations as may be adopted by the Board from time to time. The rights and privileges of all such Occupants are subject to suspension under Article II, Sections 2 and 4 of the Bylaws to the same extent as those of the delegating Member.</p> <p>Section 3. Without limiting the generality of Section 2, Members may be permitted to introduce guests to use the Common Properties and Facilities</p>	<p>This section was removed from the Proposed Restated Bylaws.</p>	<p>This language was removed because it is included in the proposed Declaration Article V.</p>
---	---	--	--

	<p>only in accordance with the Rules and Regulations adopted by the Board from time to time. The rights and privileges of such guest are subject to suspension under Article II, Sections 2 and 4 of these Bylaws to the same extent as those of the Member introducing such guests.</p>		
<p>Article V Association Purposes and Powers</p>	<p>Section 1. The Association has been organized for the purposes as set forth in Article 5 of the Restated Articles which provides:</p> <p>To promote the health, safety and welfare of the property owners, residents and guests within all lots and properties (collectively, The Properties) in Branigar's Apple Canyon Lake Subdivision in Jo Daviess County, Illinois, in accordance with plat thereof recorded with the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County, and such additions thereto as may hereafter be brought within the jurisdiction, functions, duties and membership of the Association by annexation as provided in the Restated Covenants, effective</p>	<p>Now Article IV in the Restated Bylaws.</p> <p>Section 1. The Association has been organized for the purposes as set forth in Article 5 of the Articles of Incorporation and for the purposes as outlined within the Restated Declaration.</p> <p>Section 2. Additions to the Properties may be made only in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Restated Declaration. The Association shall have power to dispose of the Common Properties and Facilities, and the Reserved Properties only as authorized by the applicable provisions of the Restated Declaration.</p> <p>Section 3. Subject to the applicable provisions of the Restated Declaration, and to the extent provided by law, the</p>	<p>The Association Attorney reorganized the language in this Article adding where the former language was placed (Articles of Incorporation and Restated Covenants).</p>

	<p>November 6, 2011, recorded with the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County, Illinois (as the same may be hereafter amended and supplemented, the Restated Covenants), for the purpose to own, acquire, build, operate and maintain a man-made reservoir, recreational waterway, recreation parks, playgrounds, swimming pools, golf courses, commons, streets, footways, including buildings, structures and personal properties incident thereto (the Common Properties and Facilities), pay any taxes assessed with respect thereto, provide any services normally provided by municipalities such as fire and police protection, enforce any and all covenants and restrictions applicable to The Properties and the Common Properties and Facilities and, insofar as permitted by law, do any other thing that, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, will promote the common benefit and enjoyment of the owners, residents and guests of The Properties and the Common Properties and Facilities.</p>	<p>Association may participate in mergers and consolidations. Any such merger shall be adopted only upon a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors and approved by at least two-thirds of the votes cast by the Voting Members at a special meeting of the Association duly called for such purpose, written notice of which shall be given at least ten (10) and not more than thirty (30) days in advance to all Voting Members. At any such meeting a quorum shall consist of twenty percent (20%) of the votes of all Voting Members eligible to vote at such meeting.</p> <p>Section 4. Subject to the following sentence, the Association may incur indebtedness for borrowed money or mortgage, pledge or grant security interests in the Common Properties and Facilities as determined from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Association shall not incur indebtedness in an amount that would result in the total principal amount of all indebtedness of the Association then outstanding, after giving effect to such incurrence, to exceed the total annual assessments, fees and other revenue of the Association from all sources for the most recently completed fiscal year of the Association, without the prior</p>	
--	--	---	--

	<p>Section 2. Additions to the Properties may be made only in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Restated Covenants. The Association shall have power to dispose of the Common Properties and Facilities, the Reserved Properties only as authorized by the applicable provisions of the Restated Covenants.</p> <p>Section 3. Subject to the applicable provisions of the Restated Covenants, and to the extent provided by law, the Association may participate in mergers and consolidations. Any such merger shall be adopted only upon a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors and approved by at least two-thirds of the votes cast by the Voting Members at a special meeting of the Association duly called for such purpose, written notice of which shall be given at least sixty (60) days in advance to all Voting Members. At any such meeting a quorum shall consist of twenty percent (20%) of the votes of all Voting Members eligible to vote at such meeting.</p> <p>Section 4. Subject to the following sentence, the Association may incur indebtedness for borrowed money or</p>	<p>approval of a majority of the votes cast by the Voting Members at a Special Meeting of the Association duly called for such purpose, written notice of which shall be given at least ten (10) and not more than thirty (30) days in advance of said meeting. At any such meeting a quorum shall consist of twenty percent (20%) of the votes of all Voting Members.</p> <p>Section 5. The Association may be dissolved only upon a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors and approved by at least two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast by the Voting Members at a special meeting of the Association duly called for such purpose, written notice of which shall be sent at least sixty (60) days in advance of said meeting. At any such meeting a quorum shall consist of twenty percent (20%) of the votes of all Voting Members. Upon dissolution of the Association, the Common Properties and Facilities and the Reserved Properties shall be dedicated to an appropriate public entity to be devoted to purposes as nearly as practicable the same as those to which they were required to be devoted by the Association. In the event that such dedication is refused acceptance, the</p>	
--	--	---	--

	<p>mortgage, pledge or grant security interests in the Common Properties and Facilities as determined from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Association shall not incur indebtedness in an amount that would result in the total principal amount of all indebtedness of the Association then outstanding, after giving effect to such incurrence, to exceed the total annual assessments, fees and other revenue of the Association from all sources for the most recently completed fiscal year of the Association, without the prior approval of a majority of the votes cast by the Voting Members at a Special Meeting of the Association duly called for such purpose, written notice of which shall be given at least thirty (30) days in advance of said meeting. At any such meeting a quorum shall consist of twenty percent (20%) of the votes of all Voting Members.</p> <p>Section 5. The Association may be dissolved only upon a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors and approved by at least two-thirds of the votes cast by the Voting Members at a special meeting of the Association duly called for such purpose, written notice of which shall be sent at least sixty (60) days in advance of said meeting. At</p>	<p>Common Properties and Facilities and the Reserved Properties shall be granted, conveyed and assigned to any nonprofit corporation, association, trust or other organization to be devoted to purposes as nearly as practicable the same as those to which they were required to be devoted by the Association. No such disposition shall be effective to divest or diminish any right or title of any Owner vested in such Owner under the Restated Declaration unless made in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Restated Declaration.</p>	
--	---	--	--

<p>Article VI Board of Directors</p>	<p>any such meeting a quorum shall consist of twenty percent (20%) of the votes of all Voting Members. Upon dissolution of the Association, the Common Properties and Facilities and the Reserved Properties shall be dedicated to an appropriate public entity to be devoted to purposes as nearly as practicable the same as those to which they were required to be devoted by the Association. In the event that such dedication is refused acceptance, the Common Properties and Facilities and the Reserved Properties shall be granted, conveyed and assigned to any nonprofit corporation, association, trust or other organization to be devoted to purposes as nearly as practicable the same as those to which they were required to be devoted by the Association. No such disposition shall be effective to divest or diminish any right or title of any Member vested in such Member under the Restated Covenants unless made in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Restated Covenants.</p>	<p>Article VI is Article V in the Restated Bylaws.</p>	<p>The Association Attorney stated that</p>
---	---	---	---

	<p>Association shall be managed by a Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the Board) each of whom must be a Member of the Association while serving on the Board. If there are multiple owners of a single unit, only one of the multiple owners shall be eligible to serve as a member of the board at any one time, unless the unit owner owns another unit independently</p> <p>Section 2. The Board shall consist of nine (9) members, three (3) of whom are elected by the Voting Members of the Association at each annual meeting and shall hold office for a term of three (3) years or until their successors are elected or appointed, and shall not be compensated for their service, but may be reimbursed for reasonable expenses actually incurred. No member of the Board may be engaged as an employee of the Association. Upon the adoption of the Bylaws all Board members who are then serving terms shall continue to serve until the annual meeting in June of the year when the term he or she is then serving expires.</p> <p>Vacancies on the Board shall be filled by a two-thirds vote of the remaining members of the Board until the next annual meeting, or until 20% of the</p>	<p>Section 1. The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the Board) each of whom must be an Owner and/or Voting Member of the Association while serving on the Board. If there are multiple Owners of a single Lot, only one of the multiple Owners shall be eligible to serve as a member of the Board at any one time, unless the Owner owns another Lot independently</p> <p>Section 2. The Board shall consist of nine (9) members, three (3) of whom are elected by the Voting Members of the Association at each annual meeting and shall hold office for a term of three (3) years or until their successors are elected or appointed, and shall not be compensated for their service, but may be reimbursed for reasonable expenses actually incurred. No member of the Board may be engaged as an employee of the Association. Upon the adoption of the Bylaws all Board members who are then serving terms shall continue to serve until the annual meeting in June of the year when the term he or she is then serving expires.</p>	<p>CICAA 1-25 (a) and 1-35 (b) contemplates only Owners serving on the Board. Therefore a Spouse of an Owner, that is not on title, may not serve on the Board. The designated Voting Member for an Legal Entity could serve on the Board since that Legal Entity itself could not serve on the Board and therefore, the Voting Member is acting on behalf of the Legal Entity Ownership rights.</p> <p>CICAA (765 ILS 160/1-25(e)) states that if a vacancy occurs after the deadline for candidate nominations, the Board has a choice. If the Board wants to fill the vacancy right away, it may, but the replacement director would only serve until the next occurring annual meeting per the CICAA. If there remains time on the term</p>
--	---	---	---

votes of the Voting Members request a special meeting to fill the vacancy, in either case for the balance of the term. If a special meeting is called to fill the vacancy, the special meeting shall be held no later than thirty (30) days following the filing of the petition for the Special Meeting. Notice shall be given pursuant to Article XIV, Section. 3. If the Board is unable to fill the vacancy or if there are no longer six (6) Board members, the remaining Board members shall call an election within ninety (90) days to fill the vacancies.

Any duly appointed member of the Board is to hold office until his or her term expires or until his or her successor is elected by the Voting Members, or until the death, resignation or removal of the Board member.

Vacancies on the Board may be filled by a two-thirds ($\frac{2}{3}$) vote of the remaining members of the Board until the next annual meeting of Voting Members or until Voting Members holding twenty percent (20%) of the total votes of the Association request a special meeting to fill the vacancy for the balance of the term. If a special meeting is called to fill the vacancy, the special meeting shall be held no later than thirty (30) days following the filing of the petition for the Special Meeting. Notice shall be given pursuant to Article XIII, Section. 3. If the Board is unable to fill the vacancy or if there are no longer at least six (6) Board members, the remaining Board members shall call a special election within ninety (90) days of the vacancy occurring to fill the vacancies.

Section 3. New Board members shall as soon as practicable after being elected or appointed, complete a form providing the General Manager with his or her regular mailing address, telephone and fax number(s) and email address(s), if applicable. Any changes shall be communicated to the General Manager promptly.

following this annual meeting, the Board could then appoint the same individual or someone else to fill the vacated Board position until the following annual meeting or until a petition is filed as provided in this Section. Or, the Board could choose not to appoint anyone to fill the vacancy right away and following the next occurring annual meeting, if there is still time left on the vacated Board term, then the Board could appoint a replacement director to fill the vacant term and that person would serve until the next annual meeting or until the voting members file a petition as provided in this Section.

Section 3 is relocated from another section later in the document.

--	--	--	--	--

**Article VII
Voting Procedures
Election of Directors**

Section 1. Election to the Board and votes on all matters and issues requiring a vote of the Voting Members shall be by Written Ballot as described in Article XV and as provided herein. On any vote requiring approval of the Voting Members or on any election, the Voting Member may cast, in respect to each issue being voted upon, or for each Board vacancy, as many votes as he or she is entitled to exercise under the provisions of Article III of these Bylaws. The Members receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected to the Board. In case of a tie, the outcome shall be determined by a coin toss conducted by the General Manager at the annual meeting.

Section 2. Nominations for election to the Board shall be made by a Nominating Committee described in Article XIII, Section. 3 of the Bylaws. Nominations may also be made by petition on a Voting Members Ticket as provided in Section 5 below.

Article VII is Article VI in the Restated Bylaws.

Section 1. Election to the Board and votes on all matters and issues requiring a vote of the Voting Members shall be by Written Ballot as described in Article XIV and as provided herein. On any vote requiring approval of the Voting Members or on any election, the Voting Member may cast, in respect to each issue being voted upon, or for each Board vacancy, as many votes as he or she is entitled to exercise under the provisions of Article III of these Bylaws. The Owners receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected to the Board. In case of a tie, the outcome shall be determined by a coin toss conducted by the General Manager at the annual meeting.

Section 2. Nominations for election to the Board shall be made by a Nominating Committee described in Article XII, Section. 10 of the Bylaws. Nominations may also be made by petition on a Voting Members Ticket as provided in Section 5 below.

Section 3. The Association shall maintain a current list of all Voting Members, which shall identify every Lot or Dwelling for which a Member is designated as the Voting Member. The Association shall send by first class mail in one envelope to each Voting Member the number of Written Ballots said Voting Member is entitled to cast, along with the Notice of the annual or special meeting and a description of the candidates who were nominated for election to the Board, or the issue to be voted upon. Written Ballots shall be mailed to the Voting Members at least thirty (30) days but not more than forty-five (45) days in advance of the date on which the Written Ballot is to be cast.

Each Voting Member shall receive as many Written Ballots as he or she has votes. Notwithstanding that a Voting Member may be entitled to several votes, he or she shall exercise on any one Written Ballot only one vote for each vacancy shown thereon, or each issue described thereon. The Voting Member need not vote for every candidate on the Written Ballot, but cumulative voting shall not be permitted. The completed Written Ballots shall be placed in the Ballot Envelope provided and returned in the Return Envelope provided.

Section 3. The Association shall maintain a current list of all Voting Members, which shall identify every Lot or Dwelling for which an individual is designated as the Voting Member. The Association shall send by first class mail in one envelope to each Voting Member the number of Written Ballots said Voting Member is entitled to cast, along with the Notice of the annual or special meeting and a description of the candidates who were nominated for election to the Board, or a description of the issue to be voted upon. Written Ballots shall be mailed to the Voting Members at least thirty (30) days but not more than forty-five (45) days in advance of the date on which the Written Ballot is to be cast.

Each Voting Member shall receive as many Written Ballots as he or she has votes. Notwithstanding that a Voting Member may be entitled to several votes, he or she shall exercise on any one Written Ballot only one vote for each vacancy shown thereon. In the event that multiple positions on the Board are up for election at an election meeting, the Voting Member need not cast a vote on the Written Ballot for a candidate to fill every Board position which is up for election, but may not cast more than one (1) vote on each Written Ballot for any particular candidate. Cumulative voting shall not be permitted. The completed Written

Section 4. Upon receipt of each Return Envelope, the General Manager shall verify that the Voting Member whose name appears on the Return Envelope is authorized to cast Written Ballots for each Lot or Dwelling listed on the outside of the Return Envelope. The Return Envelopes shall be placed in a secure place until the annual or special meeting at which the votes are to be counted. On that day, the Return Envelopes shall be given, unopened, to the Tellers Committee. Written Ballots may also be cast in person on the day of the annual meeting or special meeting by placing the Written Ballot in the designated ballot box, after the Voting Member's right to vote has been verified by the Tellers Committee. A Voting Member who had previously submitted a Return Envelope prior to the meeting at which the Written Ballots are to be counted, may, prior to the meeting upon verification of said Voting Members eligibility to vote, request that his or her Return Envelope be returned and that a new Written Ballot(s) and a new Ballot Envelope be supplied to permit such Voting Member to submit an new Ballot Envelope and a new Written Ballot.

Section 4. Upon receipt of each Return Envelope, the General Manager shall verify that the Voting Member whose name appears on the Return Envelope is authorized to cast Written Ballots for each Lot or Dwelling listed on the outside of the Return Envelope. The Return Envelopes shall be placed in a secure place until the date set for the annual or special meeting at which the votes are to be counted. On that day, the Return Envelopes containing the Ballot Envelopes shall be given, unopened, to the Tellers Committee. Written Ballots may also be cast in person on the day of the annual meeting or special meeting, up until the deadline for casting a vote, by placing the Written Ballot within the Ballot Envelope into the designated ballot box, after the Voting Member's right to vote has been verified by the Tellers Committee. A Voting Member who had previously submitted a Return Envelope prior to the meeting at which the Written Ballots are to be counted, may upon verification of said Voting Member's eligibility to vote and up until the deadline for casting a vote, request that his or her Return Envelope be returned and that a new Written

Section 5. Voting Members Ticket. Additional nominations of eligible Members for election to fill one of the vacancies on the Board, which shall be known as a Voting Members Ticket may be made by fifty (50) votes of Voting Members presenting a signed petition to the chair of the Nominating Committee not less than sixty (60) days preceding the date of the annual meeting. The Voting Members Ticket shall identify the name of the Member, and if he or she meets the qualifications of Article VI, Section 1, his or her name shall be included on the Written Ballot sent to all Voting Members.

Section 6. If no election is held to elect Board members within the time period specified in the Bylaws, or within a reasonable amount of time thereafter, not to exceed 90 days, then twenty-percent (20%) of the votes of the Voting Members may bring an action to compel compliance with the election requirements specified in the Bylaws. If

Ballot(s) and a new Ballot Envelope be supplied to permit such Voting Member to submit a new Ballot Envelope and a new Written Ballot.

Section 5. Voting Members Ticket. Additional nominations of eligible Owners or Voting Members for election to fill one of the vacancies on the Board, which shall be known as a Voting Members Ticket may be made by Voting Members having at least fifty total (50) votes in the Association presenting a signed petition to the chair of the Nominating Committee not less than sixty (60) days preceding the date of the annual meeting. The Voting Members Ticket shall identify the name of the Owner or Voting Member, and, if he or she meets the qualifications of Article V, Section 1, then his or her name shall be included on the Written Ballot sent to all Voting Members.

Section 6. If no election is held to elect Board members within the time period specified in these Bylaws, or within a reasonable amount of time thereafter, not to exceed ninety (90) days, then Voting Members having at least twenty-percent (20%) of the total votes in the Association may bring an action to compel compliance with the

the court finds that an election was not held to elect members of the Board within the required period due to the bad faith acts or omissions of the Board, the Voting Members shall be entitled to recover their reasonable attorney's fees and costs from the Association. If the relevant notice requirements have been met and an election is not held solely due to a lack of a quorum, then this Section 6 does not apply.

election requirements specified in the Bylaws. If the court finds that an election was not held to elect members of the Board within the required period due to the bad faith acts or omissions of the Board, the Voting Members shall be entitled to recover their reasonable attorney's fees and costs from the Association. If the relevant notice requirements have been met and an election is not held solely due to a lack of a quorum, then this Section 6 does not apply.

<p>Article VIII Power and Duties of the Board of Directors</p>	<p>Section 1. The Board of Directors shall exercise for the Association all powers, duties and authority vested in the Association by law, including but not limited to the provisions of CICAA, as amended and in effect from time to time, or by the Restated Covenants, or by the Bylaws, as amended and in effect from time to time, except for such powers, duties and authority reserved by law or by the Restated Covenants to the Members.</p> <p>The duties of the Board shall include, but not be limited to the following:</p> <p>e. To prepare and adopt each year an annual budget which shall identify the Association's projected income and expenses for the next year, which shall include an appropriate amount for the repair and replacement of the Association's Common Properties and Reserved Properties, its facilities and equipment, and shall provide an indication of which portions are intended for reserves, capital expenditures, repairs and the payment of real estate taxes. The annual budget shall include a statement of the annual</p>	<p>Article VII in the Amended and Restated Bylaws</p> <p>Section 1. The Board of Directors shall exercise for the Association all powers, duties and authority vested in the Association by law, including but not limited to the provisions of CICAA, as amended and in effect from time to time, or by the Restated Declaration, or by the Bylaws, as amended and in effect from time to time, except for such powers, duties and authority reserved by law or by the Restated Declaration to the Voting Members.</p> <p>The duties of the Board shall include, but not be limited to the following:</p> <p>e. To prepare and adopt each year an annual budget which shall identify the Association's projected income and expenses for the next year, which shall include an appropriate amount for the repair and replacement of the Association's Common Properties and Reserved Properties, its facilities and equipment, and shall provide an indication of which portions are intended for reserves, capital expenditures, repairs and the payment</p>	
---	---	---	--

	<p>assessment to be paid by the Members for the next year, and the fees to be charged for the next year. Said annual budget shall be published in <i>The Apple Core</i> and posted on the Association's website, at least 30 days, but not more than 60 days prior to the meeting at which the budget is adopted,</p> <p>f. To provide all members by publication in <i>The Apple Core</i> and on the Association's website, with a reasonably detailed summary of the receipts, common expenses and reserves for the preceding budget year.</p> <p>g. To either (i) make available for review to all members an itemized accounting of the common expenses for the preceding year actually incurred or paid, together with an indication of which portions were for reserves, capital expenditures or repairs or payment of real estate taxes with a tabulation of all amounts collected, stating the net excess or deficit of income over expenditures plus reserves; or (ii) provide a consolidated annual independent audit report of the financial status of all fund accounts of the Association.</p>	<p>of real estate taxes. The annual budget shall include a statement of the annual assessment to be paid by the Owners for the next year, and the fees to be charged for the next year. A copy of the proposed annual budget shall be communicated to each Owner/Voting Member at least thirty (30) days, but not more than sixty (60) days, prior to the meeting of the Board at which the budget is adopted.</p> <p>e. To provide all Owner/Voting Members with a reasonably detailed summary of the receipts, common expenses and reserves for the preceding budget year.</p> <p>f. To either (i) make available for review to all Owners/Voting Members an itemized accounting of the common expenses for the preceding year actually incurred or paid, together with an indication of which portions were for reserves, capital expenditures or repairs or payment of real estate taxes with a tabulation of all amounts collected, stating the next excess or deficit of</p>	<p>The change was made from "publication in <i>The Apple Core</i>" to allow digital or other options for communicating.</p> <p>Changes were made adding "Owners/Voting Members"</p>
--	---	--	---

	<p>h. If the Board determines that to balance the annual budget, an increase in the annual assessment must be levied, the Board may increase the annual assessment prospectively for the following year or for any future period. If the adopted budget or any separate assessment adopted by the Board results in the sum of all regular and separate assessments payable in the current fiscal year exceeding one hundred fifteen percent (115%) of the sum of all regular and separate assessments payable during the preceding year, upon the written petition of twenty percent (20%) of the votes of the Voting Members delivered to the Board within 14 days of the Board's action, the Board shall call a special meeting of the Voting Members to be held within thirty (30) days of the date said petition is delivered to the Board to consider the said budget. Unless a majority of the total votes cast at said meeting reject the budget or separate assessment, it shall be deemed ratified. If the budget is not ratified, the Board shall submit a new budget to the Voting Members, and the procedures set forth in this section shall be repeated until a budget for the next year has been</p>	<p>income over expenditures plus reserves; or (ii) provide a consolidated annual independent audit report of the financial status.</p> <p>Items h, i, j, and k are removed from the proposed Restated Covenants.</p>	<p>This language does not need to be included in the Bylaws because it is in the proposed Covenants in Article VI.</p>
--	---	---	--

adopted.

i. To adopt separate assessments for additions and alterations to the Common Properties and Facilities or the Reserved Properties which are not included in the adopted annual budget, which shall be separately assessed and are subject to the approval of a majority of the total Voting Members in the Association voting at a special meeting called for that purpose. Any common expense not set forth in the annual budget or any increase in assessments over the amount adopted in the budget shall be separately assessed against the members.

j. To adopt separate assessments for expenditures related to an emergency or for expenditure mandated by law, which assessments may be adopted by the Board without Voting Member approval. Emergency means an immediate danger to the structural integrity of any part of the Common Properties or Facilities or to the life, health, safety or property of the Owners.

k. To adopt separate assessments payable over more than one fiscal year. With respect to such multi-year assessments not covered by subsections (i) and (j) above, the entire

	<p>amount of the multi-year assessment shall be deemed considered and authorized in the first fiscal year in which the assessment is approved.</p> <p>l. To maintain a current roster of all Lots and Dwellings, all of the Owners thereof, the Voting Member designated for each Lot and Dwelling, and the annual and special assessments applicable thereto. Such records shall be kept in the office of the Association and shall be open for examination and copying at convenient hours of weekdays by any Member or their authorized agent. To prepare an annual directory of the names and addresses of all Members and make it available to all Members upon request and the payment of a reasonable fee.</p> <p>m. To borrow such amounts as are required to preserve and maintain the Common Properties and Facilities in accordance with the provisions of Article V, Section 4 of the Bylaws.</p> <p>n. To adopt, publish and make available to the Members rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Properties and Facilities and the personal conduct of the Members, their Occupants and their guests while</p>	<p>The l item is now item h and so forth</p> <p>h. To maintain a current roster of all Lots and Dwellings, all of the Owners thereof, the Voting Member designated for each Lot and Dwelling, and the annual and special assessments applicable thereto. Such records shall be kept in the office of the Association and shall be open for examination and copying at convenient hours of weekdays by any Owner or their authorized agent. To prepare an annual directory of the names and addresses of all Owners and make it available to all Owners upon request and the payment of a reasonable fee.</p> <p>i. To borrow such amounts as are required to preserve and maintain the Common Properties and Facilities in accordance with the provisions of Article IV, Section 4 of the Bylaws.</p> <p>j. To adopt, publish and make</p>	<p>Languages changes were made from Members to Owners.</p> <p>There was a change in the Article reference.</p>
--	---	---	--

	<p>thereon.</p> <p>o. To suspend the enjoyment rights of any Member for any period not to exceed ninety (90) days for any infraction of its published rules and regulations.</p> <p>p. To establish fines for noncompliance with the Restated Covenants, the Bylaws and the Rules and Regulations, after the Member has been given notice of the infraction and an opportunity to be heard.</p> <p>q. To maintain and make available for inspection and copying the Restated Covenants, the Restated Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws, the Rules and Regulations adopted by the Board, and Board Policies. Such records shall be kept in the office of the Association and shall be open for examination and copying at convenient hours of weekdays by any Member or their authorized agent, upon payment of a reasonable charge.</p>	<p>available to the Owners and Voting Members rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Properties and Facilities, the Properties, the Lots and Dwellings, and the personal conduct of the Owners, Members, their Occupants and their guests while thereon.</p> <p>k. To suspend the enjoyment rights of any Owner for any period not to exceed ninety (90) days for any infraction of its published rules and regulations after the Owner has been given notice of the infraction and an opportunity to be heard.</p> <p>l. To establish fines for noncompliance with the Restated Declaration, the Bylaws and the Rules and Regulations, after the Owner has been given notice of the infraction and an opportunity to be heard.</p> <p>m. To maintain and make available for inspection and copying those Association records outlined within Section 1-30(i) of the CICAA. Such records shall be kept in the office of the Association and shall be open for examination and copying at convenient hours of weekdays by any Owner or their authorized agent, upon payment</p>	<p>There was a change to proposed definition changes: Owners, Members, Voting Members, Lots, Dwelling, and Properties.</p> <p>The change in k. Is that language was added that suspending the enjoyment rights of any Owner for any period not to exceed ninety (90) days for any infraction is only after the Owner has been given notice of the infraction and opportunity to be heard.</p> <p>The language was changed from Member to Owner.</p> <p>The language cites CICAA Section 1-30 (i).</p>
--	---	---	---

	<p>r. To call special meetings of the Voting Members whenever it deems necessary, or at any time upon the written request of one-hundred twenty-five (125) of the votes of the Voting members.</p> <p>s. To appoint and remove, with or without cause, all officers, agents, and the General Manager of the Association, prescribe their duties, fix their compensation, and require of them such security or fidelity bond as it may be required by law or appropriate.</p> <p>t. To obtain and maintain fidelity insurance covering persons who control or disburse funds for the Association for the maximum amount that is commercially reasonable to protect funds that are in the custody and control of the Association.</p> <p>u. To cause to be kept and made available for examination and copying at convenient hours of the weekdays by any Owner, all Governing Documents; records in chronological order of the receipts and expenditures affecting the Common Properties and Facilities; all</p>	<p>of a reasonable charge.</p> <p>n. To call special meetings of the Voting Members whenever it deems necessary, or at any time upon the written request of Voting Members holding twenty percent (20%) of the total votes in the Association.</p> <p>o. To appoint and remove, with or without cause, all officers, agents, and the General Manager of the Association, prescribe their duties, fix their compensation, and require of them such security or fidelity bond as may be required by law or as deemed appropriate by the Board.</p> <p>p. To obtain and maintain fidelity insurance covering persons who control or disburse funds for the Association for the maximum amount that is commercially available or reasonably required to protect funds that are in the custody and control of the Association.</p> <p>The Restated Bylaws removed item u from in the previous document.</p>	<p>The Association Attorney found this provision as a unique provision and one he has not seen in other Bylaws. He suggested raising the number to twenty percent (20%) of the total votes rather than the small number of one-hundred-twenty-five (125) of the votes of the Voting Members.</p> <p>The language was changed from commercially reasonable to commercially available.</p> <p>This item is located in Article VII. Section 1 (m) stating that inspection and copying those Association records as outlined within Section</p>
--	---	---	---

	<p>contracts, leases and other agreements entered into by the Board; minutes of all meetings of the Board for a period of not less than seven (7) years; Written Ballots for a period of not less than one year; such other records of the Board as are available for inspection by members of a not-for-profit corporation pursuant to Section 107.75 of the General Not For Profit Corporation Act of 1986, and with respect to any Legal Entities that own Lots or Dwellings, the designation of the Natural Person authorized to vote as a Voting Member. Charges for retrieving and copying any such records shall be made pursuant to Article XVI, Section. 4.</p> <p>w. To cause an appropriate officer to issue, upon demand by any person, a certificate setting forth whether any and all assessments applicable to any Lot or Dwelling have been paid. Such certificate shall be conclusive evidence that any assessment therein stated to have been paid, has been paid.</p>	<p>r. To cause an appropriate officer to issue, upon demand by any person and upon payment of a reasonable service fee as determined by the Board, certificate setting forth whether any and all assessments applicable to any Lot or Dwelling have been paid. Such certificate shall be conclusive evidence that any assessment therein stated to have been paid, has been paid.</p> <p>s. In the event of any resale of any Lot</p>	<p>1-30(i) of the CICA.</p> <p>The language added was "upon payment of a reasonable service fee as determined by the Board."</p>
--	--	---	--

or Dwelling, to make available for inspection to prospective purchaser, upon demand, all such documents as required by law including, but not limited to:

1. A copy of the Restated Declaration, the Bylaws, and all Rules and Regulations.
2. A statement of any liens or unpaid assessments, dues or other charges due and owing from said property.
3. A statement of any capital expenditures anticipated by the Association within the current or succeeding two (2) fiscal years.
4. A state of the status and amount of any reserve for replacement fund and any portion of such fund earmarked for any specified project by the Board.
5. A copy of the statement of financial condition of the Association for the last fiscal year for which such a statement is available.
6. A statement of the status of any pending suits or judgments in which the Association is party.
7. A statement setting forth what insurance coverage is maintained by the Association.

		<p>The General Manager shall furnish the required documents within thirty (30) days of receiving a written request for such information. Charges for retrieving and copying any such records shall be made pursuant to CICA Section 1-30(i)(3).</p> <p>w. To delegate any of its powers in the course of operation to any Committee, officer, employee or agent as permitted by law.</p>	<p>The change is an update to CICA.</p> <p>The term Committee is capitalized. The change was due because of the Not-For-Profit Act.</p>
--	--	--	---

<p>Article X Removal of Directors</p>	<p>Section 2. The call for removal may be made by any four (4) or more members of the Board, or upon written request of Voting Members having at least one hundred twenty-five (125) of the total votes in the Association. Such call for removal shall specifically name the Board member(s) whose removal is sought. If such a call for removal takes place, then a special meeting of the Voting Members shall be called, within sixty (60) days of the call for removal having been received, for the purpose of voting on the removal of the Board member(s) named in the call for removal. The meeting notice for such special meeting shall state that a purpose of the special meeting is to vote upon the removal of the Board member(s) named in the meeting notice. Only the Board member(s) named in the meeting notice may be removed at such meeting. At such meeting, prior to the vote for removal taking place, the individuals seeking removal of the Board member(s) shall be given an opportunity to present their reason(s) for seeking such removal and the Board member(s) whose removal is sought shall be given an opportunity to present their defense(s).</p>	<p>Section 2. The call for removal may be made by any four (4) or more members of the Board, or upon written request of one hundred twenty-five (125) or more of the votes of Voting Members.</p> <p>Section 3. The call for removal shall identify the causes that support removal. The causes for removal shall include, but not be limited to, failure to attend fifty percent (50%) of the regular meetings of the Board in the twelve (12) month period following the annual meeting, or violation of the Restated Covenants, the Bylaws, or the Association's Rules and Regulations, or failure to pay any amounts that are due the Association, or dereliction of duty, or conduct which tends to injure the good name of the Association, disturb its well-being or hamper its work.</p> <p>Section 4. The offending charges and specifications of these charges shall be included in the call for removal by those who call for the removal and shall be submitted to the President in writing at a regular or special meeting at which time the Board member shall be</p>
		<p>This approach gives</p>

	<p>provided a copy of the call for removal, The offending Board member shall be given no more than thirty (30) days to submit his or her defense, which shall be in writing and submitted to the President at the office of the Association.</p> <p>Section 5. The call for removal and the Board member's defense of these charges shall be presented at any regular or special meeting of the Voting Members. This meeting shall be called within sixty (60) days after the Board member has submitted his or her defense.</p> <p>Section 6. A quorum for a meeting to remove shall be one hundred twenty-five (125) votes of the Voting Members, present in person or by Written Ballot. The vote shall be taken pursuant to Article VII.</p>	<p>Section 3, 4, 5, and 6 of 2017 Bylaws were removed as part of the Restated Bylaws.</p>	<p>more of a "due process" opportunity for the Board member(s) whose removal is sought to give an opportunity to present their defense(s).</p> <p>However, the Not-For-Act provides that a Board member may be removed "without cause".</p> <p>Board reference: Memo September 6, 2017 from KJ.</p> <p>Revisions from KJ in 5/23/2020 document.</p>
--	--	--	---

<p>Article XI General Manager</p>	<p>The Board of Directors shall appoint a salaried General Manager and establish the duties, authority, the compensation and other terms of employment of the manager.</p>	<p>This section was removed in the proposed Restated Bylaws.</p>	<p>This is in Article VII, Powers and Duties of the Board of Directors.</p>
<p>Article XII Officers</p>	<p>Section 4. The President shall:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> a. Call to order and preside at all meetings of the Board, the Executive Committee, and of the Members and announce the results of all votes taken at all such meetings. b. Serve for one year. c. Approve the election of the chair of each Standing Committee who was elected by the committee members. d. Appoint the chair and members of any special committee authorized by the Board. Members expressing an interest to serve on such special committee may make application with such application subject to approval by the Board. e. See that all lawful orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out. f. Be a member, <i>ex officio</i> without vote, of all Standing Committees and 	<p>Section 4. The President shall:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> a. Call to order and preside at all meetings of the Board, the Executive Committee, and of the Voting Members and announce the results of all votes taken at all such meetings. b. Approve the election of the chair of each Standing Committee/Commission who was elected by the committee/commission members. c. See that all lawful orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out. d. Be a member, <i>ex officio</i> with vote, of all Standing Committees/Commissions and special committees/commissions of the Board of the Association. e. Sign all notes, leases, contracts, mortgages, deeds, and other written instruments approved by the Board. 	<p>Language changes were on Committee/Commission Voting Members and Owners.</p>

	<p>special committees of the Board or the Association.</p> <p>g. Sign all notes, leases, contracts, mortgages, deeds, and other written instruments approved by the Board.</p> <p>h. Have the authority to co-sign all checks along with any one of the other signatories authorized by the Board.</p>		
<p>Article XIII Committees/Commissions</p>		<p>Section 1. The Board, by resolution adopted by a majority of the Board, may designate one or more committees. Except for the Nominating Committee, each such committee shall consist of at least two (2) or more Board directors and may also consist of Owners, Voting Members or the spouses of the same; provided, however, that the majority of the members of each such committee shall be Board directors. Such committees, to the extent consistent with law and as provided in said resolution or as otherwise provided in this Article, shall have and exercise the authority of the Board in the management of the Association; but the designation of such committees</p>	<p>This is new language to align with the Not-for-Profit Act (805 ILCS 105/108.40) stating there must be at least two (20) board members serving on the committee and the majority of the committee members must be board members. This type of committee acts on behalf of the Association.</p>

		<p>and the delegation thereof of authority shall not operate to relieve the Board, or any individual member of the Board, or any responsibility imposed upon it or him or her by law. The members of each committee shall be appointed by the Board and serve solely at the direction of the Board. Any member thereof may be removed by the Board whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Association shall be served by such removal.</p> <p>Section 2. The Board, by resolution adopted by a majority of the Board, may designate one (1) or more commissions, which commissions may not act on behalf of the Association or bind the Association to any action, but may make recommendations to the Board. The members of the commission need not be Board directors but must be Owners, Voting Members or the spouses of same and shall be appointed by the Board. Any member thereof may be removed by the Board whenever in its judgment the best interest of the Association shall be served by such removal.</p> <p>Section 3. Each member of an annual committee or commission shall continue as such until the next meeting</p>	<p>According to the Not-For-Profit Act, commissions does not have the authority to act on behalf of the Association but rather are advisory in nature only. Commissions can make recommendations to the board of directors with the board of directors then making the decisions on behalf of the Association.</p> <p>This language again is in alignment with the Not-For-Profit Act.</p>
--	--	---	--

		<p>of the Board and until his or her successor is appointed and shall have qualified, unless the committee or commission shall be sooner determined, or unless such member shall cease to qualify as a member thereof.</p> <p>Section 4. One (1) member of each committee and commission shall be chosen as chairperson annually by the committee/commission members.</p> <p>Section 5. Vacancies in the membership of any committee or commission may be filled by appointment made in the same manner as provided in the original appointments.</p> <p>Section 6. Unless otherwise provided in this Article or in the resolution of the Board designating a committee or commission, a majority of the whole committee or commission shall constitute a quorum and the act of a majority of the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the committee or commission.</p> <p>Section 7. Each committee or commission may adopt rules for its</p>	
--	--	---	--

	<p>Section 1. The Standing Committees of the Association shall be:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Executive Committee Nominating Committee Recreation Committee Maintenance Committee Architectural and Environmental Control Committee Budget/Audit Committee Conservation Committee Legal Committee Rules and Regulations Committee Tellers Committee Editorial Review Committee <p>Unless otherwise provided herein, the members of each committee shall be appointed by the Board, and, except in the case of the Executive Committee, may be removed by the Board at any time, and shall consist of a chair, a vice-chair and a secretary, who shall be elected by the members of the committee and two or more additional</p>	<p>own governance not inconsistent with the restate Declaration, these Bylaws or with the rules and regulations adopted by the Board.</p> <p>Section 8. The Standing Committees/Commissions of the Association shall be:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Executive Committee Nominating Committee Recreation Committee Architectural and Environmental Control Committee Budget/ Audit Commission Conservation Commission Legal Commission Rules and Regulations Commission Tellers Commission Editorial Review Commission Strategic/Long Range Planning Commission Appeals Board Commission <p>Unless otherwise provided herein, the members of each committee/commission shall be appointed by the Board, and, may be removed by the Board at any time, and shall consist of a chair, a vice-chair and a secretary, who shall be elected by the members of the committee/commission and two or</p>	<p>The changes in language is differentiating Commission and Committees.</p> <p>Note from the Attorney states that Committees and commissions would be established or dissolved at, and the members of each would be appointed at Board meetings, not meetings of the Voting Members.</p> <p>Strategic/Long Range Planning Commission was added to the list and Maintenance Commission was removed after a Board vote.</p> <p>Committee/commission was added to the language.</p>
--	--	---	---

	<p>members. The Board may appoint a Board member as a full member to any committee, who shall be liaison to the Board.</p> <p>Section 3. The Nominating Committee shall consist of seven (7) Members appointed by the President with the approval of the majority of the Board at the Board meeting preceding the regular annual meeting. Said Nominating Committee shall serve for the year following the next annual meeting. The President shall make an earnest attempt to appoint to the Nominating Committee Members who are representative of all of the subdivisions of the Association, with at least one of them being a current Board member.</p> <p>This Committee shall serve from the close of such annual meeting until the close of the next annual meeting. The appointment of the members of the following year's Nominating Committee shall be announced by the outgoing President at each annual meeting. Within thirty (30) days after the annual meeting, the immediate past chair of the</p>	<p>more additional members. The Board may appoint a Board member as a full member to any committee/commission, who shall be liaison to the Board.</p> <p>Section 10. The Nominating Committee shall consist of seven (7) Owners or Voting Members appointed by the Board at the Board meeting preceding the regular annual meeting. Said Nominating Committee shall serve for the year following the next annual meeting. The Board shall make an earnest attempt to appoint to the Nominating Committee Owners or Voting Members who are representative all of the subdivisions of the Association, with at least one of them being a current Board member.</p> <p>The Nominating Committee shall serve from the close of such annual meeting until the close of the next annual meeting. The appointment of the members of the following year's Nominating Committee shall be announced by the outgoing President at each annual meeting. Within thirty (30) days after the annual meeting, the immediate past chair of the Nominating Committee shall call a meeting at</p>	<p>Language were made from Owners and Voting Members.</p>
--	---	--	---

	<p>Nominating Committee shall call a meeting at which the Nominating Committee shall elect its chair, vice-chair and secretary and conduct such other business as may be appropriate to prepare for the nominations to be made that year, including but not limited to, the adoption of Nominating Committee Guidelines, which shall be submitted to the Board for approval.</p> <p>The Nominating Committee shall recruit candidates who meet the eligibility requirements in Article VI, Section 1, (referred to herein as Eligible Members) and shall make as many nominations for election to the Board as it has received applications from Eligible Members and for all Eligible Members submitted on Voting Members Tickets, but not less than two (2) more than the number of vacancies that are to be filled at the next annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall interview all of the candidates, and inform all of the Members regarding each candidate's positions on matters regarding the Association's affairs, and cause the candidates' answers to questions related to these matters to be published in <i>The Apple Core</i>, to be posted on the Association's website, and to be included with the Written Ballots and other voting materials sent to all Voting Members.</p>	<p>which the Nominating Committee shall elect its chair, vice-chair and secretary and conduct such other business as may be appropriate to prepare for the nominations to be made that year, including but not limited to, the adoption of Nominating Committee Guidelines, which shall be submitted to the Board for approval.</p> <p>The Nominating Committee shall recruit candidates who meet the eligibility requirements in Article V, Section 1, (referred to herein as Eligible Members) and shall make as many nominations for election to the Board as it has received applications from Eligible Members and for all Eligible Members submitted on Voting Members Tickets. The Nominating Committee shall interview all of the candidates, and inform all of the Voting Members regarding each candidate's positions on matters regarding the Association's affairs, and cause the candidates' answers to questions related to these matters to be published in <i>The Apple Core</i>, to be posted on the Association's website, and to be included with the Written Ballots and other voting materials sent to all Voting Members.</p> <p>The names of all candidates shall be</p>	<p>The Attorney notes Section 10 only requires the committee to make as many nominations as it has received applications for. So, if fewer than 5 owners have submitted an application, then the committee would only be obligated to make as many nominations for applications that it has and would not be required to make 5 nominations if fewer than 5 owners submitted applications.</p> <p>Interpretation of Section 10 has been confusing for past practices.</p>
--	--	---	---

	<p>Ballots and other voting materials sent to all Voting Members.</p> <p>The names of all candidates shall be placed on a Written Ballot as provided in Article VII, which shall be prepared in advance of the time fixed in Article VII, Section 3 for the mailing of such Written Ballots to the Voting Members. The listing of names on the Written Ballot shall be determined by a lottery conducted by the Nominating Committee.</p> <p>Section 4. The Recreation Committee shall advise the Board on all matters pertaining to the recreational program and activities of the Association and shall perform such other functions as the Board, in its discretion, determines.</p> <p>Section 5. The Maintenance Committee shall advise the Board on all matters pertaining to the maintenance, repair or improvement of the Common Properties and Facilities of the Association, and shall perform such other functions as the Board, in its discretion, determines. At least one member of the Board shall serve as a member of this committee.</p>	<p>placed on a Written Ballot which shall be prepared in advance of the time fixed in Article VI, Section 3 for the mailing of such Written Ballots to the Voting Members. The listing of names on the Written Ballot shall be determined by a lottery conducted by the Nominating Committee.</p> <p>Section 12. The Recreation Commission shall advise the Board on all matters pertaining to the recreation program and activities of the Association and shall perform such other functions as the Board, in its discretion, determines.</p>	<p>Article VI, Section 3 is only change.</p> <p>Change from Recreation Committee to Recreation Commission. This is now Section 12, behind AECC which is a committee</p> <p>The Maintenance Committee was dissolved by the Board of Directors.</p>
--	--	---	---

	<p>Section 6. The Architectural and Environmental Control Committee (AECC) shall be comprised of not less than three (3) representatives. The Board shall appoint at least one (1) architect, licensed engineer or building contractor to the AECC, if one is available, and at least two (2) Board Members to the committee. The majority of the members of the AECC shall be Board Members of the Association. Any vacancies existing from time to time shall be filled by appointments made by the Board. The AECC, subject to the Board's approval, may engage such inspectors or agents to assist it in the performance of its duties and responsibilities. No member of the AECC shall participate in the review of any application in which the member has any interest either as an owner or as the provider of any services for which the member is compensated.</p> <p>The AECC shall have the duties and functions described in Article VII of the Restated Covenants, and shall perform such other functions as the Board, in its discretion, determines. It shall watch for any proposals, programs or activities which may adversely affect the residential value of The Properties or</p>	<p>Section 11: The Architectural and Environmental Control Committee (AECC) shall be comprised of not less than three (3) representatives. The Board shall appoint at least one (1) architect, licensed engineer or building contractor to the AECC, if one is available, and at least two (2) Board Members to the committee. In the event the Board is unable to appoint an architect, licensed engineer or building contractor to the AECC, the Association may retain one or more of the same from time to time to consult and advise the AECC in the performance of its duties. The majority of the members of the AECC shall be Board Members of the Association. Any vacancies existing from time to time shall be filled by appointments made by the Board. The AECC, subject to the Board's approval, may engage such inspectors or agents to assist it in the performance of its duties and responsibilities. No member of the AECC shall participate in the review of any application in which the member has any interest either as an owner or as the provider of any services for which the member is compensated.</p> <p>The AECC shall have the duties and</p>	<p>Language was added that if the Board is unable to appoint an architect, licensed engineer or building contractor to the AECC, the Association may retain one or more of the same from time to time to consult and advise.</p> <p>Changed to Section 11 above Recreation Commission since AECC is a committee</p>
--	--	--	---

	<p>the Common Properties and Facilities and shall advise the Board regarding action the Association should take on such matters.</p> <p>Section 7. The Budget/Audit Committee shall be chaired by the Treasurer and consist of a member of the Board plus two or more additional members. It shall be the duty of this committee to prepare an annual budget for the fiscal year beginning the first day of January for approval by the Board as provided in Article VIII. The Treasurer shall submit a report on the budget and on the financial condition of the Association to the membership at the Annual Meeting of Members. It shall be the responsibility of this committee to cause an annual audit of the Association books by a certified public accountant, and to make such audit available to the d</p>	<p>functions described in Article VII of the Restated Covenants, and shall perform such other functions as the Board, in its discretion, determines. It shall watch for any proposals, programs or activities which may adversely affect the residential value of The Properties or the Common Properties and Facilities and shall advise the Board regarding action the Association should take on such matters.</p> <p>Section 13. The Budget/Audit Commission shall be chaired by the Board Treasurer and consist of two or more additional members. It shall be the duty of this commission to prepare an annual budget for the fiscal year beginning the first day of January for approval by the Board as provided in Article VII.</p> <p>Section 19. The Strategic/Long Range Planning Commission shall formulate, monitor and make recommendations to the Board for additions and deletions to the Strategic/Long Range Plan.</p> <p>Section 20. The Appeals Board Commission shall listen to appeals filed pursuant to the appeals process provisions set forth in the rules and regulations and make</p>	<p>Language was removed about the Treasurer submitting an annual report on the budget and on the financial condition of the Association because it is stated in Section VII. Article 11.</p> <p>This is new language for a Standing Commission. The language is the</p>
--	---	--	---

	<p>Section 13. With the exception of the Nominating Committee and the Architectural and Environmental Control Committee, each committee shall have power to appoint a subcommittee from among its membership or the membership of the Association and may delegate to any such subcommittee any of its powers, duties and functions subject to the approval of the Board.</p> <p>Section 14. It shall be the duty of each committee to have contact with Members of the Association on any matters involving functions, duties, and activities within its field of responsibility, and to submit a report to the membership at the Annual Meeting.</p>	<p>recommendations to the Board on each citation at issue following the appeal hearing. In listening to each appeal, the Appeals Board Commission shall listen to each appeal with an open mind and treat each party fairly and with the utmost respect in an effort to provide consistency in the application and enforcement of the Rules and Regulations.</p> <p>Section 21. With the Exception of the Nominating Committee and the Architectural and Environmental Control Committee, each committee/commission shall have power to appoint a subcommittee/subcommission from among its membership or the Owners or Voting Members of the Association and may delegate to any such subcommittee/subcommission any of its powers, duties and functions subject to the approval of the Board.</p> <p>Section 22. It shall be the duty of each committee/commission to have contact with Owners and Voting Members of the Association on any matters involving functions, duties, and activities within its field of responsibility, and to submit a resort to the Voting Membership at the Annual</p>	<p>Board approved charge of the commission.</p> <p>This is new language for The Appeals Board Commission added to the Amended Bylaws.</p> <p>The new language is adding Committee/commission and subcommittee/subcommission.</p> <p>Adding commission to the language.</p>
--	--	---	--

<p>Article XIV Meetings of Voting Members</p>	<p>Section 2. <i>Special Meetings.</i> Special Meetings of the Members for any purpose may be called at any time by the President, or by any three (3) or more members of the Board, or upon written request of the votes of one hundred twenty-five (125) Voting Members, or as otherwise provided in the Bylaws or applicable law.</p> <p>a. <i>Special Meeting Concerning Budget Matters.</i> In the event that a Special Meeting of the Voting Members is called pursuant to Article VIII, Section 1(h) concerning the annual budget approved by the Board, notice of said meeting shall be sent to the Voting Members not less than fourteen (14) days in advance of said special meeting, and said special meeting shall be called within thirty (30) days of the date of delivery of the petition pursuant to Section 3.</p> <p>Section 3. <i>Notice of Meeting.</i> Notice of any Special meeting of the Members called pursuant to Section</p>	<p>Meeting.</p> <p>Section 2. <i>Special Meetings.</i> Special Meetings of the Voting Members for any purpose may be called at any time by the President, or by any three (3) or more members of the Board, or upon written request of the Voting Members having at least twenty percent (20%) of the total votes in the Association.</p> <p>Section 3. <i>Notice of Meeting.</i> Notice of any meeting of the Voting Members shall be given not less than ten (10)</p>	<p>Section 1-40 (b)(1) of the CICAA provides that the maximum permitted quorum requirement for meetings of the members is twenty percent (20%). A quorum requirement of one hundred and twenty-five (125) voting members is below the (20%) required.</p>
---	---	---	---

	<p>2 or Section 2a of this Article, or any other provision of the Bylaws shall be given not less than fourteen (14) days nor more than thirty (30) days prior to the meeting, unless otherwise provided in the Bylaws. Notice to Voting Members shall be sent (i) by United States Mail, postage prepaid, sent to recipient's address on file with the Association, or (ii) by hand delivery, or (iii) by any commonly used electronic media, including but not limited to, email or facsimile, pursuant to electronic communication policies adopted from time to time by the Board, provided that the recipient has provided the Association with his or her fax number or email address for receipt of such electronic communication, and the Member has given his/her written authorization to conduct business via this method. Notice to all other Owners shall be provided by publication in <i>The Apple Core</i> and on the Association's website and by posting notice at the clubhouse, or as otherwise authorized under applicable law. Notice shall set forth the nature of the business to be transacted of any meeting shall involve any matter to which another provision of these Bylaws, the Articles of</p>	<p>days nor more than thirty (30) days prior to the meeting, unless otherwise provided in the Bylaws. Notice to Voting Members shall be sent (i) by United States Mail, postage prepaid, sent to recipient's address on file with the Association, or (ii) by hand delivery, or (iii) by any commonly used electronic media, including but not limited to, email or facsimile, pursuant to electronic communication policies adopted from time to time by the Board, provided that the recipient has provided the Association with his or her fax number or email address or other address for receipt of such electronic communication, and the Voting Member has given his/her written authorization to conduct business via this method. Notice to all other Owners shall be provided by publication in <i>The Apple Core</i> and on the Association's website and by posting notice at the clubhouse, or as otherwise authorized under applicable law. Notice shall set forth the nature of the business to be transacted provided, however, that if the business of any meeting shall involve any matter to which another provision of these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Restated Declaration shall otherwise govern notice to the Voting</p>	<p>The new language repeats notice to Voting Members and Owner.</p>
--	--	--	---

	<p>Incorporation, or the Restated Covenants shall otherwise govern notice to the Members, then notice of such meeting shall be given or sent as therein provided.</p> <p>Section 6. <i>Quorum</i>. The presence at the meeting of one hundred twenty-five (125) of the votes of the Voting Members in person or by Written Ballot shall constitute a quorum for any action by the Voting Members, provided, however, if the business of any meeting shall involve any matter with respect to which another provision of the Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Restated Covenants shall otherwise govern a quorum, then the quorum of such meeting shall be as therein provided</p>	<p>Members, then notice of such meeting shall be given or sent as therein provided.</p> <p>Section 6. <i>Quorum</i>. The presence, in person or by Written Ballot, at a meeting of the Voting Members having at least twenty percent (20%) of the total votes in the Association shall constitute a quorum for any action by the Voting Members, provided, however, if the business of any meeting shall involve any after with respect to which another provision of the Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Restated Declaration shall otherwise govern a quorum, then the quorum of such meeting shall be as therein provided.</p>	<p>Section 1-40 (b)(1) of the CICA provides that the maximum permitted quorum requirement for meetings of the members is twenty percent (20%). A quorum requirement of one hundred and twenty-five (125) voting members is below the (20%) required.</p>
<p>Article XV Written Ballots</p>	<p>Section 1. <i>Written Ballot Defined</i>. All matters requiring a vote of the Voting Members, as defined in Article I, Section 1(x) of the Restated Covenants, shall be by Written Ballot which is defined in Article I, Section 1(ee) of the</p>	<p>Article XV was removed from the Proposed Restated Bylaws</p>	<p>Section 1. Written Ballots was deleted because it is covered in Article VI. Section 1 and Article XIII. Section 6.</p>

Restated Covenants as follows:

ee. Written Ballot shall mean a written document which clearly indicates the vote of a Voting Member being cast on any issue on which a vote of the Voting Members of the Association is taken. A Written Ballot may be cast by a Voting Member either in person at the meeting called for such vote or by mail or by any other means of delivery, provided that such Written Ballot must be delivered to the offices of the Association prior to the commencement of the meeting called for such vote.

Section 2. *Casting a Written Ballot Constitutes Attendance at Meeting.*

At all regular and special meetings the Voting Member who casts a Written Ballot(s) shall be deemed to be present at the meeting and shall be counted as present for purposes of determining a quorum and for all other purposes permitted under these Bylaws.

<p>Article XVI Books and Records</p>	<p>Section 1. The Board shall keep and maintain the following records, or true and complete copies of these records, at the Association's principal office:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> 1. the Association's Governing Documents and plat of survey, and all amendments thereto; 2. the minutes of all meetings of the Association and the Board of Directors for the immediately preceding seven (7) years; 3. all current policies of insurance of the Association; 4. all contracts, leases, and other agreements to which the Association is a party or under which the Association or the unit owners have obligations or liabilities; 5. a current listing of the names and addresses of all Voting Members entitled to vote, and of all other Members; 6. Written Ballots for all matters voted on by the members of the Association during the 	<p>Article XVI was removed from the Proposed Restated Bylaws</p>	<p>This language can be found in Article VII, Powers and Duties of the Board of Directors.</p>
---	---	---	--

	<p>immediately preceding twelve (12) months, including but not limited to, the election of members of the Board; and</p> <p>7. the books and records of account for the Association's current and ten (10) immediately preceding fiscal years, including but not limited to, itemized and detailed records of all receipts and expenditures, and such other records of the Board as are available for inspection by members of a not-for-profit corporation pursuant to Section 107.75 of the General Not-For-Profit Corporation Act of 1986..</p> <p>Section 2. Any Member shall have the right to inspect, examine, and make copies of the records described in subdivisions (a), (b), and (c), of Section 1 of this Article XVI, in person or by agent, at any reasonable time or times, at the Association's principal office. In order to exercise this right, a member must submit a written request to the Board or its authorized agent, stating with particularity the records sought to</p>		
--	---	--	--

be examined.

Section 3. Except as otherwise provided in Section 5 of this Article, any Member of the Association shall have the right to inspect, examine, and make copies of the records described in subdivisions (d), (e), (f), and (g), of Section 1 of this Article XVI, in person or by agent, at any reasonable time or times at the Association's principal office. In order to exercise this right, a member must submit a written request to the Board or its authorized agent, stating with particularity the records sought to be examined. and a proper purpose for the request.

Section 4. The actual cost to the Association of retrieving and making requested records available for inspection and examination under this Article XVI shall be charged by the Association to the requesting Member. If a Member requests copies of records requested under this Article XVI, the actual costs to the Association of reproducing the records shall also be charged by the Association to the

	<p>requesting Member.</p> <p>Section 5. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 3 of this Article XVI, unless otherwise directed by court order, an Association need not make the following records available for inspection, examination, or copying by its members:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> (a) documents relating to appointment, employment, discipline, or dismissal of Association employees; (b) documents relating to actions pending against or on behalf of the Association or its Board in a court or administrative tribunal; (c) documents relating to actions threatened against, or likely to be asserted on behalf of, the Association or its Board in a court or administrative tribunal; (d) documents relating to common expenses or other charges owed by a Member other than the requesting 		
--	---	--	--

	<p>Member; and (e) documents provided to an Association in connection with the lease, sale, or other transfer of a unit by a Member other than the requesting member</p>		
<p>Article XVII Amendments</p>	<p>Section 1. These Bylaws may be amended at any regular or Special Meeting of the Members by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the votes cast by the Voting Members voting at such meeting, provided, however, that those provisions of the Bylaws which are governed by the Restated Covenants applicable to The Properties may not be amended except as provided in such Restated Covenants.</p> <p>Following the adoption of a modification or amendment, an instrument duly executed by the president, or such other officer authorized by the Board setting forth said modification or amendment shall be duly recorded, and the amendment or modification shall be effective as of the date of said recording.</p>	<p>Section 1. These Bylaws may be amended at any regular or Special Meeting of the Voting Members by at least two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast by the Voting Members voting at such meeting, provided, however, that the provisions of these Bylaws may not be amended to conflict with any provisions of the Restated Declaration or law.</p> <p>Following the adoption of a modification or amendment, an instrument duly executed by the President, or such other officer authorized by the Board setting forth said modification or amendment shall be duly recorded, and the amendment or modification shall be effective as the date of said recording.</p> <p>Section 2. Notice of the proposed</p>	<p>This is language from the Association Attorney on Amendments and changing the notification date of the Voting Members.</p>

	<p>Section 2. Notice of the proposed amendment(s) shall be mailed to all Voting members not less than fourteen (14) days nor more than forty (40) days in advance of the meeting at which such amendment(s) is to be voted upon.</p>	<p>amendment(s) shall be mailed to all Voting Members not less than ten (10) days nor more than thirty (30) days in advance of the meeting at which such amendment(s) is to be voted upon.</p>	
<p>Article XX Effective Date</p>	<p>These Bylaws shall become effective November 6, 2011, having been adopted by two-thirds (2/3) of the Members voting at a duly called Special Meeting of the Members on September 24, 2011 and recorded with the Jo Daviess County Recorder of Deeds.</p>	<p>Article XX has been removed from the Proposed Restated Bylaws.</p>	



Memorandum

To: Board of Directors

Date: October 5, 2020

From: Budget Commission

Memo: 2020-73

Topic: adoption of the 2021 Operating Budget

Issue: Per CICAA, the budget must be advertised for a minimum of 30 days prior to the Board adopting the budget. The 2021 Operating Budget was published in the September issue of *The Apple Core* as required by CICAA. The Board is now able to adopt the Operating Budget.

Recommendation: To adopt the 2021 Operating Budget as published in the September issue of *The Apple Core*.

Plan on a Page: High Performing Operations and Management -To operate at full efficiency and effectiveness for the benefit of the Association.



Memorandum

To: Board of Directors

Date: October 5, 2020

From: Budget Commission

Memo: 2020-72

Topic: adoption of the 2021 R & R Budget

Issue: Per CICA, the budget must be advertised for a minimum of 30 days prior to the Board adopting the budget. The 2021 R & R Budget was published in the September issue of *The Apple Core* as required by CICA. The Board is now able to adopt the R & R Budget.

Recommendation: To adopt the 2021 R & R Budget as published in the September issue of *The Apple Core*.

Plan on a Page: High Performing Operations and Management -To operate at full efficiency and effectiveness for the benefit of the Association.

2021 R R Budget
approved for publication 8-15-20

Lake	Streambank Stabilization Dry Dams Erosion Control Installation of Poles on Docks Rip Rap Lumber for Dock Repair	\$ 225,000
Cove		
Golf Course	Cart Path - phase 2 New Ladies Tee box hole #2 Greens Mower	\$ 100,000
Pro Shop	Indoor furnishings Walk-in Cooler	\$ 23,000
Pool	Filter Sand	\$ 15,000
Security	Security Cameras Phase 3	\$ 20,000
Maintenance	Zero Turn Rotary Cutter Firehouse - siding and roof	\$ 71,000
Vehicles	Security Squad Truck with Lift Gate	\$ 81,000
Property		\$ 535,000



Memorandum

To: Board of Directors

Date: October 5, 2020

From: Budget Commission

Memo: 2020-74

Topic: adoption of the 2021 Operating and Building Fee Schedules

Issue: Per CICAA, the budget must be advertised for a minimum of 30 days prior to the Board adopting the budget. The 2021 Operating and Building Fee Schedule were published in the September issue of *The Apple Core* as required by CICAA. The Board is now able to adopt both the Operating and Building Fee Schedule.

Recommendation: To adopt the 2021 Operating and Building Fee Schedules as published in the September issue of *The Apple Core*.

Plan on a Page: High Performing Operations and Management -To operate at full efficiency and effectiveness for the benefit of the Association.

2021 Operating Fee Schedule - approved for publication 8-15-20

ANNUAL FEE		DAILY RATE	
Annual Assessment (Due March 1)	\$ 1,100.00	Golf	Mon-Fri
Annual Trash Fee* (Due March 1)	\$ 120	Property Owner	Wknd/Hol
*required for all ACL homes, fee includes two passes (paper or decal)		Holes (9)	9
		Holes (18)	12
		Non Property Owner	
		Holes (9)	12
		Holes (18)	17
		Cart Rental	
		Holes (9)	7
		Holes (18)	13
		Call ACL Pro Shop for tee times (815) 492-2477	
Seasonal Amenity Licenses (Due March 1)		Campground	
Marina Boat Slip (\$200) & Boat Registration (\$5)	\$ 205	RV Site (power and water)	Mon - Thurs
Nixon Boat Slip (\$200) & Boat Registration (\$5)	\$ 205	Property Owner	Wknd/Hol
Zone Boat Slip (\$200) & Boat Registration (\$5)	\$ 205	Guest	
		Tent Site (primitive)	
		Property Owner	\$ 9
		Guest	\$ 19
		Extended Camping Fees Primitive/Full Hook Up per week	
		PO 60	PO \$ 85
		Guest 125	Guest \$ 170
		Washer/Dryer	\$ 1.25 (per load)
		Call ACL Office for reservations (815) 492-2238	
Registration Fees		Marina Boat Slip Rentals	
Owner Amenity Registration Fee (per owner)	\$ 100	Daily	\$25
Golf Cart Registration	\$ 5	Weekly	\$105
Motorized 1st Boat	\$ 5	Monthly	\$200
Motorized 2nd Boat	\$ 5	Call ACL Office for reservations (815) 492-2238	
Non-Motorized Boat	\$ 5	Boat Rentals	
Snowmobile	\$ 5	Mon-Thurs	
ATV/UTV	\$ 30	Property Owner	Mon-Thurs
		Guest	Guest
		Pontoon 1/2 Day	100
		Pontoon Per Day	175
		Wknd/Hol	
		Property Owner & Guest	
		Pontoon 1/2 Day	\$230
		Pontoon Per Day	\$325
		Call ACL Office for reservations (815) 492-2238	
Annual Golf Season Passes		Clubhouse Rental	
Property Owner (Individual)	\$ 200	Business Meetings	
Junior (Age 10-16)	\$ 25	Mon - Thurs	Number
Non Property Owner (Individual)	\$ 350		PO Fee
Corporate	\$ 2,000	1-100	\$ 100
		101-250	\$ 200
		Parties/Open Houses	
		Sun-Thurs	
		1-75	\$ 100
		76-150	\$ 200
		151-250	\$ 400
		Fri-Sat	
		27395	\$ 125
		76-150	\$ 275
		151-250	\$ 450
		Weddings/Receptions	
		Fri-Sat	
		1-250	\$ 450
		ACL Club Fee: Non-ACL events, etc.	\$ 25
		ACL Employee (restrictions apply)	\$ 25
		Deposit of equal amount required. For guests, add \$100 to above rate.	
		For reservations call (815) 492-2769	
Classes			
Swimming Lessons (per person, two sessions)	\$ 35		
Swimming Lessons (per person, one session)	\$ 18		
Private Swimming Lesson (per person, per lesson)	\$ 25		
Miscellaneous			
Auto Decals (5 free per OARF paid)	Each \$ 5		
Amenity Tag (10 free per OARF paid)	\$ -		
One Additional One (1) Day Amenity Tag	\$ 3		
One Additional Three (3) Day Amenity Tag	\$ 5		
One Additional Annual Amenity Tag	\$ 15		
Additional Trash Pass (limit 1 additional per trash fee)	\$ 10		
Replacement Trash Pass	\$ 30		
Directory	\$ 5		
Electronic Item Disposal	\$ 30		
Large Item Disposal	\$ 15		
Mattress Disposal	\$ 30		
Map	\$ 5		
Delinquent Dues Fee (Assessed March, April, May)	\$ 125		
Payment Plan Processing Fee	\$ 35		
Payment Plan Late Sign Up Fee	\$ 25		
Lot Mowing	\$ 80		
Pool Party	\$ 125		
	Monday - Thursday		
	Friday - Sunday		
\$ 150			
Programs			
Heat Light Program Call SSD Office (815) 492-2436			
Sub-License Boat Slip Program Call ACL Office (815) 492-2238			

ALL MANDATORY FEES MUST BE PAID ON ALL LOTS OWNED PRIOR TO ANY REGISTRATIONS OR DISTRIBUTION OF PASSES, AMENITY TAGS, OR STICKERS, UNLESS PROPERTY OWNER IS ON THE ACLPOA PAYMENT PLAN.

ACLPOA 2021 Construction Fee Schedule - approved for publication 8-15-20

New Dwelling: Permit Fee/Inspection (Good for one (1) year)	\$1,000
Environmental Impact Fee (Non-Refundable): New dwelling only	\$1,000
Environmental/Debris Bond (Refundable)	\$500
Additions to Existing Dwelling: Permit fee	\$0.20/square foot
All Accessory Structures	\$0.20/square foot
General Permits: Per item	\$10
Driveways	
Shoreline Construction	
Demolitions	
Landscaping: Any earthwork or lot grading whether performed as a single project or as a series projects on an existing developed lot	
Roofing	
Boat Docks	
Small Misc Permits/Projects	
GIS: Full Site	\$325

Building code regulations may be obtained from the Building & Environmental Code Book
or on the website www.applecanyonlake.org



Memorandum

To: Board of Directors

Date: October 8, 2020

From: Tim Brokl

Memo: 2020-76

Topic: 2021 Calendar

Issue: The Communications & Recreation Department will produce a 2021 glossy calendar to include the tentative dates of most ACL events and special holiday office closings, as well as regularly scheduled Board and some committee/commission meetings. It is essential that the Board takes note of the proposed ACL calendar of events, meetings and official Association closings. Office hours and Solid/Waste Recycling hours will be printed on each month's page but are not included on each date in the interest of space. Approval is appreciated so that staff may submit the final information to the printer in November. The 2021 calendar and Chronicle (Community Book) will be mailed to each owner in December. Please know that some dates may change throughout the year as needed, some events may be added, and some may be cancelled.

Recommendation: To review and accept the 2021 calendar of events for publishing.

Plan on a Page: Growth and Value Enhancement of Association – To promote membership and property of the Association.

January 1 New Year's Day

January 1 Recycling Closed

January 1 Association Office Closed

January 2 AECC 8am

January 9 Appeals 8:30am – if needed

January 16 Board Meeting 9am

January 16 Sledding Party 1-3pm

January 16 Family Potluck & Movie Night 5-8:30pm

January 18 Board Candidate Applications Due

January 25 Single Installment ACH Sign-up Deadline

January 31 Payment Plan Sign-up Deadline

February 1 Single Installment ACH Payments Withdrawn

February 6 AECC 8am

February 6 Midwinter Gathering 1-7pm

February 13 Appeals 8:30am – if needed

February 14 Valentine's Day

February 15 President's Day

February 17 Ash Wednesday

February 20 Board Meeting 9am

February 20 Pinewood Derby 12:30pm

February 21 Special Office Hours 8am-3pm

February 25 Purim Begins

February 25 Payment Plan Late Sign-up Deadline

February 26 Purim Ends

February 28 Special Office Hours 8am-3pm

March 1 Assessments & Fees Due

March 1 Boat Slip and Campsite Licenses Due

March 1 First Payment Plan Installment Withdrawn

March 2 \$125 Delinquent Dues Fee Assessed on Unpaid Assessments

March 6 AECC 8am

March 13 Appeals 8:30am – if needed

March 14 Daylight Savings Time Begins – Spring Ahead!

March 17 St. Patrick's Day

March 15 Unpaid/Incomplete Seasonal Boat Slips & Campsites Forfeit

March 20 Board Meeting 9am

March 27 Passover Begins

March 27 Campsite Swap & Assignment Day @ 10am

March 27 Slip Swap @ 1pm

March 28 Easter Egg Hunt 10:30am

April 1 \$125 Delinquent Dues Fee Assessed on Unpaid Assessments

April 1 Interest Assessed on Unpaid Assessments

April 2 Good Friday

April 2 Campground & Golf Course Open, Weather Permitting

April 3 Passover Ends

April 3 AECC 8am – if needed

April 10 Appeals 8:30am – if needed

April 10 Slip Assignment Day & Sub-License Slip Assignments @ 10am

April 17 Marina Opens

April 17 Board Meeting 9am
April 17 Meet the Candidates 12:30pm
April 21 Garden Club Spring Luncheon 11am
April 22 Earth Day
April 24 Spring Clean-up 1pm
April 25 Buddy Bass 7am-3pm
May 1 AECC 8am
May 1 \$125 Delinquent Dues Fee Assessed on Unpaid Assessments
May 1 Liens Filed on Unpaid Assessments
May 7 Summer Office Hours Begin: Monday-Thursday 8am-3pm, Friday 8am-5pm, Saturday 8am-3pm, Sunday 8am-12pm
May 8 Appeals 8:30am – if needed
May 9 Mother's Day
May 15 Board Meeting 9am
May 15 Second Payment Plan Installment Withdrawn
MAY 16 Buddy Bass 6:30am-2:30pm
May 22 BBQ Cook-off TBA
May 30 Pancake Breakfast & Plant Sale 8am-12pm
May 31 Memorial Day
May 31 Holiday Office Hours 8am-12pm
May 31 Recycling 10am-7pm
June 5 AECC 8am
June 11 Mailed Ballots for BOD Election Due
June 12 Appeals 8:30am – if needed
June 12 Annual Meeting, Ballots Cast by 1pm
June 15 Payment Plan Installment Withdrawn (5-Payment)
June 19 Board Meeting 9am
June 20 Father's Day
June 26 Farm Fun Days 10am-1pm
June 27 Buddy Bass 6am-2pm
July 3 AECC 8am
July 3 Golf Cart Parade 10:30am Check-in
July 3 Rumble & Roll Ball Race 11am
July 3 Fireworks at Dusk
July 4 Independence Day
July 4 Recycling 10am-7pm
July 5 Holiday Office Hours 8am-12pm
July 7 Canyon Kids Camp 1-3pm
July 8 Canyon Kids Camp 1-3pm
July 9 Canyon Kids Camp 1-3pm
July 10 Appeals 8:30am – if needed
July 10 Open-Air Concert 7-10:30pm
July 11 Kids Fishing Tournament TBD
July 15 Payment Plan Installment Withdrawn
July 15 World's Largest Swim Lesson TBA
July 17 Board Meeting 9am
July 17 Big Cup Tournament TBA
July 18 Buddy Bass 6am-2pm

July 24 TT5k for a Cause 7:30am
July 24 Beer Tasting 12-3pm
July 24 Sizzling Summer Concert 7pm
July 31 Deer Management Program Application Deadline
August 7 AECC 8am
August 7 Youth Archery Day 9am-12pm
August 7 Deer Archery Qualifications 9am-12pm
August 7 Deer Archery Orientation 1pm
August 7 Venetian Night 8:30pm
August 7 Night Golf TBA
August 14 Appeals 8:30am – if needed
August 14 Club Championship TBA
August 15 Payment Plan Installment Withdrawn (5-Payment)
August 15 Deer Archery Qualifications 9-11am
August 15 Deer Archery Orientation 1pm
August 21 Board Meeting 9am
August 22 Buddy Bass 6:30am-2:30pm
August 28 Deer Archery Qualifications 9am-12pm
August 28 Deer Archery Orientation 1pm
August 28 Deer Archery Zone Selection (following Orientation) 1:30pm
September 4 AECC 8am
September 5 Ice Cream Social & Craft Fair 10am-4pm
September 6 Labor Day
September 6 Rosh Hashanah Begins
September 6 Recycling 10am-7pm
September 6 Association Office Closed – Labor Day
September 7 Regular Office Hours Resume; Monday-Saturday 8am-3pm, Closed Sunday
September 8 Rosh Hashanah Ends
September 11 Patriots Day
September 11 Appeals 8:30am – if needed
September 11 Foundation Poker Run TBA
September 18 Board Meeting 9am
September 18 Volunteer Appreciation Dinner 6pm
September 19 Buddy Bass 7am-3pm
September 25 Buddy Classic 7:30am-3:30pm
September 25 Farm to Table Dinner 6pm
September 26 Buddy Classic 7:30am-3:30pm
October 2 AECC 8am
October 2 Relay for Life Fall Feast 5pm
October 9 Appeals 8:30am – if needed
October 11 Columbus Day
October 16 Board Meeting 9am
October 23 Halloween at the Campground 6pm
October 23 Haunted Trail 7-10pm
October 31 Halloween
October 31 Campground, Marina, Golf Course Close for the Season
November 2 Election Day
November 6 AECC 8am

November 6 Informational Gathering 1pm

November 7 Daylight Savings Time Ends – Fall Back!

November 11 Veterans Day

November 11 Association Office Closed

November 13 Appeals 8:30am – if needed

November 20 Board Meeting 9am

November 25 Thanksgiving

November 25 Recycling Closed

November 25 Association Office Closed

November 26 Association Office Closed

November 27 Association Office Closed

November 28 Advent Begins

November 28 Hanukkah Begins

December 1 Senior Exemption Application Deadline

December 4 AECC 8am

December 4 Cocoa & Cookies with Santa 5-6:30pm

December 4 Tree Lighting Ceremony 6:30pm

December 6 Hanukkah Ends

December 7 Jingle Bell Brunch 10am

December 11 Appeals 8:30am – if needed

December 18 Board Meeting 9am

December 24 Advent Ends

December 24 Christmas Eve

December 24 Association Office Closed

December 25 Christmas Day

December 25 Recycling Closed

December 25 Association Office Closed

December 27 Association Office Closed – Christmas Day Observed

December 31 New Year's Eve

December 31 Association Office Closed

January 1, 2022 New Year's Day

January 1, 2022 Association Office Closed

January 2021

January 2021						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
					1	2
3	4	5	6	7	8	9
10	11	12	13	14	15	16
17	18	19	20	21	22	23
24	25	26	27	28	29	30
31						

February 2021						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
	1	2	3	4	5	6
7	8	9	10	11	12	13
14	15	16	17	18	19	20
21	22	23	24	25	26	27
28						

SUNDAY	MONDAY	TUESDAY	WEDNESDAY	THURSDAY	FRIDAY	SATURDAY
Dec 27	28	29	30	31	Jan 1, 21 New Year's Day Office Closed	2 8:00am AECC 9:00am Conservation Commission
3	4	5	6	7	8	9 8:00am Campground Commission 8:30am Appeals - If Needed
10	11	12	13	14	15	16 9:00am Board Meeting 1:00pm Sledding Party 5:00pm Potluck & Movie Night
17	18 BOD Candidate Application due 9:00am Recreation Commission	19	20	21	22	23
24	25 Single Installment ACH Sign-up Deadline	26	27	28	29	30 9:00am Trails Commission 9:00am Deer Management
31 Payment Plan Sign-up Deadline	Feb 1	2	3	4	5	6

February 2021

February 2021						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
	1	2	3	4	5	6
7	8	9	10	11	12	13
14	15	16	17	18	19	20
21	22	23	24	25	26	27
28						

March 2021						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
	1	2	3	4	5	6
7	8	9	10	11	12	13
14	15	16	17	18	19	20
21	22	23	24	25	26	27
28	29	30	31			

SUNDAY	MONDAY	TUESDAY	WEDNESDAY	THURSDAY	FRIDAY	SATURDAY
Jan 31	Feb 1 Single Installment ACH Payments Withdrawn	2	3	4	5 10:00am Rules & Regulations Commission	6 8:00am AECC 9:00am Conservation Commission 1:00pm Mid-Winter Gathering
7	8	9	10	11	12	13 8:00am Campground Commission 8:30am Appeals - If Needed
14 Valentine's Day	15 President's Day 9:00am Recreation Commission	16	17 Ash Wednesday	18	19	20 9:00am Board Meeting 12:30pm Pinewood Derby
21 8:00am Special Office Hours	22	23	24	25 Payment Plan Late Sign-up Deadline Purim Begins	26 Purim Ends	27 9:00am Trails Commission 9:00am Deer Management
28 8:00am Special Office Hours	Mar 1	2	3	4	5	6

March 2021

March 2021							April 2021						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa	Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
	1	2	3	4	5	6					1	2	3
7	8	9	10	11	12	13	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
14	15	16	17	18	19	20	11	12	13	14	15	16	17
21	22	23	24	25	26	27	18	19	20	21	22	23	24
28	29	30	31				25	26	27	28	29	30	

SUNDAY	MONDAY	TUESDAY	WEDNESDAY	THURSDAY	FRIDAY	SATURDAY
Feb 28	Mar 1 Assessments & Fees Due Boat Slip & Campsite Licenses Due	2 \$125 Delinquent Dues Fees Assessed on Unpaid Assessments	3	4	5 10:00am Rules & Regulations Commission	6 8:00am AECC 9:00am Conservation Commission
7	8	9	10	11	12	13 8:00am Campground Commission 8:30am Appeals - If Needed
14 Daylight Savings Time Begins - Spring Forward!	15 Unpaid/Incomplete Seasonal Boat Slips & Campsites Forfeited 9:00am Recreation Commission	16	17 St. Patrick's Day	18	19	20 9:00am Board Meeting
21	22	23	24	25	26	27 Passover Begins 9:00am Trails Commission 9:00am Deer Management 10:00am Campsite Swap & Assignment Day 1:00pm Slip Swap
28 10:30am Easter Egg Hunt	29	30	31	Apr 1	2	3

April 2021

April 2021							May 2021						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa	Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
				1	2	3							1
4	5	6	7	8	9	10	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
11	12	13	14	15	16	17	9	10	11	12	13	14	15
18	19	20	21	22	23	24	16	17	18	19	20	21	22
25	26	27	28	29	30		23	24	25	26	27	28	29
							30	31					

SUNDAY	MONDAY	TUESDAY	WEDNESDAY	THURSDAY	FRIDAY	SATURDAY
Mar 28	29	30	31	Apr 1 \$125 Delinquent Dues Fee Assessed on Unpaid Assessments Interest Assessed on Unpaid Assessments	2 Campground & Golf Course Open - Weather Permitting Good Friday 10:00am Rules & Regulations Commission	3 Passover Ends 8:00am AECC 9:00am Conservation Commission
4	5	6 1:30pm Golf Commission	7	8	9	10 8:00am Campground Commission 8:30am Appeals - If Needed 10:00am Slip Assignment Day & Sub-License Slip Assignments
11	12	13	14	15	16	17 Marina Opens 9:00am Board Meeting 12:30pm Meet the Candidates
18	19 9:00am Recreation Commission	20	21 11:00am Private Appointment	22 Earth Day	23	24 9:00am Trails Commission 9:00am Deer Management 1:00pm Spring Clean-up
25 7:00am Buddy Bass	26	27	28	29	30	May 1

May 2021

May 2021							June 2021						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa	Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
						1			1	2	3	4	5
2	3	4	5	6	7	8	6	7	8	9	10	11	12
9	10	11	12	13	14	15	13	14	15	16	17	18	19
16	17	18	19	20	21	22	20	21	22	23	24	25	26
23	24	25	26	27	28	29	27	28	29	30			
30	31												

SUNDAY	MONDAY	TUESDAY	WEDNESDAY	THURSDAY	FRIDAY	SATURDAY
Apr 25	26	27	28	29	30	May 1 \$125 Delinquent Dues Fee Assessed on Unpaid Assessments Liens Filed on Unpaid Assessments 8:00am AECC 9:00am Conservation Commission
2	3	4 1:30pm Golf Commission	5	6	7 Summer Office Hours Begin 10:00am Rules & Regulations Commission	8 8:00am Campground Commission 8:30am Appeals - If Needed
9 Mother's Day	10	11	12	13	14	15 Second Payment Plan Installment Withdrawn 9:00am Board Meeting
16 6:30am Buddy Bass	17 9:00am Recreation Commission	18	19	20	21	22 Smoke on the Water BBQ Cook-Off - TBA
23	24	25	26	27	28	29 9:00am Trails Commission 9:00am Deer Management
30 8:00am Pancake Breakfast & Plant Sale	31 Memorial Day	Jun 1	2	3	4	5

June 2021

June 2021							July 2021						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa	Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
		1	2	3	4	5			6	7	8	9	10
6	7	8	9	10	11	12	11	12	13	14	15	16	17
13	14	15	16	17	18	19	18	19	20	21	22	23	24
20	21	22	23	24	25	26	25	26	27	28	29	30	31
27	28	29	30										

SUNDAY	MONDAY	TUESDAY	WEDNESDAY	THURSDAY	FRIDAY	SATURDAY
May 30	31	Jun 1 1:30pm Golf Commission	2	3	4 10:00am Rules & Regulations Commission	5 8:00am AECC 9:00am Conservation Commission
6	7	8	9	10	11 Mailed Ballots for BOD Election Due	12 8:00am Campground Commission 8:30am Appeals - If Needed 1:00pm Annual Meeting 1:00pm Ballots Cast by 1:00PM
13	14	15 Payment Plan Installment Withdrawn (5-payment)	16	17	18	19 9:00am Board Meeting
20 Father's Day	21 9:00am Recreation Commission	22	23	24	25	26 9:00am Trails Commission 9:00am Deer Management 10:00am Farm Fun Day
27 6:00am Buddy Bass	28	29	30	Jul 1	2	3

July 2021

July 2021							August 2021						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa	Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
				1	2	3	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
4	5	6	7	8	9	10	8	9	10	11	12	13	14
11	12	13	14	15	16	17	15	16	17	18	19	20	21
18	19	20	21	22	23	24	22	23	24	25	26	27	28
25	26	27	28	29	30	31	29	30	31				

SUNDAY	MONDAY	TUESDAY	WEDNESDAY	THURSDAY	FRIDAY	SATURDAY
Jun 27	28	29	30	Jul 1	2 10:00am Rules & Regulations Commission	3 Fireworks at Dusk 8:00am AECC 9:00am Conservation Commission 10:30am Golf Cart Parade 11:00am Rumble & Roll Ball Race
4 Independence Day	5 8:00am Holiday Office Hours	6 1:00pm Canyon Kid's Camp 1:30pm Golf Commission	7 1:00pm Canyon Kid's Camp	8 1:00pm Canyon Kid's Camp	9	10 8:00am Campground Commission 8:30am Appeals - If Needed 7:00pm Open Air Concert
11 Kid's Fishing Tournament - TBD	12	13	14	15 Payment Plan Installment Withdrawn	16	17 Big Cup Tournament - TBA 9:00am Board Meeting
18 6:00am Buddy Bass	19 9:00am Recreation Commission	20	21	22	23	24 7:30am Trail Trekker 5K for a Cause 12:00pm Beer Tasting 7:00pm Sizzling Summer Concert
25	26	27	28	29	30	31 Deer Management Program Applications Due 9:00am Trails Commission 9:00am Deer Management

August 2021

August 2021						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	12	13	14
15	16	17	18	19	20	21
22	23	24	25	26	27	28
29	30	31				

September 2021						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
			1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	10	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	24	25
26	27	28	29	30		

SUNDAY	MONDAY	TUESDAY	WEDNESDAY	THURSDAY	FRIDAY	SATURDAY
Aug 1	2	3 1:30pm Golf Commission	4	5	6 10:00am Rules & Regulations Commission	7 Night Golf - TBA 8:00am AECC 9:00am Deer Archery Qualifications 9:00am Youth Archery Day 9:00am Conservation Commission 1:00pm Deer Archery Orientation 8:00pm Venetian Night
8	9	10	11	12	13	14 Club Championship - TBA 8:00am Campground Commission 8:30am Appeals - If Needed
15 Payment Plan Installment Withdrawn (5-Payment) 9:00am Deer Archery Qualifications 1:00pm Deer Archery Orientation	16 9:00am Recreation Commission	17	18	19	20	21 9:00am Board Meeting
22 6:30am Buddy Bass	23	24	25	26	27	28 9:00am Deer Archery Qualifications 9:00am Trails Commission 9:00am Deer Management 1:00pm Deer Archery Orientation 1:30pm Deer Archery Zone Selection
29	30	31	Sep 1	2	3	4

September 2021

September 2021						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
			1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	10	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	24	25
26	27	28	29	30		

October 2021						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
					1	2
3	4	5	6	7	8	9
10	11	12	13	14	15	16
17	18	19	20	21	22	23
24	25	26	27	28	29	30
31						

SUNDAY	MONDAY	TUESDAY	WEDNESDAY	THURSDAY	FRIDAY	SATURDAY
Aug 29	30	31	Sep 1	2	3 10:00am Rules & Regulations Commission	4 8:00am AECC 9:00am Conservation Commission
5 10:00am Ice Cream Social & Craft Fair	6 Association Office Closed Labor Day Rosh Hashanah Begins	7 Regular Office Hours Resume 1:30pm Golf Commission	8 Rosh Hashanah Ends	9	10	11 ACLPO Foundation Poker Run - TBA Patriots Day 8:00am Campground Commission 8:30am Appeals - If Needed
12	13	14	15	16	17	18 9:00am Board Meeting 6:00pm Volunteer Appreciation Dinner
19 7:00am Buddy Bass	20 9:00am Recreation Commission	21	22	23	24	25 7:30am Buddy Classic 9:00am Trails Commission 9:00am Deer Management 6:00pm Farm to Table Dinner
26 7:30am Buddy Classic	27	28	29	30	Oct 1	2

October 2021

October 2021							November 2021						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa	Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
					1	2		1	2	3	4	5	6
3	4	5	6	7	8	9	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
10	11	12	13	14	15	16	14	15	16	17	18	19	20
17	18	19	20	21	22	23	21	22	23	24	25	26	27
24	25	26	27	28	29	30	28	29	30				
31													

SUNDAY	MONDAY	TUESDAY	WEDNESDAY	THURSDAY	FRIDAY	SATURDAY
Sep 26	27	28	29	30	Oct 1 10:00am Rules & Regulations Commission	2 8:00am AECC 9:00am Conservation Commission 5:00pm Relay for Life Fall Feast
3	4	5 1:30pm Golf Commission	6	7	8	9 8:00am Campground Commission 8:30am Appeals - If Needed
10	11 Columbus Day	12	13	14	15	16 9:00am Board Meeting
17	18 9:00am Recreation Commission	19	20	21	22	23 6:00pm Halloween at the Campground 7:00pm Haunted Trail
24	25	26	27	28	29	30 9:00am Trails Commission 9:00am Deer Management
31 Halloween Marina, Golf Course & Campground Close for the Season	Nov 1	2	3	4	5	6

November 2021

November 2021							December 2021						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa	Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
	1	2	3	4	5	6				1	2	3	4
7	8	9	10	11	12	13	5	6	7	8	9	10	11
14	15	16	17	18	19	20	12	13	14	15	16	17	18
21	22	23	24	25	26	27	19	20	21	22	23	24	25
28	29	30					26	27	28	29	30	31	

SUNDAY	MONDAY	TUESDAY	WEDNESDAY	THURSDAY	FRIDAY	SATURDAY
Oct 31	Nov 1	2 Election Day	3	4	5 10:00am Rules & Regulations Commission	6 8:00am AECC 9:00am Conservation Commission 1:00pm BOD Candidate Informational Gathering
7 Daylight Savings Time Ends - Fall Back!	8	9	10	11 Association Office Closed Veterans Day	12	13 8:00am Campground Commission 8:30am Appeals - If Needed
14	15 9:00am Recreation Commission	16	17	18	19	20 9:00am Board Meeting
21	22	23	24	25 Association Office Closed Thanksgiving	26 Association Office Closed	27 Association Office Closed 9:00am Trails Commission 9:00am Deer Management
28 Advent Begins Hanukkah Begins	29	30	Dec 1	2	3	4

December 2021

December 2021							January 2022						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa	Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
			1	2	3	4							1
5	6	7	8	9	10	11	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
12	13	14	15	16	17	18	9	10	11	12	13	14	15
19	20	21	22	23	24	25	16	17	18	19	20	21	22
26	27	28	29	30	31		23	24	25	26	27	28	29
							30	31					

SUNDAY	MONDAY	TUESDAY	WEDNESDAY	THURSDAY	FRIDAY	SATURDAY
Nov 28	29	30	Dec 1 Senior Exemption Applications Due	2	3 10:00am Rules & Regulations Commission	4 8:00am AECC 9:00am Conservation Commission 5:00pm Cocoa & Cookies w/ Santa 6:30pm Tree Lighting Ceremony
5	6 Hanukkah Ends	7 10:00am Jingle Bell Brunch	8	9	10	11 8:00am Campground Commission 8:30am Appeals - If Needed
12	13	14	15	16	17	18 9:00am Board Meeting
19	20 9:00am Recreation Commission	21	22	23	24 Advent Ends Association Office Closed Christmas Eve	25 Association Office Closed Christmas 9:00am Trails Commission 9:00am Deer Management
26	27 Association Office Closed Christmas Day Observed	28	29	30	31 Association Office Closed New Year's Eve	Jan 1, 22



Memorandum

To: ACL Board

Date: October 8, 2020

From: Megan Shamp

Memo #: 2020-77

Topic: foreclosure of liens

Issue: The following 32 lots are recommended for foreclosure of lien per Board policy. We do not expect to proceed with foreclosure on lots 04-106 or 04-107 due to an outstanding mortgage, but should anything change with these lots we will already have the Board's approval to foreclose on the lien.

1. 02-031 Macchia
2. 02-047 Iannotta/Losacco
3. 03-046 Kalb
4. 03-047 Kalb
5. 03-123 Teeling
6. 03-133 Bergquist
7. 03-185 Fluegel
8. 04-054 Martinez
9. 04-106 Harris
10. 04-107 Harris
11. 06-085 Briscoe
12. 07-146 Estrada
13. 07-173 Harden
14. 08-020 Butler
15. 08-259 Havens/Havens
16. 09-040 Dimke
17. 10-034 Hazelbower
18. 10-101 Blocklinger
19. 11-049 Hesslau
20. 11-078 Hesslau
21. 11-093 St. Victor Revocable Trust
22. 11-094 St. Victor Revocable Trust
23. 11-233 Reyna Trust Agreement
24. 11-263 Haynes
25. 11-293 Flores
26. 11-294 Riniker

27. 12-003 Binegar/Merla
28. 12-184 Petta
29. 12-210 Chimmy
30. 12-238 Clancy
31. 13-009 Barker
32. 14-029 Trost

Recommendation: To approve foreclosure of liens on the following lots: 02-031, 02-047, 03-046, 03-047, 03-123, 03-133, 03-185, 04-054, 04-106, 04-107, 06-085, 07-146, 07-173, 08-020, 08-259, 09-040, 10-034, 10-101, 11-049, 11-078, 11-093, 11-094, 11-233, 11-263, 11-293, 11-294, 12-003, 12-184, 12-210, 12-238, 13-009, and 14-029.

paying via credit card for all registration and assessments.

Adopted March 18, 2000
Amended November 15, 2008

Amended July 20, 2002
Amended January 17, 2009

Amended May 17, 2003

[DUES] ASSESSMENTS

1. In January the Association Office mails out the Annual [Dues] Assessments invoices and elective recreational costs incurred in the previous year.
2. [Dues] Assessments, Trash, Seasonal Boat Slips/Boat Registrations, Seasonal Campsites/Camper Registrations, Indoor/Outdoor Golf Cart Storage, and Owner Amenity Registration Fee(s) (OARF) are all due March 1. [Dues] Assessments received past March 1 will be considered delinquent. Recreational fees other than those listed above may be paid any time prior to registration or removed from invoice if not participating in the current year.
3. OARF(s) are due and must be paid in full by all property owners by March 1, and prior to any registration of boats, ATVs, passes, etc. being distributed to owners of the lot. All required fees must be paid on all lots owned to use of any ACLPOA rentals, including but not limited to, campsites, boat slips, and boats.
4. If [Dues] Assessments are not paid in full by March 1, a delinquent [Dues] Assessment fee will be charged. The Board of Directors will determine fee annually.
5. Interest, at a rate to be determined by the Board of Directors, will be charged from the date of delinquency, however, no interest will be charged if dues are paid or postmarked before April 1.
6. Envelopes from mailed payments received after March 1 shall be retained for a minimum of one year.

Adopted (No Date Listed)
Amended January 20, 2001
Amended November 20, 2004
Amended November 15, 2008

Amended February 21, 2009
Amended July 17, 2010
Amended November 19, 2011
Amended January 28, 2012

Amended October 19, 2013
Amended August 16, 2014

[DUES] ASSESSMENTS: DELINQUENT [DUES] ASSESSMENTS FEE

The delinquency [Dues] Assessments fee amount is to be assessed on March 2 annually and this fee is to be established by the Board of Directors.

Adopted March 21, 1987

Amended November 15, 2008

Amended July 17, 2010

[DUES] ASSESSMENTS: COLLECTION & FORECLOSURE OF DELINQUENT ANNUAL [DUES] ASSESSMENT

1. If annual assessment, or any other special assessments, remain delinquent 30 days after the scheduled due date of March 1, the assessment will bear interest from the date of delinquency, at a rate per annum as determined by the Board from time to time. This interest will be charged on the outstanding amount retroactive to the due date. If your account is NOT current as of March 1, Board Election materials will NOT be sent to the Voting Member.
2. If annual assessment or special assessments are not paid or postmarked on or before May 1, delinquent accounts will have a lien filed at the Jo Daviess County Courthouse as provided for in Article VI, Section 9 of the Covenants and Restrictions. ALL LEGAL COSTS AND COLLECTION COSTS WILL BE THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PROPERTY OWNER.
3. If annual assessment, or special assessments, are not paid within ninety (90) days of the date on which it is due, written notice shall be sent to every Owner of that Lot or Dwelling at the last address on file at the Association. After June 1, existing delinquent accounts will be turned over to the Association's attorney for collection.
4. If after September 1, the delinquent account balance still exists and no arrangements have been made with

the Association to satisfy the outstanding balance, the process of foreclosure on the recorded lien to obtain a court order authorizing sale of the property to satisfy the delinquent assessment(s) will commence.

- 5. Subsequently, the process of foreclosure on the recorded lien to obtain a court order authorizing sale of the property to satisfy the delinquent assessment(s) will commence.

Adopted June 20, 1998
Amended November 15, 2008

Amended January 20, 2001
Amended February 21, 2009

Amended November 20, 2004
Amended January 28, 2012

FINE FOR UNAUTHORIZED, UNLAWFUL DUMPING AT SOLID WASTE/RECYCLING CENTER

The improper disposal of trash is a violation of state law as defined in Chapter 415 Environmental Safety as a Class B misdemeanor and is a violation of Jo Daviess County Ordinance.

Property owners who drop off trash outside the gates of the solid waste recycling center when the center is closed will be issued a citation and be subject to fines.

1st Offense \$100

2nd Offense \$200

3rd Offense..... \$300 and the matter will be turned over to law enforcement authorities (Jo Daviess County State’s Attorney/Sheriff).

Property owners who observe the illegal dumping of trash anywhere on the property are encouraged to report such activity directly to the General Manager.

Adopted February 18, 1995

Amended November 15, 2008

HOME BASED OCCUPATIONS

No home-based occupation or profession shall be conducted in any Dwelling, Dwelling Accessory Building or Garage except those expressly permitted by the Board. The Board has adopted section 8-5B-16 of the County Zoning Ordinance regulating Home Occupations, with the exception that no occupation or profession requiring the storage of chemicals shall be allowed.

Adopted December 15, 2018

INVESTMENT POLICY

The major sources of ACLPOA funds are the annual assessment dues paid by property owners, and the fees charged for various services and facility usage. Since funds received by the Association early in the year are used to meet expenses incurred throughout the year, an investment plan is a reasonable method of increasing the funds until they are needed to meet expenses. Also, special purpose funds may not be expended for several years and it is reasonable to provide the Association with a return on these special purpose funds until needed.

PURPOSE: The purpose of this policy is to provide for the investment of funds of the ACLPOA in a prudent manner.

GENERAL POLICY: ACLPOA funds are provided to the Association to be used for the maintenance and improvement of the quality of life in the lake development. Therefore, the investment of funds is not a primary function of the Association and the conservation of funds is paramount when considering investment opportunities.

As part of the northwest Illinois community, the ACLPOA recognizes its responsibility to participate in and support local financial institutions. This policy will be followed unless the overriding considerations of security of funds and types of investments preclude the use of local institutions.

OBJECTIVES: The objectives of the Investment Policy are:

1. Provide the available cash necessary to pay bills and expenses on a timely basis.



Memorandum

To: Board of Directors

Date: October 8, 2020

From: Joe Wiener, Building Inspector

Memo: 2020-78

Topic: Lot Combination 12-128 and 12-129

Issue & Analysis: Ken & Ann Johnson have requested a Lot Combination of lots 128 and 129 in the President (12) subdivision. This request was reviewed and approved by the Architectural and Environmental Control Committee at their October 3 meeting.

Recommendation: To approve the Lot Combination Agreement requested by Ken & Ann Johnson for lots 128 and 129 in the Winchester (4) subdivision. Once recorded, the Lot Combination Agreement may not be revoked or rescinded.

Plan on a Page: Improvement of Infrastructure – To develop, maintain and improve the existing infrastructure.
High Performing Operations and Management - 1YAP – Provide on-going training of Board of Directors and staff on governing documents for consistency in decision-making.

Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners Association Committee Motion Card

Committee: AECC

Date: October 3, 2020

Agenda Item: 5.1

I Move:

Regarding ACL Lots 12A128 and 12A129:

To approve the lot combination application for lots 12A128 and 12A19 in Section President.

Action Taken

MOTION MADE BY: <u>Barbara Hendun</u> BH	VOTE RECORDED:
MOTION SECONDED BY: <u>Rich Paulson</u> JP	YEA: <u>9</u>
CHAIR: <u>Cindy Zosky</u>	NAY: _____
	ABSTAIN: _____



Memorandum

To: Board of Directors

Date: October 8, 2020

From: Shaun Nordlie

Memo: 2020-79

Topic: Reinstate the Maintenance Commission

Issue & Analysis: Henry Doden of the Board of Directors has requested that the Maintenance Commission be reinstated. In May 2018, the Board of Directors dissolved the Maintenance Commission due to lack of volunteers on the commission and a change in the operations of the Maintenance Department. A new charge has been created for this new commission and a list of items that the commission could help the Building and Grounds and Natural Resources Managers with throughout the year.

The change in the charge is as follows:

The Maintenance Commission shall ~~advise the Board of Directors on all matters pertaining to the maintenance, repair or improvement~~ work with the Building and Grounds and Natural Resources Managers to help fulfill the duties of the Maintenance Department. The commission can play a role in assisting the department with planning, estimating, execution and reviewing on all matters pertaining to the maintenance, repair or improvement of the Common Properties and facilities of the Association as requested by the Building and Grounds or Natural Resources managers. The commission ~~and~~ shall perform such other functions as the Board, in its discretion, determines. ~~The President shall determine the advisability of having a~~ At least one member of the Board of Directors ~~assigned~~ shall serve as a liaison to member of this commission. The ~~committee~~ commission will prepare a summary of activities and projects the ~~committee~~ commission has been involved in over the past year for presentation at the annual meeting.

A list of some of the items that the commission can assist the department with are:

- Inspection of facilities and submit any work orders necessary in the facilities that have been inspected
- Work with the Building and Grounds Manager in creating scope of work and RFP's for maintenance projects
- Advertise through word of mouth the selling of dirt
- Help communicate with owners on maintenance issues
- Review the Reserve Study annually and suggest changes and updates
- Help the Building and Grounds Manager with selling or trading in old equipment

- Gather commission members or owners to volunteer to help on certain maintenance projects
- Work with the Building and Grounds Manager to prioritize Work Orders if necessary

Recommendation: To reinstate the Maintenance Commission with the following charge - The Maintenance Commission shall work with the Building and Grounds and Natural Resources Managers to help fulfill the duties of the Maintenance Department. The commission can play a role in assisting the department with planning, estimating, execution and reviewing on all matters pertaining to the maintenance, repair or improvement of the Common Properties and facilities of the Association as requested by the Building and Grounds or Natural Resources managers. The commission shall perform such other functions as the Board, in its discretion, determines. At least one member of the Board shall serve as a member of this commission. The commission will prepare a summary of activities and projects the commission has been involved in over the past year for presentation at the annual meeting.

Plan on a Page: Improvement of Infrastructure – To develop, maintain and improve the existing infrastructure.



Memorandum

To: Board of Directors

Date: October 9, 2020

From: Budget Commission

Memo: 2020-80

Topic: Recommendation for addition to Bylaws – 1st Reading

Issue & Analysis: At their July 28, 2020 meeting, members of the Budget Commission proposed the following new language for the Board of Directors to consider in the Bylaws. This proposal was voted on at the August 10, 2020 meeting.

With membership on the Board of Directors and Standing Commissions of Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association (ACLPOA) changing frequently and sometimes annually, the members of the Budget/Audit Commission believe it is vitally important to achieve and maintain continuity in setting goals and objectives when planning projects for ACLPOA and in securing funding for these projects. Equally as important is the need to promote better property owner understanding of financial classifications and distribution of assessments that influence management of association funds and to formalize guidelines to assure continuity of Board of Directors' decisions regarding association funds. Therefore, the members of the Budget/Audit Commission recommend that the following definitions and guidelines be added to the ACLPOA Bylaws.

Terms recommended to be added to **Article I, Definitions.**

Capital Projects Fund is the Board of Directors' approved annual assessment revenue determined to be needed to cover construction costs and related expenses of approved projects, including fees, down payments, loan principal and interest payments. Investment income earned and proceeds earned in this fund will remain for use in this fund.

Operating Fund is the Board of Directors' approved annual assessment revenue determined to be needed to cover the day-to-day operating expenses of the Association. Fees, fines, and sales income are also included in the Operating Fund. Investment income earned and proceeds earned in this fund will remain for use in this fund.

Replacement and Renovation Fund is the Board of Directors' approved annual assessment determined to be needed to cover the cost of improvements and replacement expenditures. Investment income earned and proceeds earned in this fund will remain for use in this fund.

Guidelines to be added to **Article VIII, Section 1, e.**

- 1) Capital Projects Fund, Operating Fund, and Replacement and Renovation Fund (collectively The Funds) revenues primarily come from the annual membership assessments. Fees, sales income, and fines are additional sources of Operating Fund revenue.
- 2) The Funds' annual revenues and expenditures must be budgeted by the Budget/Audit Commission and approved by the Board of Directors.
- 3) Expenditures of The Funds must be consistent with the approved purpose(s) of The Funds, namely:
 - a) Capital Projects – All project construction costs and expenses including fees, down payments, loan principal and interest payments.
 - b) Operating Fund – Day-to-day operating expenses as identified in the approved annual budget.
 - c) Replacement and Renovation Fund – Payments related to improvements and replacements.
- 4) Each fund's annual expenditures may not exceed ~~five percent (5%)~~ **ten percent (10%)** of the approved annual budget for the fund. Approval of a majority of the total Voting Members of the Association voting at a special meeting called for that purpose is necessary in the event of such an excess.
- 5) Notwithstanding Section 4) above, emergency expenditures from any of The Funds for an identified emergency or an emergency mandated by law may be approved by the Board of Directors. Emergency is defined as an immediate danger to the structural integrity of any part of the Common Properties, Reserved Properties or Facilities, or to the life, health, and safety of property Owners or employees.
- 6) The Funds must abide by the Investment Policy contained in the Board Policy.

Recommendation: No motion required at this meeting. For presentation & discussion only.

High Performing Operations and Management - 1YAP – Provide on-going training of Board of Directors and staff on governing documents for consistency in decision-making.

Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners Association Committee/Commission Motion Card

Budget Committee/Commission

Date August 10, 2020

I move:

to accept the proposal as amended

Action Taken

MOTION MADE BY: <u>Ron Carpenter</u>	VOTE RECORDED:
MOTION SECONDED BY: <u>Marge Clark</u>	YEA: <u>5</u>
CHAIR: <u>Steve Borst</u>	NAY: <u>3</u>
	ABSTAIN: <u> </u>

Date Received _____ Given to _____ Date Completed _____

PROPOSAL FOR ADDITION TO BYLAWS OR BOARD POLICY
Budget/Audit Commission
July 10~~28~~, 2020

~~As members of the Budget/Audit Commission, we recommend the following language be added to the ACLPOA Bylaws. Because the Bylaws are published and readily available to all property owners, having this information in the Bylaws will promote better property owner understanding of financial classifications and distribution of assessments.~~

With membership on the Board of Directors and Standing Commissions of Apple Canyon Lake Property Owners' Association (ALCPOA) changing frequently and sometimes annually, the members of the Budget/Audit Commission believe it is vitally important to achieve and maintain continuity in setting goals and objectives when planning projects for ACLPOA and in securing funding for these projects. Equally as important is the need to promote better property owner understanding of financial classifications and distribution of assessments that influence management of association funds and to formalize guidelines to assure continuity of Board of Directors' decisions regarding association funds. Therefore, the members of the Budget/Audit Commission recommend that the following definitions and guidelines be added to the ACLPOA Bylaws.

BYLAWS:

Terms recommended to be added to **Article I, Definitions.**

Capital Projects Fund is the Board of Directors' approved annual assessment revenue determined to be needed to cover construction costs and related expenses of approved projects, including fees, down payments, loan principal and interest payments. Investment income earned and proceeds earned in this fund will remain for use in this fund.

Operating Fund is the Board of Directors' approved annual assessment revenue determined to be needed to cover the day-to-day operating expenses of the Association. Fees, fines, and sales income are also included in the Operating Fund. Investment income earned and proceeds earned in this fund will remain for use in this fund.

Replacement and Renovation Fund is the Board of Directors' approved annual assessment determined to be needed to cover the cost of improvements and replacement expenditures. Investment income earned and proceeds earned in this fund will remain for use in this fund.

Guidelines to be added to **Article VIII, Section 1, e.**

- 1) Capital Projects Fund, Operating Fund, and Replacement and Renovation Fund (collectively The Funds) revenues primarily come from the annual membership assessments. Fees, sales income, and fines are additional sources of Operating Fund revenue.
- 2) The Funds' annual revenues and expenditures must be budgeted by the Budget/Audit Commission and approved by the Board of Directors.

- 3) Expenditures of The Funds must be consistent with the approved purpose(s) of The Funds, namely:
 - a) Capital Projects – All project construction costs and expenses including fees, down payments, loan principal and interest payments.
 - b) Operating Fund – Day-to-day operating expenses as identified in the approved annual budget.
 - c) Replacement and Renovation Fund – Payments related to improvements and replacements.
- 4) Each fund's annual expenditures may not exceed ~~five percent (5%)~~ **ten percent (10%)** of the approved annual budget for the fund. Approval of a majority of the total Voting Members of the Association voting at a special meeting called for that purpose is necessary in the event of such an excess.
- 5) Notwithstanding Section 4) above, emergency expenditures from any of The Funds for an identified emergency or an emergency mandated by law may be approved by the Board of Directors. Emergency is defined as an immediate danger to the structural integrity of any part of the Common Properties, Reserved Properties or Facilities, or to the life, health, and safety of property Owners or employees.
- 6) The Funds must abide by the Investment Policy contained in the Board Policy.

Open
discussion
about
COVID-19

13.1

CAMP

update